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1. GENERAL

Cementarnica USIE AD Skopje (the “Company” or “USJE”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje.

The Company’s main activity is production and trade of cement, masonry cement, ready mix concrete,
clinker and other related products.

2. SALES PERFORMANCE

Cement

Cement demand in North Macedonia has increased during 2021, despite the continuing duration of the
global pandemic of COVID-19. Given the overall situation, individual investments in real estate, especially
in domestic touristic areas were increased, while in the same time there were also ongoing infrastructural
projects in the country. Thus, the volume of cement sold on the domestic market was increased for 7.4%
vs. the previous year.

Kosovo market was demanding and challenging and the year was finished with the same quantities of sold
cement, as the previous one.

Usje managed to supply both domestic and Kosovo markets’ needs and the total growth of sales volume
compared to previous year is 5%.

The financial results did not correspond to the sales volumes, due to dramatic increase of the energy prices
in the second half of the year. Therefore, the company EBITDA was lower for 20% than the previous year.

In 2021 Usje achieved sales volumes of 1.032 million tons of cement which presents a milestone after 1977.

Vertical Integration

Although the sale of ready-mix concrete and aggregates was below the planned quantities, 2021 successfully
resulted with positive EBITDA. The sales of 34.6K m3 ready-mixed concrete contributed to the achievement.
The RMC unit is a major factor in testing new types of environmentally friendly cements. Namely, this year
we introduced in regular use CEM Il / B V-L 42.5 R, cement with lower CO. load, i.e., green cement with
extremely high performance.

We also remain in the market as producers of extremely high-performance concrete, well recognized by our
traditional customers.

Digitalization and Decarbonization

During 2021 Cementarnica USJE started a road to further develop its operations through transformation,
focusing on resilience and innovation moving towards carbon-neutral and digital world. In our ESG targets
2025 and beyond we commit to reduce our carbon footprint by 2030.

CO; innovation — Introduction of new bagged cement product CEM IV 42,5 N

The new type of cement product easily started to substitute the other cements on the market, offering the
same characteristics. The sales of bulk cement CEM Il B-M (V-L) 42,5 R have increased, meaning that slowly
it imposes as a more “ECO” friendly variant. With the substitution to these products, we are producing less
CO; proving that we not only care for the market and clients but we also care for the environment and our
planet as well.

Digitalization process in Usje in 2021 was with focus on process improvements and maximizing customers

experience
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Heat map concept as process digitalization heading towards artificial intelligence was implemented aiming
improvement of production process monitoring and management (through big data analysis of the input
process parameters the system to evaluate and signal if any of the key variables is out of the range). This
provides improved running of the production process and production KPIs.

Pre-cognize concept is typical maintenance digitalized tool for preventive maintenance through data
analysis and by which through recording signal inputs from more than 2000 sensors it will be possible to
predict equipment problems before they occurred.

TITANUP Mobile application and web platform for our customers - TitanUp was upgraded with new
improved versions and additional Apps aiming to provide maximum customers experience. In 2021, TitanUp
became very “easy to use” tool, for more than 99% of our cement buying clients, and more than 96% of all
the load orders.

3. OPERATIONS

During 2021 the kilns’ operation followed sales domestic and export demand patterns, while at the same
time focusing on stocks, assets and working capital optimization. In 2021, USJE managed to substitute
about 2.1% of the conventional solid fuel with alternative fuel (Textile and rice husk) which contributed to
the improving of the fuel-mix cost. The specific fuel heat consumption (SFHC) was decreased compared to
previous year. Usage of Natural gas for kilns preheating and raw mill preparation was decreased compared
to previous year for 40%. Usage of electrical energy (kWh/t cement) was decreased by 3.6% per ton of
cement compared to budgeted ones, which was a result from the continuous optimization of the process
parameters. All this contributed to decreasing CO, emissions/ton cement. The clinker to cement ratio
remained on a stable level with decreasing tendency.

4. HEALTH & SAFETY

In 2021 we succeeded to maintain safe and healthy working conditions for our employees and contractors.
By implementation of various preventive measures and benefits (workspace reorganization, shifts
rescheduling, protective masks available for all employees, regular periodical disinfection of workspace,
PCR testing etc.) we managed to control Covid 19 virus spreading within the plant. By promoting
vaccination, 94% of the employees got vaccinated. Compared to the previous year, we had decreased
number of employees affected by the virus.

Strong commitment of the management towards Health and Safety conditions in the plant continued in
2021 as well, and this resulted to completion of almost all health and safety targets for the year. All
managers were involved in Safety walks, Area ownership program, Safety audits etc.

After a year of decreased trainings due to Corona virus, we are back on track and last year we reached to
17.4 h per employee safety trainings for all our employees and 16.4 h per contractor employee which is
higher than the target 15h per employee and contractor.

The external audits and state inspectorate confirmed the Company’s compliance with OH&S regulation and

standards. Internal audit from the group Health and Safety director was green light (acceptable).
This year we ended up with 3 LTls, two of contractor, and one our employee.

5. HUMAN RESOURCES & ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (ESG)

For more than sixty years Cementarnica USJE has sought to create added value for people, society and the
environment through its entire value chain and overall operations. Our focus is on engagement with our
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internal and external stakeholders, international and key partners at the local level, aiming to contribute to
environmental & health protection as well as community development.

Employee engagement

People development — Following our Group’s commitment for continuous development of our people
aimed at strengthening and growth of the organization towards achieving our business objectives, series of
promotions, rotations, and job enrichments of people on key positions were implemented. Moreover,
continuous development of our people being our priority, in 2021 we provided total of 12.064 training hours
that were mainly focused on H&S, process and maintenance topics, as well as leadership and managerial
skills.

Care for our people - The Company continued with its commitment to support our people and our
operations in times of crisis. People and activity reorganization under extraordinary circumstances was
provided focusing mainly on medical protection of our employees, guidelines for self-protection and health
campaigns.

- To further promote our care for the wellbeing of our employees being one of our key commitments, this
year we introduced Mental Health Campaign “How are you”. Through this campaign we make available
useful resources along with our consulting service EAP Program aimed at building upon our people’s
resilience.

- The Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for all our employees and their families was implemented to help
maintain health, mental and emotional well-being, and performance.

- The Employee Survey Action Plan prepared in December 2020 was fully implemented during the year.
Internal Communication

- On the occasion on reaching a sales milestone of one million tons of cement, communication meetings
with all employees were organized to celebrate success together and to give recognition to all our people.

- Communication day with all employees was organized in July 2021, during which the management team
presented and emphasized the Company’s milestones, our values, wellbeing programs, and technological
improvements, the quality of our products, as well as our H&S and environmental protection endeavors.

- Open day for the employees and their family members was organized with ceremony of awarding Health

& Safety Awards.

Open dialogue and transparent communication with our stakeholders

To understand the community's problems and challenges, we maintain an ongoing dialogue and assess
needs and opportunities, after which we contribute with resources and share our know-how to help build
solid foundations for a better future for all:

- A stakeholder engagement event was organized with more than 200 guests present such as business
partners, customers, suppliers, academy professors, and journalists, representatives of NGOs, local
government, and ministries. The CED communicated to all the guests and shared information about USJE’s
results and our endeavors towards sustainability.

- New Company Website — On our new Company website available at www.usje.mk we regularly
communicate about all our activities and commitments, sustainable development, health and safety at
workplace, our commitment to environmental protection, as well as projects implemented with our
products across the country. Furthermore, the emission monitoring results are regularly published on our
web site as well as to the media and the wider public on a weekly basis.
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Engaging towards De-carbonization

This year USIE continues the participation in the “Waste to energy for Western Balkans” project together
with Antea Plant from Albania and Kosjeric Plant from Serbia which is aimed to raise awareness of use of
alternative fuels among the wider public.

Community support in fight with pandemic

Having in mind COVID-19 crisis, USJE supported the wider community with few donations in kind such as:
building materials to one city hospital for improving the conditions in hospital premises, blood-testing
apparatus to one university clinic and collaboration with Ministry of labor and social policy and one civil
association (CeProSard) for equipping of centers for housing people with disabilities with 24-hour care.

Continuation of Partnering with school project

In 2021 USJE continued the Partnering with Schools Project aiming to improve health and safety and
environmental and energy efficiency of kindergartens and primary schools. Within this project the last year
one primary school was equipped with technical goods for facilitating the educational process during the
pandemic, a local kindergarten was renovated for improving the energy-efficient conditions for the children
and inside toilet premises were renovated in the center for children with impaired hearing.

Annual Sustainability Report

Our Annual Sustainability Report fully implemented the extensive range of indicators of key environmental
protection performance, social performance, and value creation of Titan Group. These key performance
indicators cover the shared information on the Group's compliance with the Ten Principles of the UN Global
Compact and the reporting standards established in keeping with TITAN Group's sectoral approach,

SDG Pioneer Accolade

USJE was awarded with an SDG Pioneer Accolade for our best practices mainly focused on the following
SDGs: Goal 3: Good health and well-being, Goal 4: Quality education and Goal: 13 Climate change.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL

As a part of TITAN Group, USIE is committed to sustainable development and continuous improvement of
its environmental footprint. Since year 2011 Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje has an A-IPPC Permit with
adjustment Plan that has been upgraded into A-Integrated Environmental Permit, issued by the Ministry of
Environment and Physical Planning. The Company has established, documented, implemented and
maintains an Environmental Management System and continually improves its effectiveness in accordance
with the requirements of the 1SO 14001:2015 standard. The Environmental Management System is part of
the Integrated Management System in Usje. The scope of the System is to cover all environmental issues
concerning the production and the exploitation of quarries. The system is maintained and audited on yearly
basis for its compliance. The last re-certification of the EMS was performed in August 2021. Activities related
to protection of environment are incorporated in all our activities. In this context, some of the projects
realized in the course of 2021 are listed below:

Green Belt

Within the project Green Belt, a total 36728 plants were planted in year 2021, out of which 30301 trees
were planted on the final benches of the marl quarry, 4070 trees were planted at the limestone quarry on
Govrlevo, and 2357 plants (trees, flowers and bushes) were planted at the factory green areas. Increasing
of the green areas, positively contributes for reducing of the fugitive dust and minimizing visual impacts to
neighbouring residential buildings.
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Noise minimization

The measured noise level at the monitoring points in the perimeter of the factory and quarries does not
exceed the stipulated permissible limits.

The measured noise at the monitoring points at the perimeter of the factory and quarries does not exceed
the stipulated permit limits. Following our endeavour to do more good and minimize our footprint and
despite that the noise generated by our operations is below the legal limits, in 2021 USIE continued to
implement activities for noise minimization according to the Action Plan of the Study for Noise minimization
in the plant’s vicinity, developed by Faculty of Natural and Technical Sciences in Shtip.

Energy efficiency

Measures for Energy efficiency are increasingly recognized as valuable means to achieve a sustainable
energy supply. Furthermore, the implementation of EE measures reduces greenhouse gas emissions,
improve security of energy supply, lower costs, and even promote competitiveness. In 2021, part of the
planned projects for improvement of energy efficiency were implemented, such as replacement and
modernization of indoor and outdoor lighting, insulation of administrative buildings as part of the proposed
measures from the Detailed Energy audits for buildings. Also, in 2021 we certified ISO 50001:2018 System
for energy management

Air Emissions

The monitoring of air emissions is a precondition for control and mitigation of the impacts from cement
production on the environment. USJE employs an independent 24-hour-system for continuous monitoring
of emissions, which enables it to closely monitor the emissions in real time and undertaking timely corrective
measures. As a corporate socially responsible company, USJE publishes the air emissions reports on its
webpage on a weekly basis. The same reports we are sending to the media, as well.

Annual average of air emissions from the main emission sources, are presented in the following graphs:
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*MLV=50 mg/Nm3 — Maximum limit value according to national law for emissions

*MLV=30 mg/Nm? — Maximum limit valye accepted from USJE in the A-IPPC
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Reducing the Emissions of Fugitive Dust

Following the Action Plan for minimization of fugitive dust emissions in USJE’s Plant and quarries, the
following activities comprising individual or combined measures were completed within the year 2021:

Partially closing of open parts of the pre-heater towers, installing metal barriers

Closing of the open parts of the hall for sand and limestone, installing metal walls and doors
Continuous monitoring and change of the auxiliary de-dusting filters,

Renewal of access roads within the factory - continuous activity,

Creating a green belt around the plant and quarries - continuous activity.

In compliance with the A-Integrated Environmental Permit for conformity with the operational plan, an
independent authorized laboratory performed measurements of PM10 particles at the plant’s perimeter.
Based on those measurements, State Environmental Inspectorate confirmed that there is no direct
correlation between the operations of USIE’s Plant and the measured values of PM10 in the ambient air.
These values mainly depend on the weather conditions.
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Usage of Alternative Fuels

In 2018, USJE introduced a new, modern technology that allows replacement of a certain percentage of the
conventional fossil fuels used for heating the kilns with alternative fuels. In order to enhance utilization and
to increase opportunity for usage of different alternative fuels, Usje Cement Plant in May 2021 installed
new equipment for shredding and dosing. This equipment enables Usje to use different fractions of non-
hazardous waste as alternative fuels. The utilisation of the alternative fuels is in line with the A-Integrated
Environmental Permit. In this process, we use the best world practices, proven efficient technologies and
equipment.

7. OTHER INFORMATION

USJE’s Management is firmly committed to the continuing integration of the rules and practices into the
Company’s operations, which promote transparency, responsibility, reliability, sustainable development
and corporate social responsibility in every aspect and field of activity of the Company and its entire
network of relationships with shareholders, employees, Customers, suppliers, contractors and the society.
Respectively, USJE discloses the following information;

1. USIE has two executive members of the Board of Directors (“BoD”), and that is the Chief Executive
Director (“CED”) and Executive Director, and 5 non-executive members from which 2 are
independent.

2. The CED and the Executive Director are not receiving any earnings based on their membership in
the BoD. The total income (salaries, other contributions, bonuses, insurance, and other receipts)
of the executive members of the BoD and of the other members of the key personnel of the
Company in 2021 is in amount of 109,747 thousand denars. None of the 5 non-executive members
have earnings based on their membership in the BoD.

3. Dividend Policy
Based on the Company’s dividend policy dividend is distributed every year, according to proposal
on BoD and after approval of the Annual Shareholder’s Assembly.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders,
On 25 May 2021, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining
dividend for the year ended 2020 after the payment of the advanced dividend for the period
January - September 2020 in accordance with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in
amount of MKD 528,105 thousand which consists of MKD 81,769 thousand profit from 2020, MKD
140,362 thousand reinvested profit from 2015. The remaining profit from 2020 in amount of MKD
305,974 thousand was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such
activities.

Declared remaining dividend for the year ended 2020 paid in 2021 was MKD 394 per share.

Additionally, On 22 September 2021, the Bord of Directors brought a Decision for distribution of
advanced dividend for the period January - June 2021 in accordance with the Company Law. The
dividend declared was in amount of MKD 927,988 thousand based on the approved statutory
separate financial statements as of 30 June 2021 and for the six - month period then ended and
transferred revaluation surplus included in the Equity in relation to the item Property, Plant and
Equipment directly to Retained Earnings, as net amount of MKD 241,694 thousand as per statutory
accounts (MKD: 207,829 as per financial information prepared in accordance with Titan Group
accounting policies), and at the same time creating an obligation to pay the profit tax on revaluation
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reserves when transferred to accumulated profit in amount of MKD 26,854 thousand. Transfers
from Revaluation Surpluses to Retained Earnings are not made through the Profit or Loss.

Declared and paid advance dividend for the period January - June 2021 was in amount of MKD
1,646 per share.

4. The sources of the Company’s assets are its operating cash flow.

5. The financial results for 2021 are an integral part of the Financial Statements of the Company and
the Group as of 31 December 2021.

6. Consequently, to the previous, a financial risk management policy was explained in detail in the
Note 20 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2021.

7. During 2021, all transactions with the interested parties are realized in the ordinary course of the
business of the Company (Note 18 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as
of 31 December 2021).

8. USIE shares the Titan Group’s CSR Vision and CSR Policy, to “conduct its business in an ethical and

socially responsible manner doing less harm and endeavouring to do more good.”

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement

Good corporate governance principles and comprehensive risk management are essential to building
effective external relationships, and thus to the company's stability. These principles coupled with our
corporate values guide us through every aspect of our business. Compliance with and application of them
in the daily work is ensured at the highest level through the functioning of several boards and committees:
Board of Directors, Central Management Committee, Credit Control Committee, H&S Committee, CSR
Committee and Quality and Environmental Board.

Effective risk management is essential for the achievement of the company’s strategic goals and long-term
sustainable development. The company has developed agile systems for monitoring, eliminating, or
minimizing various potential and significant risks. The Central Management Committee is generally
responsible for the Company’s risk management plans, implementation and evaluating their effectiveness
each year through management systems. The Board of Directors confirms that the Company has internal
control systems and risk management policies in place and that it has been informed by the CED and the
competent Group executives about their effectiveness. The assurance mechanism regarding the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements consists of 3 combination of the embedded risk management processes,
the applied financial control activities, the relevant information technology utilized, and the financial
information prepared, communicated, and monitored. The monthly monitoring of the financial statements
is the key element of the controlling mechanism regarding the quality and integrity of financial results.
External auditors review the semi-annual financial statements and the annual financial statements of the
Company

Our business practices based on compliance are guided by and based on the TITAN Cement Group values
and Code of Conduct. According to the TITAN Group's Anti Bribery and Corruption policy, we have principles
for working with suppliers, contractors, or other related parties. They comply with all applicable laws and
willingly make a contractual commitment, where it is feasible, to represent that they abide by the relevant
anti-bribery and anti-corruption rules.
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During 2021 Usje made available and raised awareness through trainings of our key employees on the
following policies: Human Rights, Anti-Bribery and Corruption, Competition Law Compliance, Sanctions
Policy, Group H&S Policy, as well as refresher on Code of Conduct.

Cementarnica Usje AD is a listed company on the official market of the Macedonian Stock Exchange AD
Skopje in the sub-segment "mandatory listing”. Pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Macedonian Stock
Exchange, available on their website, Cementarnica Usje AD as a listed company on the sub-segment
“mandatory listing”, has no obligation to apply the principles contained in the new Corporate Governance
Code of the Macedonian Stock Exchange from 2021, for the business year 2021.

Cementarnica Usje AD applies the principles of good corporate governance in accordance with the
standards set out in the Law for Trade Companies. Cementarnica Usje AD has not adopted a special code
for corporate governance, but it has adopted internal acts that regulate corporate governance & the way
in _Mthgh internal acts are made available.

loannis Paniaras

President of the Board of Directors
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje
Report on the separate financial statements

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Cementarnica Usje AD
Skopje, which comprise the separate statement of financial position as of 31 December 2021,
and the separate statement of comprehensive income, separate statement of changes in equity
and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the separate financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards applicable in the Republic of North
Macedonia and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing applicable in the
Republic of North Macedonia (the "Standards"). The Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the separate
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the separate financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO 16, 8 Septemvri Blvd. Hyperium Business Center, 2nd floor, 1000 Skopje
Republic of North Macedonia, VAT No. MK4030008022586, T: +389 2 3140 900, F: +389 2 3116 525,
www.pwe.com/mk
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Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje as of 31 December 2021, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting standards applicable in the Republic of North Macedonia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Annual report prepared by the Management in accordance with the requirement of the article
384 of the Company Law.

Management is also responsible for the preparation of the Separate Annual accounts and
Annual Report of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje, which were approved by the Board of
Directors.

As required by the Audit Law, we report that the historical information presented in the Annual
Report prepared by Management of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje in accordance with article
384 of the Company Law is consistent in all material respects with the financial information
presented in the Separate Annual Accounts and audited Separate Financial Statements of
Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje, as of 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended.

ragan Davitkov

Certified Auditor

Pl
gan Davitkov

General Manager

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO Skopje

1 April 2022
Skopje, Republic of North Macedonia



Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

////TITAN

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Sales

Other revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other operating income

Other operating expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Finance income

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) net
Finance costs

Net finance income

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Investment Property revaluation surplus
Total comprehensive income for the year

Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company
Non- controlling interest

Earnings per share information:
Basic, profit for the period attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent company

Total Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:

Equity holder of the parent company

Non - controlling interest

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements

Notes

3a

3b

3c

3e

3f

3d

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
4,876,144 4,552,417

107,244 118,636

(3,427,101) (2,644,523)

1,556,287 2,026,530
158,232 122,287
(184,782) (215,912)
(36,300) (33,830)
(209,664) (221,543)
1,283,773 1,677,532
2,660 3,232
(587) 7,145
(6,764) (3,085)
(4,691) 7,292
1,279,082 1,684,824
(101,654) (161,620)
1,177,428 1,523,204
14,932 15,800
1,192,360 1,539,004
1,118,557 1,444,607
58,871 78,597
1,177,428 1,523,204
2.09 2.70
1,132,742 1,459,591
59,618 79,413
1,192,360 1,539,004
4
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment in subsidiaries
Exploration and evaluation assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivable

Cash and short term deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

Other reserves

Reinvested profit

Non -current liabilities
Provision for retirement benefits

Provision for rehabilitation of quarries

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provision for unused holidays

Notes

o~ N

10
11

12

13

14

15

16

Current portion of retirement benefit obligations 15

Income tax payable
Dividend payable

TOTAL EQU/I/T‘_R' AND LIABILITIES

/]

Hrisafoy'B

/
It
L

BarlhKaska Gabriela

LICAL

Head of A ci-‘mming

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements

Authorized g y If of the Board of Directors on 28 February 2032:

Nikos 7401190 ‘a8
I|’

FTI'IH'EHIZ‘_ ager

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
2,638,302 2,490,645
14,001 13,705
250,812 222,744
38,722 36,254
1,220 4,232
2,943,057 2,767,580
1,243,716 857,418
487,072 423,260
18,809 ’
354,646 662,771
2,104,243 1,943,449
5,047,300 4,711,029
1,747,730 1,747,730
1,122 307
491,134 387,743
319,796 573,413
1,105,778 940,166
3,665,560 3,649,359
55,543 49,438
1,493 6,394
57,036 56,332
1,307,746 961,726
4,003 4,496
3,040 3,728
9,474 30,887
441 4,501
1,324,704 1,005,338
5,047,300 4,711,029
5
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes 1,279,082 1,684,824
Adjustments for:
Gain, net on disposal of property, plant and equipment (801) -
Depreciation and amortization of PPE and Intangible
assets 205,442 180,886
Actuarial losses, net 7,387 6,239
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement
benefit obligations 1,535 1,617
Interest income (2,660) (3,232)
Correction of inventory stocks and Provision for
obsolete inventory 19,225 49,484
Provision for unused holidays (net) 493 (5,576)
Fair value (gain)/losses, net (11,111) 1,484
Interest expense and bank charges 5,231 1,468
Write off and provision for trade receivables 400 978
NBV of disposed and written off PPE 3,141 12
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,507,364 1,918,184
Increase in trade and other receivables (64,214) (108,293)
Decrease in inventories (405,522) (197,243)
Increase in trade and other payables 336,815 317,896
Cash generated from operations 1,374,443 1,930,544
Interest expense and bank charges paid (5,231) (1,468)
Income tax paid (168,731) (165,215)
Net cash flows generated from operations 1,200,481 1,763,861
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (355,592) (223,225)
Increase of participation in subsidiaries (2,468) (21,593)
Expenditures for exploration and evaluation assets -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 973 12
Interest income received 2,660 3,232
Net cash flows used in investing activities (354,427) (241,574)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to group shareholders (1,094,487) (2,338,633)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (59,692) (123,300)
Net cash flows (used) in financing activities (1,154,179) (2,461,933)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (308,125) (939,646)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 662,771 1,602,417
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 354,646 662,771

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements 6
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje Z TITAN
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Share capital
Share Retained Other Reinvested
premium earnings Reserves profit
(Note 14)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2021 1,747,730 307 387,743 573,413 940,166 3,649,359
Profit for the year R _ 1.177.428 R _ 1177428
Other comprehensive
income (See note 8) - - - 14,932 - 14,932
Total comprehensive
income - - 1,177,428 14,932 - 1,192,360
DlVldendS, net _ _ (222’131) _ _ (222’131)
Advanced dividend _ _ (927 988) _ _ (927 988)
Transfer to retained earnings _ _ 382,056 (268,549) (140,362) (26,855)
Reinvested profit - - (305,974) - 305,974 -
Share options - 815 - - - 815
At 31 December 2021 1,747,730 1,122 491,134 319,796 1,105,778 3,665,560
On 25 May 2021, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining dividend for the year ended 2020
after the payment of the advanced dividend for the period 1 January - 30 September 2020 in accordance with the Company Law.
The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 528,105 thousand which consists of MKD 81,769 thousand profit from 2020,
MKD 140,362 thousand reinvested profit from 2015 and the remaining profit from 2020 in amount of MKD 305,974 thousand
was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such activities.
On 22 September 2021, the Bord of Directors brought a Decision for distribution of advanced dividend for the period January -
June 2021 in accordance with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 927,988 thousand based on the
approved statutory separate financial statements as of 30 June 2021 and for the six - month period then ended and transferred
revaluation surplus included in the Equity in relation to the item Property, Plant and Equipment directly to Retained Earnings, as
net amount of MKD 241,694 thousand and at the same time creating an obligation to pay the profit tax on revaluation reserves
when transferred to accumulated profit in amount of MKD 26,854 thousand. Transfers from Revaluation Surpluses to Retained
Earnings are not made through the Profit or Loss.
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Share capital Share Retained Other Reinvested
premium earnings Reserves profit Total
(Note 14)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
At 1 January 2020 1,747,730 - 1,274,071 557,613 996,625 4,576,039
Profit for the year R B 1.523.204 R _ 1.523.204
Other comprehensive
income (See note 7) - - - 15,800 - 15,800
Total comprehensive
income - - 1,523,204 15,800 - 1,539,004
Dividends, net ; - (1,330,530) ; . (1,330,530)
Advanced dividend R _ (1,135,461) R _ (1,135,461)
Transfer to retained earnings -
- - 210,161 - (210,161) -
Reinvested profit - - (153,702) - 153,702 -
Share options - 307 - - - 307
At 31 December 2020 1,747,730 307 387,743 573,413 940,166 3,649,359

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

1. Corporate information

Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje (“the Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje.

The Company’s main activity is production and trade with cement, masonry cement, ready mix
concrete, clinker and other related products. The main activity of the subsidiary in Bulgaria
Trojan Cem is support services for sale of cement on Bulgarian market. The main activity of the
domestic subsidiary ID Kompani is production of mill products. The domestic subsidiary owns
the Opalit DOOEL Cesinovo which main activity is other mining activities and exploration of
stones.

The Company is controlled by Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. registered in Netherlands, which
has 95% shareholding in the Company. As of 31 December 2021 Company’s ultimate parent is
Titan Cement International S.A. Belgium.

Officially starting from 1 July 2013, Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje has become a listed
company on the Macedonian Stock Exchange (under the sub-segment for mandatory listing). The
listed companies has continuing obligations to publish all price sensitive information, information
necessary for evaluating the current company’s condition.

The number of employees as of 31 December 2021 was 244 (31 December 2020: 243).

The Company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2022. These financial statements are subject to
approval from the Company’s Shareholders Assembly.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Company
Law (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia 28/04 with amendments 84/05, 25/07, 87/08,
42/10, 48/10, 24/11, 166/12, 70/2013, 119/2013, 187/2013, 38/2014, 41/2014, 138/2014,
88/2015, 192/2015, 6/2016, 30/2016, 61/2016, 64/18, 120/18, 239/18 and 290/20 and the Official
Gazette of Republic of North Macedonia no. 215/2021) and Accounting Principles applicable in
the Republic of Macedonia (“Macedonian GAAP”), which are in accordance to the new
Rulebook of Accounting published on 29 December 2009 (Official Gazette of Republic of
Macedonia 159/09, 164/10 and 107/11) effective from 1 January 2010. This Rulebook comprise
the basic text of IFRS's including SIC’s and IFRIC’s as issued by IASB at 1 January 2009.

In the period as of 31 December 2009 applicable standards were the International Accounting
Standards published in Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia which comprise the following:

e The revisions of International Accounting Standards, I1AS 1 to 1AS 39 were published on 30
December 2004, previously effective as of 5 November 1999. The effective date for all revised
standards is January 1, 2005. In addition, International Accounting Standards, IAS 40 and IAS
41 were published with the effective date 1 January 2005.

e On 10 February 2005 International Financial Reporting Standard 1 was published. The
effective date was set to 17 February 2005.

e On 29 December 2005 International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 2 to IFRS 7 were
published. The effective date was set to 30 December 2005.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

IFRS 9, IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IFRS 14, IFRS 15, IFRS 16, IFRS 17, IFRIC 18,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 21, IFRIC 22 and IFRIC 23 are not included in the Rule Book for
Accounting and are not applied by the Company.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
investment property that have been measured at fair value. The Company’s financial statements
are presented in Macedonian Denars (“MKD”) which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands (‘000) except when
otherwise indicated.

The Company as of 31 December 2021 has one foreign subsidiary, TROJAN CEM EOOD,
Bulgaria with 100% holding and one domestic subsidiary 1D Kompani Dooel import export
Kocani with 100% holding which has one subsidiary in its full ownership, OPALIT DOOEL v.
Cheshinovo - Obleshevo.

On 18 December 2017 the Company received Electricity trading license which raise certain
responsibilities towards the State Regulatory Committee. In 2019 only one transaction related to
trading of electricity and further no activities related to the license raised up.

The financial statements are prepared on accruals and going concern basis.

These are Separate Financial statements of the Company in which subsidiary is accounted at cost
less any impairment in value.

The Company has also prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with Accounting
Principles applicable in the Republic of Macedonia for the company and its subsidiary (the
'‘Group"). In the consolidated financial statements, subsidiary have been fully consolidated. The
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Company or website of the Macedonian
stock exchange.

Users of these separate financial statements should read them together with the group's
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 in order to
obtain full information on the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial
position of the group as a whole.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Investment in subsidiary

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. In the stand alone financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiaries is
presented at cost less any impairment in value. Distributions received in excess of accumulated
profits from the investor are regarded as a recovery of investment and are recognized as a
reduction of the cost of the investment.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
b. Operating segments

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Management and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Management is the person or group of persons
who allocates resources and assesses the performance for the entity.

In the Company, the above described functions of the Management are performed by Board of
the Directors of the Company. The internal reporting within the Company presented to the Board
of Directors is on a Company level and as one operating segment. The decisions brought by the
Board of Directors are based on received reports presented as one operating segment.

c. Comparatives

In order to maintain consistency with the current year presentation, certain items may have been
reclassified for comparative purposes. Material changes in disclosures, if any, are described in
detail in the relevant notes.

d. Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded, on initial recognition in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Monetary items of
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded in the period are
recognised as income or expense for the period in which they arise.

The exchange rates used for translation at 31st December 2021 and 31st December 2020 were as

follows:
Exchange rate: 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
MKD MKD
EUR 61.63 61.69
usD 54.37 50.24

10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
e. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

= those assets acquired up to 31 December 1998, the revaluation under the previous GAAP at
the date of transition of the Company to IFRS (1 January 2004) was accepted as deemed cost
since the revaluation was broadly comparable to depreciated cost under IFRS adjusted to
reflect changes in general price index.

= those assets acquired after 31 December 1998 are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and / or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Additions are recorded at cost. Cost represents the prices by suppliers together with all costs
incurred in bringing new property, plant and equipment into use.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from
the statement of financial position, along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Profit or Loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, with exception of quarries, is designed to write off
the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The principal depreciation rates in use are:

Buildings 2.5-10%

Equipment 5-25%
Land is stated in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment and is not depreciated
as it is deemed to have an infinite life, except quarries which are depreciated on a depletion basis.

This depletion is recorded as the material extraction process advances based on the unit of
production method. The asset’s methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end.

11
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f.  Investment property

Investment property, comprising of land, production premises with business offices and
construction object - restaurant and cafeteria room, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Company. The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the
market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including
the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on valuation performed by
independent valuer using the income method and the market comparison method as primary
valuation methods which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the income statement in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the cost for subsequent accounting
is the fair value at the date of change in use.

If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company’s accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date
of change in use. Any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the property in
accordance with IAS 16 and its fair value is treated in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with 1AS 16.

g. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest (geographically specific to the
concession, permit or mining license granted) is carried forward as an asset if a decision has been
made that a mining operation is economically feasible and can be developed for commercial
production. At the end of the reporting period, these costs include costs of acquisition of rights to
explore. All other exploration and evaluation expenditures are charged to the profit or loss as
incurred.

Administrative and general expenses relating to exploration and evaluation activities are expensed
as incurred.

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(i) Einancial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits and trade and other
receivables.

Subsequent measurement - Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method (EIR). The gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement in the moment when the loans and receivables are reversed or when the value is
decreased due to impairment, and through the amortization process.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested
for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in the
income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement- Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in in
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, excluding distribution
costs and administrative expenses. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Tools and consumable stores are written-off 100% when consumed.
j. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, the giro account and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of up to three months or less.

k. Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

I.  Share-based, long-term, incentive plan

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to members of senior management via Titan Group
share schemes that cover several subsidiaries. Currently, Titan Group has the following schemes: 1)
the share options plans (2014 and 2017) and 2) the long-term incentive plan introduced in 2020,
which concerns share awards.

A Titan Group share-based payment transaction is classified from the perspective of each reporting
Company, rather than by making a single classification determination that is applicable to all Titan
Group Companies.

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

I. Share-based, long-term, incentive plan (continued)

The Company participates in the 2020 long-term incentive plan, which is classified as cash-settled
in the financial statements of the Titan Group, but it is classified as equity-settled in the Company’s
separate financial statements, as the Company has no obligation to settle the award. Consequently, it
recognises the fair value of the awards as an employee benefits expense in profit or loss, with a
corresponding increase in equity.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted,
which is based on the parent’s share price on grant date. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which the specified service conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each period, the Company revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected
to vest based on the specified vesting conditions and forfeiture rate. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

m. Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
n. Employee benefits
Pension obligations

The Company, in the normal course of business, makes payments on behalf of its employees for
pensions, health care, employment and personnel tax which are calculated according to the statutory
rates in force during the year, based on gross salaries and wages. Food allowances travel expenses
and holiday allowances are also calculated according to the local legislation. The Company makes
these contributions to the Government’s health and retirement funds. The cost of these payments is
charged to the profit or loss in the same period as the related salary cost.

The Company does not operate any other pension scheme or post-retirement benefits plan and
consequently, has no obligation in respect of pensions.

Termination and retirement benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Pursuant to the Company’s signed collective bargaining agreements the Company is obligated to
pay retirement benefits in an amount equal to six average republic salaries and between one and
three average republic salaries to be paid out as a jubilee anniversary award. The number of
average republic salaries for jubilee anniversary awards corresponds to the total number of years
of service of the employee as presented in the table below:

Total number of Service Years Number of Wages
10 1
20 3
30 3
35 (women) 3
40 (men) 3

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Project
Unit Credit Method. According to the model, the probability of the cash outflow is estimated by
calculating probabilities of three decrements: death, invalidity and turnover rate. The probability
table is constructed by using assumptions about the probability of death of the employee up to the
date when he/she should retire, the probability that the employee will retire earlier due to
invalidity and the probability that the employee will terminate the service in the Company before
the date when he/she should retire. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using the discount rate from the
yields on the government bonds issued in North Macedonia in 2021 and classified by maturity.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
n. Employee benefits (continued)

Employee’s children scholarships

Starting from 31 December 2009, included in the actuarial calculation of defined benefits are
allowances for scholarships of Company employees children attending graduate or post graduate
studies and for diseased employee children that are attending secondary school.

Additional benefits at retirement

Starting from 31 December 2013, the actuarial calculation of defined benefits has been
supplement with calculation of the present value of the newly introduced long term benefit for
certain category of employees - additional benefits at retirement. The calculation is made on the
basis of the average parameters of the mentioned population and total expected amount for
payment, delivered by the enterprise.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

0. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The provisions comprise of provision for retirement benefits, jubilee awards,
scholarships and provision for rehabilitation of quarries. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to time values is
recognized as interest expense.

p. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods are transferred to the buyer.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
p. Revenue recognition (continued)
Rendering of services

Fees from services provided are recognized over the period in which the services are rendered and
accepted by the buyer.

Interest income
The interest relates to time deposit are accounted for at the expired date of time deposit.
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.

q. Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

r. Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

s. Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period, which provide evidence of conditions that exist as of the reporting
date, are treated as adjustable events in these financial statements. Those that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting date have been treated as non-adjustable events.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

t.  Financial risk management
Accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Provisions for environmental restoration

Companies that operate quarries and processing sites are required to restore these quarries and
processing sites at the end of their producing lives to a condition that is in line with the prevailing
environmental legislation of the country in which the Company operates (to restore the land
within 3 years after the closure of the mine site), to the level acceptable to the relevant authorities
and to the level that is consistent with the Company's environmental policies and practices.

The provision for environmental restoration reflects the present value of the expected future
restoration costs that are expected to be incurred for the areas that have been disturbed at the
reporting date. The provision is determined as present value of expected future cash outflows to
be incurred for sites rehabilitation. This includes determination of the amount based on
rehabilitation project, discount rate and expected inflation rates. The provision is re-measured at
every reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the present value of the future expenses required to
fulfil the obligation.

The present value of estimated restoration costs (that is, original estimation as well as changes in
the accounting estimates) are charged to the profit or loss unless they relate to property, plant and
equipment that is on the site, in which case the costs are included within property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the useful life of the related item of property, plant and
equipment.

Any change in the net present value of the environmental provision due to the passing of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected
to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Company considers the discount rate of the Central Bank of Republic of North Macedonia due to
the absence of the market of high quality corporate bond or government bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market.

20




TITAN

\}

Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
t.  Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other current financial assets mainly have short
term maturity. The nominal value less estimated loss due to impairment of assets and payables
with maternity less than one year is approximates their fair value. Financial liabilities included in
the category Trade and other payables mainly have short term maturity. For this reason, their
carrying amounts at the reporting date approximate their fair values. The fair value of the long-
term financial liabilities is determined by using discounted cash-flow valuation technique.

u. Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.. Where applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
most critical estimates and assumptions are discussed below.

a. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i) Useful lives of assets

The determination of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as any anticipated technological development and changes in broad economic or
industry factors. The appropriateness of the estimated useful lives is reviewed annually, or
whenever there is an indication of significant changes in the underlying assumptions.

Further, due to the significant weight of depreciable assets in Company’s total assets, the impact
of any changes in these assumptions could be material to Company’s financial position, and
results of operations. If depreciation cost is decreased/increased by 1%, this would result in
change of annual depreciation expense of approximately 2,054 thousand denars (2020: 1,809
thousand denars).
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2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

a. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(i) Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

The Company is assessing the impairment of identifiable property, plant, equipment and
intangibles whenever there is a reason to believe that the carrying value may materially exceed
the recoverable amount and where impairment in value is anticipated. The recoverable amounts
are determined by value in use calculations, which use a broad range of estimates and factors
affecting those.

Among others, the Company typically considers future revenues and expenses, macroeconomic
indicators, technological obsolescence, discontinuance of operations and other changes in
circumstances that may indicate impairment. If impairment is identified using the value in use
calculations, the Company also determines the fair value less cost to sell (if determinable), to
calculate the exact amount of impairment to be charged (if any). As this exercise is highly
judgmental, the amount of potential impairment may be significantly different from that of the
result of these calculations.

(iii) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Company calculates impairment for doubtful accounts based on estimated losses resulting
from the inability of its customers to make required payments as explained in section for
financial assets.

(iv) Provisions

Provisions in general are highly judgmental, especially in the cases of legal disputes. The
Company assesses the probability of an adverse event as a result of a past event to happen and if
the probability is evaluated to be more than fifty percent, the Company fully provides for the
total amount of the liability. The Company is rather prudent in these assessments, but due to the
high level of uncertainty, in some cases the evaluation may not prove to be in line with the
eventual outcome of the case.

(v) Fair value of investment property
The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent
value using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods
which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.
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3. Revenue and expenses
a. Sales
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Gross sales
Domestic market 3,162,487 3,125,431
Foreign market 1,713,657 1,426,986
4,876,144 4,552,417
Domestic market
Sales of cement 2,903,943 2,676,625
Sales of other products 258,544 448,806
3,162,487 3,125,431
Foreign market
Sales of cement 1,224,770 1,163,823
Sales of other products 488,887 263,163
1,713,657 1,426,986
Sales of other products consist of revenues from the sale of petroleum coke and coal, limestone,
RMC, clinker and bauxite.
b. Other revenues
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Transport of cement 101,817 115,882
Others 5,427 2,754
107,244 118,636
c. Cost of sales
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Production costs 2,608,961 1,919,278
Cost of traded goods 465,203 420,730
Depreciation 190,485 168,363
Distribution expenses 169,671 163,149
Inventory change (7,219) (26,997)
3,427,101 2,644,523

Production cost consist of kiln fuel, electricity, raw materials, concession fee and other variable
cost. Fixed costs which consist of cost of salaries and other benefits, contract labors, security
services, cost for quality test and other fixed cost such as cost for calibration, intellectual services

etc are also included in production costs.
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3. Revenue and expenses (continued)
d. Other operating income
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Revenues from sold materials 63,645 55,951
Rent income 20,081 17,420
Others 74,506 48,916
158,232 122,287
Others in amount of 74,506 thousand denars (2020: 48,916 thousand denars) includes mainly
stock count surpluses recognised during inventory count as of 31 December 2021 and re-
invoicing of cost for business premises.
e. Other operating expenses
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Cost of sold materials 59,528 54,949
Sales support fee 57,176 60,696
Others 68,078 100,267
184,782 215,912
Other expenses consist mainly of waste, spoilage, obsolescence of goods recognized during the
inventory count as of 31 December 2021 etc.
f.  Administrative expenses

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Technical support and know-how services 101,335 122,588
Promotion and advertisement 17,907 14,834
Depreciation 12,069 10,088
Other expenses 78,353 74,033
209,664 221,543

Technical support and know-how services consist of provided technical support and know-how
services as well as audit and legal fees. More specifically, technical support and know-how
services refers to engineering & technology services, procurement, finance services, information
technology, legal services, human resources, corporate and social responsibility, corporate
communications services etc. Other administrative expenses consist of salaries and related
expenses, accommodation, IT and telecoms, car expenses, provision for staff leaving indemnities

and retirement benefit obligation etc.
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3. Revenue and expenses (continued)
g. Net Finance income
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’ 000
Interest income 2,660 3,232
Bank charges (1,619) (1,414)
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement (1,535) (1,617)
Interest expense (3,610) (54)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (587) 7,145
(4,691) 7,292
4. Income tax expense
The income tax expense comprises of:
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Current Income tax 101,654 161,620
101,654 161,620
As of 31 December 2020, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:
2020
MKD 000
Net profit before income tax 1,684,824
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 168,482
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 8,540
Other compensations to the employees 2,465
Depletion of quarry 400
Entertainment 623
Scholarship 794
Sponsorship and donations 173
Write-offs and provision for bad and doubtful debts 2,871
Penalties and Withholding tax 1
Expenses not related to the main activities 944
Not collectable loans 269
Less:
Tax credit for collected loans (32)
Reinvested profit (15,370)
161,620
Effective tax rate 9.6%
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4. Income tax expense(continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:

2021
MKD 000
Net profit before income tax 1,279,082
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 127,908
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 5,394
Other compensations to the employees 1,542
Depletion of quarry 1,054
Entertainment 1,228
Scholarship 525
Sponsorship and donations 136
Write-offs and provision for bad and doubtful debts 40
Penalties and Withholding tax 611
Expenses not related to the main activities 145
Not collectable loans 100
Other 13
Less:
Tax credit for collected loans (231)
Withholding tax paid in abroad (820)
Reinvested profit (30,597)
101,654
Effective tax rate 8%

The periods that remain open to review by the tax authorities with respect to tax liabilities is 5 to
10 years, starting from the date of the submitted tax report. The taxation system is undergoing
continual revision and amendment. However, there are still difference interpretation of the fiscal
legislation. The tax authorities may have different approaches to certain issues in different
circumstances and assess additional tax liabilities together with additional payment interest and
penalties. The management of the Company also considers that the tax liabilities presented in
these financial statements are fairly stated. Although, the Transfer Pricing Study for period ended
31 December 2021 has not been finished yet, the management of the Company estimates that
there will not be a material impact on the result taking into consideration the Transfer Pricing
study for 2020 and considering that in 2021 there were some hew transactions.

For the part of the changes regarding transfer pricing the Company has obligation to report for
transfer pricing 2021 latest by 30 September 2022.
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5. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the ultimate parent by the weighted average of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. The following reflects the outcome and share data used in the basic EPS
computations

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders:
Continuing operations 1,177,428 1,523,204
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 1,177,428 1,523,204
Total comprehensive income attributable to ordinary
equity holders:
Continuing operations 1,192,360 1,539,004
Total comprehensive income attributable to
ordinary equity holders 1,192,360 1,539,004
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
basic EPS 563,784 563,784
6. Property, plant and equipment
Land and Construction
Buildings Equipment in progress Total
MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 3,672,790 4,980,285 175,634 8,828,709
Additions - - 349,872 349,872
Transfers from
Construction in Progress 2,574 198,397 (200,971) -
Transfer to Investment
Property (6,708) - - (6,708)
Disposals and write offs - (12,710) - (12,710)
At 31 December 2021 3,668,656 5,165,972 324,535 9,159,163
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 2,262,342 4,075,722 - 6,338,064
Charge for the period 45,740 154,279 - 200,019
Transfer to Investment
Property (4,683) - - (4,683)
Disposals and write offs - (12,539) - (12,539)
At 31 December 2021 2,303,399 4,217,462 - 6,520,861
Net book value
at 31 December 2021 1,365,257 948,510 324,535 2,638,302
Net book value
at 1 January 2021 1,410,448 904,563 175,634 2,490,645
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Cost

At 1 January 2020
Additions

Transfers from
Construction in Progress
Transfer to Investment
Property

Transfer to Intangible
Assets

Disposals and write offs
At 31 December 2020

Depreciation

At 1 January 2020
Charge for the period
Transfer to Investment
Property

Transfer to Intangible
Assets

Disposals and write offs
At 31 December 2020

Net book value

at 31 December 2020
Net book value

at 1 January 2020

Land and Construction
Buildings Equipment in progress Total
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
3,610,773 4,775,460 232,878 8,619,111
232 - 216,649 216,881
62,969 210,924 (273,893) -
(1,184) - - (1,184)
- (2,106) - (2,106)
(3,993) (3,993)
3,672,790 4,980,285 175,634 8,828,709
2,226,875 3,938,715 - 6,165,590
36,651 143,386 - 180,037
(1,184) - - (1,184)
(2,399) - (2,399)
(3,980) - (3,980)
2,262,342 4,075,722 - 6,338,064
1,410,448 904,563 175,634 2,490,645
1,383,898 836,745 232,878 2,453,521
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7. Intangible Assets

Construction in

Licences progress Total

MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 29,823 - 29,823
Additions - 5,719 5,719
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 5,719 (5,719) -
At 31 December 2021 35,542 - 35,542
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 16,118 - 16,118
Charge for the year 5,423 - 5,423
At 31 December 2021 21,541 - 21,541
Net book value at 31 December
2021 14,001 - 14,001
Net book value at 1 January 2021 13,705 - 13,705

Construction in
Licences progress Total

MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 21,372 - 21,372
Additions - 6,345 6,345
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 6,345 (6,345) -
Transfer from Property, Plant and
Equipment 2,106 2,106
At 31 December 2020 29,823 - 29,823
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 12,871 - 12,871
Charge for the year 848 - 848
Transfer from Property, Plant and
Equipment 2,399 - 2,399
At 31 December 2020 16,118 - 16,118
Net book value at 31 December
2020 13,705 - 13,705
Net book value at 1 January 2020 8,501 - 8,501
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8. Investment property
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Opening balance at 1 January 222,744 208,428
Gain/(losses), net from fair value adjustment 11,111 (1,484)
Revaluation reserves from fair value re-measurement 14,932 15,800
Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 2,025 -
Closing balance at period/year end 250,812 222,744

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax
effect. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent appraisal
using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods which
are generally accepted in valuation practice.

Investment property comprise of land, production premises and construction object - restaurant,
cafeteria room which is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the Company.

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD’ 000

Rental income derived from investment properties 18,970 17,420
Profit arising from investment properties carried at

fair value 18,970 17,420

During 2021, the Company changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to
investment property. Prior to this reclassification, they were carried in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As of 31 December 2021, the Company revalued its investment property based on a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting DOO Skopje. The valuation
model is in accordance with International Valuation standards 2017, Law on Valuation and
Methodology for valuation of property published in Official Gazette of RM.
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8. Investment property (continued)

The methodology used and key inputs to the valuation of the investment properties are as follows:

Methodology Inputs Ranges
Buildings plot Income method Vacancy rate 5%
Landlord costs 5%
Capitalization rate 9.12-9.49%

Land plot Market approach -  Asking prices of comparable land plots
sales comparison in the region of Municipality Kisela 35 to 100
method Voda -Skopje and similar other euro/m2

locations

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated landlord costs would result in a significant
lower (higher) fair value of properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the capitalization rate
in isolation would result in a significant lower (higher) fair value of properties.

As a result of the valuation, as of 31 December 2021 the carrying value of the Company’s
investment property is adjusted / increased for the amount of MKD 26,043 thousand. Part of the
gain in the amount of MKD 14,932 thousand resulting from fair value re-measurement at the
moment of change of use during 2021 from owner-occupied to investment property as explained
above, has been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation
reserve (See: Statement of changes in equity). Plus, the remaining fair value gain in amount of
MKD 11,111 thousand has been recognized in the Company’s profit and loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 (See Note 3d).

The fair value measurement was made using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair measurement is unobservable (level 3).

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during 2021.
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9. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and
evaluation of

mineral recourses Total
MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 17,845 17,845
De-recognition (16,625) (16,625)
At 31 December 2021 1,220 1,220
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 13,613 13,613
De-recognition (13,613) (13,613)
At 31 December 2021 - -
Net book value at 31 December 2021 1,220 1,220
Net book value at 1 January 2021 4,232 4,232
Exploration and
evaluation of
mineral recourses Total
MKD’ 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 17,845 17,845
At 31 December 2020 17,845 17,845
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 13,613 13,613
At 31 December 2020 13,613 13,613
Net book value at 31 December 2020 4,232 4,232
Net book value at 1 January 2020 4,232 4,232
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10. Inventories

Raw materials and fuel

Spare parts

Consumable stores

Finished goods

Semi-finished goods

Packing materials

Goods for resale

Prepayments for inventory purchase

11. Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors
Prepayments
Other current assets

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
597,195 231,897
291,573 277,622
219,514 221,288
63,397 82,874
40,720 17,180
29,209 24,877
867 401

1,241 1,279
1,243,716 857,418
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
325,991 297,139
127,962 75,388
33,119 50,733
487,072 423,260

Other current assets relate to receivables from rented land and PPE, receivables from re-invoiced
costs for rented premises, sold materials, accruals for insurance premium, accruals for receivables
for interest on forex bank deposit, receivables on disposal of tangible and intangible assets,
borrowings to the employees and other accruals and receivables.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0 - 75 days terms.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past

due nor

Total impaired

2021 325,991 203,981
2020 297,139 199,348

< 30 days

71,879
47,868

30-60 days

22,393
19,588

60-90 days

8,479
10,416

90-120 days

5,100
9,242
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12. Cash and cash receivables

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Bank deposits - 415,000
Cash at bank 354,646 247,771
354,646 662,771
13. Share capital
Number
Authorized, issued and fully paid of shares % holding
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 535,595 95%
each
Other shareholders - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 each 28,189 5%
563,784 100%
Amount
MKD 000
Share capital as registered
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 1,747,730
Dividends paid and proposed
MKD’000
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2020
Final dividend for 2019:
MKD 2,360.00 per share
Declared: 1,330,530
Paid: 1,330,465
Advanced dividend for 2020:
MKD 2,014.00 per share
Declared: 1,135,461
Paid: 1,131,468
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2021
Final dividend for 2020:
MKD 394 per share
Declared: 222,131
Paid: 222,120
Advanced dividend for 2021
MKD 1,646 per share
Declared: 927,988
Paid: 927,942

Dividends declared and paid entirely relate to cash dividends on ordinary shares.
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14. Other reserves

Investment
Asset revalu- Property
ation reserve revalu-
Statutory ation
reserves reserve Total
MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2020 268,551 174,772 114,290 557,613
Other comprehensive income - - 15,800 15,800
At 31 December 2020 268,551 174,772 130,090 573,413
Retained earnings (268,549) - - (268,549)
Other comprehensive income - - 14,932 14,932
At 31 December 2021 2 174,772 145,022 319,796

Investment Property revaluation reserve

During 2021, the Company changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to
investment property. Prior to this reclassification, they were carried in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As of 31 December 2021, the Company revalued its investment property based on a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting DOO Skopje. More details
regarding the valuation are disclosed in note 8.

As a result of a revaluation, as of 31 December 2021 the fair value of owner-occupied property
which was transferred to investment property was increased by MKD 14,932 thousand which was
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve (See:
Statement of changes in equity).

Legal reserves

According to Law on Trading Companies, the Company is required to have compulsory statutory
reserve established through appropriation of its net profits. With the changes of the Law on
Trading Companies effective from 1% January 2013, the Company is required to set aside 5
percent of its net statutory profit for the year in a statutory reserve until the level of the reserve
reaches 1/10 of the share capital. The Company has achieved the required minimum in prior years
and consequently no appropriation in 2021 has been made.
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15. Provision for retirement benefits

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Defined retirement benefit obligations 12,956 10,775
Defined jubilee anniversary award obligations 12,843 11,148
Defined scholarship obligations 23,316 23,175
Reservation for retention plan 9,468 8,068
58,583 53,166
Analyzed as:
Non-current portion 55,543 49,438
Current portion 3,040 3,728
58,583 53,166
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
At 1 January 53,166 50,254
Current service costs 5,203 4,638
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
obligations 1,535 1,617
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net 2,185 1,600
62,089 58,109
Benefits paid during the year (3,506) (4,943)
At 31 December 58,583 53,166
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss are as follows:
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
Current service costs 5,203 4,638
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
obligations 1,535 1,617
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net 2,185 1,600
8,922 7,855
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for change in the discount rate and wage growth as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 is as shown below:

2021
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease
In % In % In % In %
Retirement benefits
Impact on the net defined
benefit obligations (8.3) 10 114 (9.6)
Jubilee awards
Impact on the net defined
benefit obligations (7.5) 8.8 9 (7.9)
2020
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease
In % In % In % In %
Retirement benefits
Impact on the net defined
benefit obligations (8.1) 9.6 121 (10.3)

Jubilee awards
Impact on the net defined @) 8.2 9.1 (7.9
benefit obligations

The following payments are expected contributions to be made in the future years:

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000

Year 1 3,132 3,823
Year 2 5774 4,326
Year 3 5,156 6,235
Year 4 4,649 4,711
Year 5 4,496 4,205
Years 6-10 23,527 20,436
Over 10 years 102,174 89,877
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used in 2021 by the independent actuaries were as follows:

Mortality

The mortality of the employees until the date of retirement is estimated with the population
mortality table of the Republic of Croatia 2010 - 2012. Although the State statistical office of the
Republic in North Macedonia on a regular basis issues mortality tables, these tables are not
adequate for actuarial calculations due to the following reasons:

- The Macedonian mortality tables are not graduated and do not satisfy the required actuarial
properties.

- There has not been a census conducted in North Macedonia since 2002, so the methodology of
how the population tables is constructed for the period 2006 - 2008 is questionable.

Turnover rate

From the data analysis of the turnover scheme of all employees that were employed in the
Company since 1953, the data was classified into two categories: data for employees that were
employed in and after 1992 and data for employees that were employed before 1992. The reason
for such classification is the different dynamics in the turnover rates that is observed in the two
categories. Namely, from the data it is observable that the employees who were employed before
1992 have tendency to cancel their employment few years before retirement (after fulfilling more
than 12 years in service in the Company), thus not getting the lump sum payments on retirement,
which is not the case for employees who were employed in or after 1992 who usually cancel the
employment in the first 12 years of their employment in the Company.

The category of employees who were employed before 1992 are modelled as a runoff portfolio.
Having regarded that out of all employees who were employed on 31.12.2013-2020, in average
10% - 17% were cancelling their employment annually, for the purpose of the model for this
category of employees, 10% rate is used.

For the category of employees who were employed in or after 1992, the analysis of data shows
dependences between the annual cancelation rate and the number of years in service in the
Company of the employees who cancel their employment.

Invalidity

Due to unavailable data from relevant institutions for the rate of retirement due to invalidity, the
model is created on a manner that the Company will pay retirement benefits only for a regular
pension, i.e., the assumption used is that the retirement due to invalidity is zero. From the
actuarial practice the rates that are used for invalidity because of accident are less than 0.01%, so
including this assumption would not change the result materially.

Tax on personal income

For lump sum payments on retirement, a tax rate of 10% is applied only on 4 bases for the lump
sum payments because the tax on personal income according to the Law, is not paid on the lump
sum payment at retirement which is equal to the amount of two average monthly net salaries per
employee in the Republic of Nort Macedonia in the last three months. For scholarships, a tax rate
of 0% was used.
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

Rate of enrolling in primary i.e., secondary school, undergraduate studies, and graduate
studies

All the children of the employees who will die will enrol in primary i.e., secondary school, if they
fulfil the respective age constraints. 70% of the employees’ children (including the employees
who will die) will enrol in undergraduate studies if they fulfil the respective age constraints. 14%
of the employees’ children will enrol in graduate studies if they fulfil the respective age
constraints. For these models, an assumption has been used that the future monthly instalments
for all type of scholarships will be 10,738 denars. The used financial assumptions were as
follows:

Nominal annual increase of the average republic salary: 3%.

The calculation was based on the data for the average monthly net salaries for the period from
January 2009 to August 2021. To estimate the absolute monthly salary amounts for a certain year,
the percentage was applied to the base calculated as the average of the monthly net salaries paid
per worker in North Macedonia in the last twelve available months.

Discount rate: 3%.

The discount rate is derived from the yields on the government bonds issued in Nort Macedonia
in 2020 and classified by maturity. The average maturity of the Company’s obligations for all
types of benefit is 20 years, so the discount rate that is used in the model is calculated for this
maturity from the previously obtained discount rate curve.

16. Trade and other payables

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000

Trade creditors 1,178,109 777,333
Customer prepayments 83,909 108,072
Other current liabilities 32,648 42,861
Tangible assets creditors 13,080 33,460
1,307,746 961,726

17.

Other current liabilities relate to liability for net payroll, payroll taxes and social securities,
liabilities to employees from salaries, accrual for calculated obligation for concession fee and
other sundry creditors.

Contingences and Commitments

Contingent liabilities

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Bank guarantees 114,938 115,303
114,938 115,303
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17. Contingences and Commitments (continued)
As of 31 December 2021, the Company has obtained a Bank payment guaranties from:

- Halk Banka in favour of Makpetrol Prom Gas of MKD 39,000 thousand related to the
purchase of natural gas valid till 30 January 2023, in favour of Customs of MKD 15,000 thousand
valid till 15 December 2022 and MKD 15,000 thousand valid till 2 November 2022, in favour of
MEPSO AD Macedonia of MKD 2,388 thousand for transmission of electricity valid till 31
January 2022, in favour of AD Elektrani N.Macedonia of MKD 8,650 thousand for transmission
of electricity valid till 12 February 2022, in favour of Custom of MKD 23,700 thousand valid till
01 January 2022 plus MKD 11.200 thousand valid till 2 January 2022 for excise.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - company as lessee

The Company leases motor vehicles under lease agreements. The leases have varying terms and
clauses. The expenditures are recognised in the profit or loss for the period.

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Up to 1 year 5,313 6,313
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 9,622 10,702
14,935 17,015

In 2021 the Company leases 3 terminals (Ohrid, Strumica and Orovnik) under lease agreements.
The leases have varying terms and clauses.

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Up to 1 year 1,233 689
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 2,600 -
3,833 689

The Company leased Horizontal Mill from MILLKO under lease agreement.
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Up to 1 year 16,113 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 48,339 -
64,452 -

Purchase commitments

As of 31 December 2021, the Company has entered contracts for the purchase of electricity
amounting to MKD 33,195 thousand for the first quarter of 2022.
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17. Contingences and Commitments (continued)

18.

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of the business, claims against the Company may be
received. On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice, the
management of the Company is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect

of claims and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

Related party transactions

Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. owns 95% of the Company’s share capital.

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties:

a) Sales of goods and services

Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - services
Titan Cement Company - materials

Subsidiary:
Trojan Cem EOOD Sofija - cement
Trojan Cem EOOD Sofija - freight

Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - cement
Cement Plus Ltd - freight revenue
Cement Plus Ltd - materials
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - pet coke
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - clinker
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - bauxite
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - freight revenue
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - materials and services
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - sharrmal

SHARRCEM SH.P.K - fixed assets

Titan Cementara Kosjeric - clinker
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - freight revenue
Antea Cement SHA - services
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent
Opalit Dooel Skopje - materials and services

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’ 000
6,232 6,724
333 3,139

- 25,197

- 15,561
265,436 419,193
28,261 46,969

- 1
305,953 179,570
148,162 59,330
20,179 15,142
43,149 14,787
62,664 52,539
143,396 119,310
308 -
6,471 932
3,251 -
4,237 6,741
2,537 2,537
489 -
1,041,058 967,672
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18. Related party transactions (continued)

Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:

Receivables from related parties

Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - services
Titan Cement Company - materials

Subsidiary:
Trojan Cem EOOD SOFIJA - grey cement

Entities under common control:
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-clinker
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-pet coke
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-limestone and cement
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-materials and services,
bauxite
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - fixed assets
Antea Cement SHA - services
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent
Opalit Dooel Skopje - materials and services

b) Purchases of goods and services

Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - white cement and pet coke

Titan Cement Company - management support
Titan Cement Company - other
Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - sales support fee
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - other
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services
Opalit Dooel Skopje - pozzolana and services

Titan Zlatna Panega -grey cement, equipment, other

Antea Cement SHA - refractory and other

18. Related party transactions (continued)

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
2,702 3,643

- 3,139

278 30,831
68,587 29,241
63,226 36,139
9,733 12,842
1,064 16,713

308 -

3,317 3,717

249 250

47 -
149,511 136,515
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
106,216 118,331
97,699 118,597
14,671 3,357
57,176 60,696
5,800 4,628
16,146 16,164
38,008 4,207
5,252 324

- 1,031
340,968 327,335
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Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:

Payables to related parties

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - management support 46,303 60,920
Titan Cement Company - CAPEX 14,671 3,353
Titan Cement Company - WC, pet coke and services 23,319 35,921

Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd. - sales support fee 8,808 17,897
Cement Plus Ltd. - prepayments 49,506 66,712
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 13,392 13,098
SHARR CEM SH.P.K - other 1,035 711
Opalit Dooel Skopje - pozzolana and services 4,036 4,462
161,070 203,074

The Company enter into these transactions with the above related parties at mutually agreed
terms.

Key management compensation

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 109,747 98,201
109,747 98,201

Key management consists of Executive and extended Management Board of the Company.
Key management compensation in amount of MKD 109,747 thousand refers to salaries and other

short-term benefits of managers and other members of the key personnel of the Company for
2021.
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19. Expense by Nature
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Raw materials and others 1,130,657 903,495
Utilities 784,755 375,752
Cost of traded goods and services 465,203 420,730
Other material costs and services 341,845 304,770
Employees benefit expense 288,634 281,431
Depreciation 205,442 180,886
Distribution expenses 169,671 163,149
Maintenance (contract labor) 98,314 86,082
Management support services 97,699 118,597
IT & Telecoms 23,880 16,155
Promotion and advertisement 22,744 17,137
Travelling 11,077 10,351
Third party fees 3,636 3,991
Inventory change (7,219) (26,997)
Other expenses 36,727 44,368
Total cost of goods sold, selling and marketing and
administrative expenses 3,673,065 2,899,897

20. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company has
various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign
currency risk and credit risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarised below.

a) Market risk

Market risk is defined as the ‘risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices’ and includes interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk. The majority of the revenues of the Company are generated on domestic
market and the remaining part mainly generated on foreign market.

Expenses of the Company that arise are mainly arising from purchases on domestic and foreign
markets.

Management believes that is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and
growth of the Company’s business in the current circumstances. Nevertheless, future market
fluctuations cannot be predicted with accuracy.
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
b) Interest risk

The Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Change in the interest rates and interest margins may influence financing costs and returns on
financial investments.

Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income on time deposits with banks. As of 31
December 2021, the Company has no time deposits in banks (2020: MKD 415,000 thousands)
therefore 1% rise in market interest rate would have caused (ceteris paribus) the interest received
to increase with approximately 4,150 thousands annually for 2020, while similar decrease would
have caused the same decrease in interest received.

¢) Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal due to the fact that the majority of
foreign currency transactions relating to selling and purchases are denominated in EURO, which
was stable during all 2021. Also, domestic sales agreements are denominated in EURO.

For purposes of sensitivity analyses from foreign currency risk, Management used the
assumption of 1% increase of Foreign exchange rate of EUR which is considered reasonable
having in mind stable local currency against EUR during the past years. As of the 315 December
2021, if EUR would have been 1% (2020: 1%) weaker or stronger against MKD, profit would
have been MKD 2,698 thousand (2020: MKD 2,289 thousand) after tax in net balance higher or
lower, respectively.

The Company’s outstanding balances are as follows:

2021 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 354,646 186,025 168,621

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 359,110 191,186 167,924

Total assets 713,756 377,211 336,545

Liabilities

Trade payables 1,178,109 581,166 596,943

Other payables and current liabilities 45,728 36,296 9,432

Total liabilities 1,223,837 617,462 606,375

Net balance sheet exposure (510,081) (240,251) (269,830)
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
2020 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD
equivalent
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 662,771 611,923 50,848
Trade receivables and other current financial
assets 347,872 192,008 155,864
Total assets 1,010,643 803,931 206,712
Liabilities
Trade payables 777,333 353,665 423,668
Other payables and current liabilities 76,321 64,366 11,955
Total liabilities 853,654 418,031 435,623
Net balance sheet exposure 156,989 385,900 (228,911)

Prepayments and taxes are excluded from the tables above because they are not financial assets
and liabilities.

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company could not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time. The Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to
meet its commitments in the foreseeable future.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The table below summarises
the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Period ended 31 December 2021

On Less than 3to12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 1,017,039 - - - 1,017,039
Other payables - 45,728 - - - 45,728
Payables to related
parties - 161,070 - - - 161,070
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Period ended 31 December 2020

On Less than 3to 12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 574,259 - - - 574,259
Other payables - 76,321 - - - 76,321
Payables to related
parties - 203,074 - - - 203,074
e) Credit risk

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Company has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Company has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one customer. In addition,
to reduce this risk the Company has required as collateral bank guaranties and deposits.
Recognisable risks are accounted for by adequate provisions on receivables. As at 31 December
2021, there are no outstanding doubtful significant credit risks which are not already covered by a

provision for doubtful receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and short term borrowing receivables, the Company’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments. As at 31 December 2021, the Company's cash and cash equivalents
were held at short term deposits and current accounts in highly rated financial institutions.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise

shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, following
shareholders’ approval. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
periods ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Company monitors its equity capital using earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) for the year.

EBITDA

MKD’ 000
1,489,215

2021 2020
MKD’000

1,858,418

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The structure and

management of debt capital is determined at TITAN Group level.
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20.

21.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The impact of Covid-19 to Company’s performance in 2021, was minor. Considering the level of
Company’s current assets and the constant support from the Group, Management believes that it
has sufficient buffer to mitigate any potential future impact, in case the pandemic continues. In
2022, there is still some uncertainty, at the evaluation of the pandemic, which has been
incorporated into the budget of the Company, in order to plan and secure ample liquidity. Even at
stress test situation, Management believes based on previous experience and practice that Titan
Group will continue to provide financial support to its subsidiaries and to cover liquidity need, if
any.

Events after the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting period that would have impact on the 2021 Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position or Statement of Cash Flow.
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MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

LlenocHo ume: LiemeHtapHuua YCJE ALl Ckonje
Bupg Ha paborta: 450

Twn Ha roguHa cmeTka: MloguwHa cmeTka

Tun Ha gokyMeHT: [oguiiHa cmeTka

loguHa : 2021

Jlncta Ha npukaveHn JOKYMEHTU:
O6jacHyBayku GeneLkn n Apyru Npunosun
PuHaHCUCKM n3BeLTam

BunaHc Ha cocToj6a

UcnpaBka
HeTo 3a BpyTto 3a | Ha
O3Haka 3a o MpeTxoaHa
nuc TeKOBHa TEeKOBHa BpeaHocTa
Ao roguHa
roavHa roavHa 3a TeKOBHa
roguHa

- - AKTVBA: A HETEKOBHW CPEACTBA
1 (002+009+020+021+031) 2.943.057.091,00 2.767.578.924,00

- - LHEMATEPWUJAJTH/ CPEOCTBA
2 (003+004+005+006+007+008) 15.221.366,00 17.936.629,00
4 - - KoHuecun, naTeHTy, MULEHUM, 3aLUTUTHU 15.221.366,00 17.936.629,00

3HAUW M CNUYHM NpaBa

- - Il. MATEPUJANHW CPEOCTBA
9 (010+013+014+015+016+017+018+019) 2.638.301.778,00 2.490.644.175,00
10 - - HegBuxkHocTm (011+012) 1.353.848.944,00 1.398.600.667,00
11 - - 3emjuwTe 854.644.486,00 879.715.557,00
12 - - MpapexHun objekTn 499.204.458,00 518.885.110,00
13 - - MocTpojkn 1 onpema 929.050.110,00 885.962.620,00
14 - - TpaHcnopTHM cpeacTea 1.681.294,00 3.066.138,00
15 - - Anar, NoroHcKkM 1 KaHUenapucky UHBeHTap 17.779.159,00 15.535.703,00

n meben
18 - - MarepwjanHu cpeactsa Bo NOAroToBKa 324.536.732,00 175.634.464,00
19 - - OcTtaHaTtn maTepwujanHu cpeacTea 11.405.539,00 11.844.583,00
20 - - lll. BNOXYBAHA BO HEABWMXHOCTU 250.812.419,00 222.744.380,00

- - IV. JONrOPOYHN dUHAHCUCKU
21 CPELICTBA (022+023+024+025+026+030) 38.721.528,00 36.253.740,00
22 - - BnoxyBarba Bo Noapy>KH1LM 38.721.528,00 36.253.740,00

- - B. TEKOBHW/ CPEOCTBA
36 (037+045+052+059) 2.088.554.982,00 1.928.675.742,00
37 - - |. BANIUXU (038+039+040+041+042+043) 1.230.951.318,00 849.424.738,00
38 - - 3anuxu Ha CypoBUHM U MaTepujanu 775.413.095,00 411.027.734,00
39 - - 3anUX1 Ha PE3EPBHY AGNOBM, CUTEH 350.552.400,00 337.940.246,00

UHBeHTap, ambanaxa 1 aBTorymu
40 - - 3anuxi Ha HEOBPUIGHN NPOU3BOAY ¥ 40.721.738,00 17.181.424,00

nonyrnpoussoau
41 - - 3anuxu Ha roToBuU Npor3Boamn 63.396.745,00 82.874.602,00
42 - - 3anuxm Ha TProBCKW CTOKM 867.340,00 400.732,00
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3/15/22, 1:17 PM

MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

- - lll. KPATKOPOYHW NOBAPYBAHA
45 (046+047+048+049+050+051) 502.957.619,00 416.480.014,00
46 - - MoGapyBara of NoBp3aHN ApyLITBa 149.509.227,00 136.515.088,00
47 - - MobGapyBatba of, kynysauu 194.036.881,00 200.602.776,00
48 - - [obapysatea 3a AaneHm aBacu Ha 14.510.025,00 25.943.903,00
nobaByBaun
- - MobBapyBatba of ApaBaTa No OCHOB Ha
49 AGHOLM, NIPVAORECH, UAPNHA, KL U 33 133.501.192,00 50.723.112,00
oCTaHaTu JaBadku KOH ApXaBaTa ' ' ! ! ! !
(npetnnatm)
50 - - Mobapysaksa o BpaboTeHuTe 1.497.786,00 2.695.135,00
51 - - OcTaHaTu KpaTkopo4Hu nobapysara 9.902.508,00
- - V. MAPUYHM CPEOCTBA U MAPUYHN
59 EKBUBAJIEHTU (060+061) 354.646.045,00 662.770.990,00
60 - - MapwyHK cpepncTBa 354.646.045,00 247.770.990,00
61 - - MapwyHn ekBMBaneHTU 415.000.000,00
- - VI. IJTIATEHW TPOLWIOUW 3A WOHUTE
62 MEPNOON N MPECMETAHW NPUXOOM 15.687.812,00 14.773.562,00
(ABP)
- - BKYMNHA AKTUBA: CPEOCTBA
63 (001+035+036+044+062) 5.047.299.885,00 4.711.028.228,00
64 e PNARCHA EBURERLIIA - 19.900.146.770,00 16.876.859.044,00
--MACWVBA : A. MABHNHA N PE3EPBU
65 (066+067-068-069+070+071+075-076+077- 3.665.559.226,00 3.649.358.542,00
078)
66 - -1. OCHOBHA IMABHVHA 1.747.729.749,00 1.747.729.749,00
- - V. PEBAJIOPU3ALCKA PE3EPBA N
PA3MVKN OO BPEOHYBAHE HA
70 KOMMOHEHTV HA OCTAHATA 146.143.890,00 154.662.806,00
CEOM®ATHA JOBUBKA
71 - - VI. PESEPBU (072+073+074) 1.280.551.582,00 1.359.223.106,00
72 - - BaKkoHckuM pe3epsu 174.772.975,00 174.772.975,00
74 - - OcTaHatu pesepsu 1.105.778.607,00 1.184.450.131,00
77 - - IX. JOBMBKA 3A EJTOBHATA MOONHA 491.134.005,00 387.742.881,00
81 - - 5. OBBPCKW (082+085+095) 1.340.176.260,00 1.038.977.218,00
- - 1. JONrTOPOYHU PE3EPBUPAHA 3A
82 PUSVILIV M TPOLLOLI (083+084) 57.036.118,00 56.331.605,00
83 - - PesepBupara 3a neH3unu, OTIPEMHUHN 1 55.542.926,00 49.437.775,00
CMUYHM 06BPCKM KOH BpaboTeHnTe
84 - - OcTaHaTi JoNropoYHN pesepBupatba 3a 1.493.192,00 6.893.830,00
pY3nLM 1 TpoLloLum
95 '165'5\)" KPATKOPOHHIA OBBPCKW (08 096 A0 | 4 583 140.142,00 982.645.613,00
96 - - ObBpCKM cnpema noBp3aHn ApyLITBa 166.214.576,00 203.075.586,00
97 - - O6BpcCkU cnpema fobaByBaun 1.038.858.570,00 655.722.157,00
98 - - O6BpCKK 3a aBaHCK, AENO3UTU 1 KayLIMK 34.403.248,00 41.359.912,00
99 - - OBBpCKM 33 AAHOUM M NPVAOHECH Ha 4.859.030,00 4.693.357,00
nnaTta v Ha HagoMecTW Ha nnaTtu
100 - - O6BpcKM kOH BpaboTeHnTe 9.667.144,00 9.552.158,00
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101 - - TEKOBHM [AHOYHN 06BPCKU 9.496.307,00 37.756.481,00
102 - - Kparkopoury pesepauparea 3a puaiiun 7.042.684,00 8.224.407,00
TpoLuoum
106 - - OBBPCKM M0 OCHOB Ha y|eCTBO BO 441.030,00 4.500.947,00
pesynTaTtot
108 - - OcTaHaTtu KpaTKopPOYHM 0BBPCKU 12.157.553,00 17.760.608,00
- - V. ONJIOXKEHO MNAKAHE HA
109 TPOLLOUWM 1 MPWXOAW BO MOHNTE 41.564.399,00 22.692.468,00
MEPNOON (NBP)
- - BKYMHO MACWBA : TMABHUHA,
111 PE3EPBW 1 OBBPCKMN 5.047.299.885,00 4.711.028.228,00
(065+081+094+109+110)
- - B. BOHBUNAHCHA EBUOEHUMJA-
112 NAGUBA 19.900.146.770,00 16.876.859.044,00
BunaHc Ha ycnex
BpyTo UcnpaBka
O3Haka HeTo 3a Ha
3a MpeTxoaHa
3a Onuc TeKOBHa BpeaAHOCTa
TeKOBHa roguHa
AOI roguHa 3a TeKOBHa
roguHa
roguHa
201 - - 1. NIPMXOOW OO PABOTEHETO (202+203+206) 5.375.279.477,00 5.061.085.370,00
202 - - Mpwuxoawm op npofax6a 5.177.665.805,00 4.842.659.244,00
203 - - OcTaHaTu npuxoam 49.993.827,00 29.750.074,00
204 - - 3anMxu Ha roToBv NPOU3BOAN U HEAOBPLLEHO 100.056.026,00 75.760.796,00
NMPOU3BOACTBO Ha MOYETOKOT Ha roaMHaTa
205 - 3anvxu Ha rotosi NPOU3BOAV M HEOBPLIEHO 107.274.793,00 102.758.224,00
NPOU3BOACTBO Ha KpajoT Ha roguHaTa
206 - - KanuTanuaupaHo concteeHo Npou3BoACTBO M yCryru 147.619.845,00 188.676.052,00
- - ll. PACXOOW OO PABOTEHETO
207 (208+209+210+211+212+213+218+219+220+221+222) 4.100.343.111,00 3.411.964.095,00
208 - - TpoLuoLm 3a CypoBMHU U ApYyri Matepujanu 2.065.465.540,00 1.480.083.397,00
209 - - HabaBHa BpegHOCT Ha NpoaafeHuTe CToKu 449.056.966,00 404.566.107,00
- - HabaBHa BpegHOCT Ha nNpodajeHuTe matepujany,
210 pe3epBHM AenoBu, CUTEH MHBEHTap, ambanaxa n 59.527.425,00 54.948.220,00
aBTOryMu
211 - - Ycnyrv co KapakTep Ha MaTepujanHu TPoLLIoLM 707.694.674,00 670.110.447,00
212 - - OcTtaHatu Tpowoum o paboTeHeTo 163.635.635,00 151.966.217,00
213 - - Tpowouwm 3a BpaboteHn (214+215+216+217) 310.277.131,00 308.034.762,00
214 - - MnaTti n HagomecTouu Ha nnara (HeTo) 175.136.456,00 172.373.492,00
215 I-_”-_I;Tp:mouw 3a JaHoUM Ha nnaTu U HagoMecToLM Ha 16.750.986,00 16.505.108,00
216 - PWAOHECK OA 3AA0MKUTENHO CoLMjanHo 74.107.516,00 72.976.731,00
ocurypyeatbe
217 - - OcTaHatu Tpolloum 3a BpaboTeHute 44.282.173,00 46.179.431,00
218 -7 /AMopTv3auvja Ha matepujanHTe u 205.441.406,00 180.884.671,00
HemaTepwjanHuTe cpeacTea
219 - - BpegHocHo ycornacyBate (06e3BpenHyBare) Ha 3.011.460,00 1.484.000,00
HeTEeKOBHM cpeacTea
220 - - BpegHocHo ycornacysatse (06e3BpeHyBate) Ha 399.729,00 28.344.848,00
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TEKOBHWTe cpeacTBa

221 - - Pe3sepBupara 3a Tpowiouu 1 pusmum 14.094.019,00 11.723.714,00

222 - - OcTaHaTtu pacxoau og paboTeHeTo 121.739.126,00 119.817.712,00
- - lll. ®UHAHCUCKW MPUXOON

223 (224+229+230+231+232+233) 13.506.961,00 17.798.965,00
- - ®MHaAHCUCKN NPUXOAN Of OAHOCK CO NOBP3aHn

224 [pyWITBa (225+226+227+228) 886.284,00 678.595,00

227 - - Mpnxoan No OCHOB Ha KypCHW pa3nukn og pabotere 886.284,00 678.595,00
CO MOBp3aHu ApyLITBa

230 - - Mpwnxoau no ocHoB Ha kamaTtu of paboTewe co 2.659.861,00 3.231.730,00
HenoBp3aHu ApyLUTBa
- - [Mpuxoam No OCHOB Ha KypCHU pa3nuku of paboTtere

231 CO HEMoBp3aHN ApPyLLTEA 9.960.816,00 13.888.640,00
- - V. ®MIHAHCUCKWN PACXOOM

234 (235+230+240+241+242+243) 16.579.910,00 9.094.208,00
- - dUHaHCUCKM pacxoamn of OAHOCK CO MOBP3aHU

235 [pyWTBa (236+237+238) 385.634,00 875.007,00

237 - - Pacxoam no ocHOB Ha KypcHW pasnuku of pabotere 385.634,00 875.007,00
CO NnoBp3aHu ApyLwTBa

239 - - Pacxogm no ocHoB Ha kamaTu of paboTere co 5.145.364,00 1.671.694,00
HenoBp3aHu ApyLUTBa

240 - - Pacxogm no ocHOB Ha KypcHUW pasnuku of paboTtere 11.048.912,00 6.547.507,00
CO HEenoBp3aHu ApyLITBa
- - fobuBka of penoBHOTO paboTekse (201+223+244)-

246 (204-205+207+234+245) 1.279.082.184,00 1.684.823.460,00

250 '2;fg)°6“‘3"a NPEn onaHouyBate (246+248) um (246- | 4 599 087 184,00 1.684.823.460,00

252 - - [laHok Ha pobuska 101.653.779,00 161.619.603,00
- - HETO JOBUMBKA 3A JEJNTOBHATA TOOVHA (250-

255 252+253-254) 1.177.428.405,00 1.523.203.857,00
- - MpoceyeH 6poj Ha BpaboTeHn BP3 OCHOBA Ha 4YacoBu

257 Ha paboTa BO NPecMeTKOBHMOT nepuog (BO anconyTeH 249,00 252,00
M3HOC)

258 - - Bpoj Ha Meceun Ha paboTerse (BO anconyTeH U3HOC) 12,00 12,00

259 - - JOBUBKA/3AIYBA 3A MEPVOL 1.177.428.405,00 1.523.203.857,00

260 - - NobuBKa Koja UM npunara Ha umaTenuTe Ha akuum 1.118.556.985,00 1.444.536.988,00
Ha MaTUYHOTO APYLUTBO

261 - - NobuBka Koja UM Npunara Ha HEKOHTPONUPaHO 58.871.420,00 78.666.869,00
y4ecTBO

264 - - BAPABOTYBAYKA MO AKUWNJA 2.088,00 2.702,00

265 - - BkynHa ocHoBHa 3apaboTtyBayka no akuuja 2.088,00 2.702,00

269 - - lobuBka 3a roguHarta 1.177.428.405,00 1.523.203.857,00
- - OcTaHara ceondatHa fobuBka

271 (273+275+277+279+281+283) - 14.932.000,00 15.800.000,00
(274+276+278+280+282+284)

279 - - MpomeHn Ha peBanopusaunckuTe pe3epsu 3a 14.932.000,00 15.800.000,00
HETEKOBHW CPeAcTBa

286 - - Heto octaHaTa ceondpatHa fobumeka (271-285) 14.932.000,00 15.800.000,00

288 - - BkynHa ceondpaTtHa gobuveka 3a roguHata (269+286) 1.192.360.405,00 1.539.003.857,00
unu (286-270)

289 - - CeondpaTtHa gobuBka koja UM npunara Ha umaTtenute 1.132.742.385,00 1.459.520.987,00
Ha aKkuMn Ha MaTMYHOTO APYLITBO
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- - CeondpaTtHa goburBka koja npunara Ha

HEKOHTPONIMPaHOTO y4eCTBO

‘ 59.618.020,00

79.482.870,00

OpxaBHa eBMAeHUMja

OsHaka 3a
Aon

Onuc

HeTo 3a
TEeKOBHa
roguHa

BpyTo 3a
TEeKOBHa
roguMHa

UcnpaBka
Ha
BpeAHocTa
3a TeKOBHa
rogvHa

MpeTxoaHa
roguHa

609

- - Bemjuwta

854.644.486,00

879.715.557,00

612

- - CeraluHa BpegHOCT Ha rpafexHu objekTn
of BUCOKorpaaba Kou ce kopuctaT 3a
BpLUeH-e aejHocT (< unu = AOIM 012 og BC)

444.678.603,00

462.181.735,00

613

- - CerawHa BpefHocT Ha 0bjekTn of
Huckorpagba (< unun = AOIM 012 oa BC)

54.525.855,00

56.703.375,00

614

- - CerawHa BpegHoCT Ha UHopmauucka
onpemMa v TenekomyHukauumcka onpema (<
unm = AOIN 013 og BC)

2.037.789,00

1.897.335,00

615

- - CeraluHa BpegHOCT Ha KoMnjyTepcka
onpema (< nnm = AOI 013 og BC)

13.719.404,00

12.351.863,00

626

- - Mobapysaka no ocHoB Ha npogaxba Ha
CTOKM 1 YCNyrn 1 aBaHCK JafeHun Ha
HeUHaHCMCKV TProBCKY ApYyLUTBA BO
npueaTHa u Ap>aBHa CONCTBEHOCT U jaBHU
npenpujatuja Bo 3emjata (< nnu=A0r
006+AO0I1 017+A0IM 030+ AOI 046+ AOI
047+A0IM 048 Of BC)

184.107.547,00

199.860.353,00

628

- - OctaHaTtv nobapyBara of HedMHAHCUCKN
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHa 1 ApXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT Y jaBHU Mpenpujatunja Bo
3emjata (< nnm=AO0I1 034+ AOIM 046+ AOI
047+A0IM 051+ AOIN 062 Of BC)

9.902.914,00

406,00

629

- - OcTaHaTtu nobapyBara of opraHu Ha
3aKOHOAAaBHa, M3BPLUHA W CyAcKa BNacT,
SrMNOCM,d»30PCM,ABPCM, eamHnum Ha
riokanHa camoynpasa v apyry npasHu nuua
duHaHcupaHm of byuet (< nnnu= AOT
034+A0IM 035+A0I 047+A0IM 049+A0IN
051+AOIN 062 O BC)

133.501.192,00

50.723.112,00

630

- - NMobapyBaksa No ocHoB Ha npogaxba Ha
CTOKM W YCNYrn 1 aBaHCK 1 ocTaHaTu
nobapyBsara o cuTe cybjekTu BO 3emjaTa u
cTpaHcTBo (< unn=A0I1 006+A0IN 017+AOTl1
030+AO0IM 034+A0IM 035+ AOI 046+ AOI
047+AO0TI1 049+ AOI 050+A0IM 051+AOTI
057+A0IM 062 Of BC)

491.881.532,00

395.113.186,00

631

- - OcHOBHa rnaBHWHa (CONCTBEHNYKN
KanuTtan) Bo yaenu nocegysaHu of Apyru
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHa 1 ApXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT Y jaBHU Mpenpujatunja Bo
3emjata (< unn =AOI1 065 og BC)

4.743.000,00

4.743.000,00

632

- - OCHOBHa rnaBHMHa (CONCTBEHUYKM
KanuTan) Bo yaenu noceayBaHu of, (husnykm
nvua, TProBuUM NOeANHLM, 3aHaeT4uu,
3emjogenuu, caMoCTOjHU BPLUUTENN Ha
AeJHOCT 1 HeNnPOUTHN OpraHu3aLmm
perucTpupanu Bo 3emjata (< unm =AO0I1 065
og BC)

82.624.300,00

82.624.300,00

635

- - O6BpCKM NO OCHOB Ha HabaBka Ha CTOKM 1
ycryru n aBaHcm (KpaTKoOpO4YHU TPrOBCKM
KpeauTn) NnpuMeHn o HedMHAHCUCKN
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHa 1 ApXXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT 1 jaBHU Mpenpujatuja Bo
3emjata(< unm =AOIlN 096+AO0I 097+ AOI
098+A0IM 108 O BC)

595.336.988,00

384.038.960,00
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- - OcTaHaTtn 06BPCKM KOH HE(MHAHCUCKN
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHa 1 ApXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT Y jaBHU Npenpujatuja Bo
3emjata (< nnm=A0I 092+AO0I 093+A0I
096+ AOIN 106+ AOI 107+A0IM 108+ AOI
109 O BC)

27.674.020,00

36.308.268,00

638

- - OcTaHaTy 06BPCKM KOH OpraHu Ha
3aKOHOAAaBHa, M3BPLUHA M CyACKa BNacr,
SrMNOCM,d30PCM,ABPCM, eamHnum Ha
riokariHa camoynpasa 1 Apyrv npasHu nvua
duHaHcupaHm of 6yuet (< nnn=A0rl
092+AO0I1 093+A0IM 094+ AOI 099+ AOIN
101+ AOI 107+A0I 108+ AOM 109 OA BC)

20.003.768,00

46.131.862,00

639

- - OBBpCKU MO OCHOB Ha TPrOBCKW KPeanTu,
aBaHCu 1 ocTaHaTy 06BPCKM KOH cuTe
cybjekTn BO 3emjata U CTPaHCTBO (BKYMHO) (<
unn=AO0TI1 092+A0I1 093+AO0TI1 094+ AOIN
096+ AOI 097+ AOI 098+ AOI 099+ AOM
100+ AOI 101+ AOIM 107+AO0I1 108+ AOI
109 Of1 BC)

1.316.927.247,00

992.310.556,00

643

- - Mpuxoau oa npogax6a Ha NnpoussBoau,
CTOKM W YCNyrn Ha JoMalleH nasap (< unm =
AOIM 202 og BY)

3.255.336.113,00

3.216.168.695,00

644

- - Mpuxoaw of npoaax6a Ha Npon3Boaw,
CTOKV W YCINyTvi Ha CTpaHcky nasap (< unu =
AOIM 202 og BY)

1.890.382.242,00

1.602.840.574,00

647

- - Mpuxogu og HaemHuHa (< nnm = AOI 202
on BY)

27.189.858,00

18.893.025,00

648

- - Mpuxogu og HaemMHWHa Ha 3emjuwiTe (<
unn = AOI 202 op BY)

4.757.592,00

4.756.950,00

654

- - Mpuxogu og Buwoum (< unu = AOIN 203 og
BY)

14.640.092,00

9.118.009,00

658

- - Mpuxogu og cy6BeHumm (< unu = AOIN 203
og bY)

3.458.059,00

717.638,00

661

- - OcTtaHaTu npuxoam op paboTereTo (< nnm
= AOIN 203 og BY)

19.850.864,00

19.914.427,00

668

- - TpoLwoum 3a CypoBuHM 1 MaTepujanm (<
unun = AOI 208 og BY)

618.248.444,00

499.225.918,00

669

- - Orpes, ropuBo 1 masmsa (< unun = AOI
208 op BY)

14.849.144,00

18.052.855,00

671

- - KaHuenapuckn matepujanm (< unn = AOr
208 o bY)

1.483.981,00

1.212.241,00

672

- - Tpowouw 3a ambanaxa (< unu = AOIN 208
oa BY)

125.524.066,00

116.670.793,00

673

- - YHudopmu-3awtutHa obneka n obysku (<
unn = AOI 208 op BY)

4.828.965,00

4.197.663,00

674

- - MaTepujan 3a uncterse 1 ogpxyBame (<
unn = AOI 208 og BY)

774.901,00

918.735,00

676

- - MoTpoLueHa enekTpuyHa eHepruja (< unu =
AON 208 op BY)

798.103.809,00

380.171.084,00

677

- - MoTpolexn eHepreTckn ropusa (< unu =
AOI 208 op BY)

437.004.268,00

403.033.146,00

678

- - [NoTpoLueHn pe3epBHN JenoBu 1
maTepwujanu 3a ogpxysarse (< unu = AOM
208 op BY)

63.040.146,00

55.374.316,00

679

- - OTNMC Ha CMTeH MHBEHTap, ambanaxa u
aBTorymu (Bo npounseoacTeo) (< unu = AOIM
208 op BY)

1.607.816,00

1.226.646,00

680

- - TpaHcnopTHM ycnyrn BO 3emjaTa (< unm =
AOIM 211 og BY)

153.577.557,00

129.437.495,00

681

- - TpaHCMOPTHM YCryrn BO CTPAHCTBO (< unn

53.710.128,00

77.393.277,00
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= AOIN 211 og BY)

682 - - TITT yenyrv 8o semjata (< = AOT 211 2.819.696,00 2.936.933,00
og bY)
- - Mpon3BOACTBEHUN U 3aHAETUUCKM yCnymm (<

685 wm = AOM 211 oz BY) 218.716.289,00 184.010.939,00
- - HaeMHUHK 3a oenoBHU NpocTOpuK BO

686 3emjata (< unm = AOIM 211 og BY) 1.017.000,00

687 - - HaemHukm 3a onpema (< vnm = AT 211 6.992.142,00 7.802.079,00
on BY)
- - EpHokpaTteH HagomecTok BO BMA Ha

693 ucnpaTHuHa 3apagm TpajHo paboTHO 9.443.921.00 11.871.039.00
aHraxuvipare nog ycrosu yTBpAEHU CO 3aKOH T e
(< unu = AOIN 217 on BY)

695 - - Perpec 3a ropwien oawop (< uw = AT 7.801.917,00 8.408.110,00
217 op BY)

696 - - Momowtn (< unu = AOMM 217 og BY) 1.221.919,00 553.836,00
- - OHeBHULM 3a cryx6eHn naTyBama,

698 HoKeBarsa W naTHW Tpowoum (< unun = AOT 3.338.899,00 2.707.360,00
217 opg BY)
- - HagomecTu Ha TpowouuTe Ha

700 BpaboTeHuTe 1 nogapoum (< unu = AOIN 217 11.853.342,00 6.594.381,00
og BY)
- - HapomecTu 3a 0gBOEH XUBOT (< Unu =

702 AOM 217 op BY) 80.280,00 574.621,00

703 - - Ionapouy Ha paGoTenuTe (< unn = AOT 1.597.591,00 1.604.056,00
217 op BY)
- - Tpowoum 3a opraHu3mpaHa ncxpaHa Bo

704 TeKoT Ha paboTa (< unn = AOT 217 o BY) 8.944.304,00 8.331.714,00
- - HapomecTu Ha aHraxupaHa pabotHa cuna

706 npekKy areHuu1Te 3a NpuBpeMeHn 236.130,00 2.128.487,00
BpaboTyBarsa (< unm = AOIN 217 op BY)

709 - - PenpeseHTauuja (< vnu = AOIM 212 og BY) 13.639.508,00 6.922.170,00
- - Mpemwnu 3a ocurypyBare Ha UMOT (< Unm =

710 AO 212 op BY) 8.394.054,00 5.815.625,00
- - HapomecT 3a 6aHkapcku ycnyrum (< unu =

711 AOT 212 op BY) 1.619.354,00 1.413.180,00
- - laHouu Kou He 3aBucart of pe3ynTaToT (<

712 wu = AOT 212 op BY) 1.968.682,00 819.159,00
- - UneHapvHu Ha 3gpyXeHujaTa BO 3emjaTa u

714 CTpaHCTBO (< nnm = AOM 212 oz BY) 457.706,00 382.868,00
- - HagomecTouu 3a noBpemMeHu un

715 npuspemenn padotu (< unm = AOIN 217 og 2.125.979,00 2.177.919,00
BY)
- - OcTaHaTtu Tpowoum Ha paboTereTo (< nnm

717 = AOTI 212 op BY) 135.430.352,00 125.791.403,00
- - Ka3Hu, neHanu HagomecToum 3a WTETU U

718 apyro (< unn = AONM 222 on BY) 19.138,00 5.228,00

721 - - Ncnnatenn ausnaeHan 1.154.179.277,00 2.461.933.192,00

722 -- I'IpoceﬂeH 6poj Ha .Bpa6OTEHVI Bp3 OCHOBa 244,00 243,00
Ha cocTojbaTa Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT
- - MpoceyeH 6poj Ha BpaboTeHu BO

723 ceauvLTeTo Ha Cy6jeKToT Bp3 OCHOBA Ha 244,00 243,00
cocTojbaTa Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT

724 -- .Epoj Ha MOAPYXHWLIM BO KOW Ce BpLUM 3,00 2,00
AejHocT, 6e3 cegnLTETO Ha cy6jekToT

https://e-submit.crm.com.mk/aaol/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid=3XtIKSxrRLZB40olK184tQ%3d%3d&uid=SvBIHkPzPCBIijRvs3yiTS%2f... 7/8
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MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

CTpyKTypa Ha npuxoau no gejHocTu

UcnpaBka
OsHaka 3a Hero 3a Bpyro 3a Ha MpeTxogHa
Onuc TEeKOBHa TEeKOBHa BpeAHoCTa P
Aorm roguHa
roguHa roguHa 3a TeKoBHa
roguHa
- 08.11 - Bagere Ha gekopaTMBEH KaMeH U
2047 KaMeH 3a rpagexHuULLTBOTO, BapOBHWK, CypOB 115.167.507,00
rMnc, Kpeaa v LWKpunum
2166 - 23.51 - [pon3BOACTBO Ha LEeMEHT 4.414.724.681,00
2170 - 23.63 - Npou3BoacTBO Ha rotToBa GeToHcka 98.900.103,00
cmeca
2370 - 46.71 - Tprosuja Ha ronemo co LBPCTU, TEYHN 387.943.693,00
1 racoBUTW ropvBa W CIINYHN NPOU3BOAU
2372 - 46.73 - Tprosuja Ha ronemo co Apsa, 152.621.161,00
rpagexeH matepujan u caHMTapHa onpemMa
2376 - 46.77 - Tprosuja Ha ronemo co oTnagouu n 3.886.289,00
ocTaTtoum
- 52.21 - YcnyXHu AejHOCTM NoBp3aHu co
2431 KOMHEHVOT NPEEO3 101.816.816,00
- 64.99 - [ipyrn puHAHCUCKO-YCIYXXHU
2478 [€JHOCTU, OCBEH OCUTYpYyBak-€ U NEH3NCKN 13.506.961,00
hPOHAOBM, HECTIOMHATKN Ha APYro MecTo
2490 - 68.10 - KynyBarbe 1 npogaxba Ha concTeeH 800.908,00
HeaBWKEeH UMOT
- 68.20 - ViapaBarse 1 ynpaByBahe CO
2491 COMCTBEH HeABWKEH UMOT UIU HEeABWKEH UMOT 31.947.450,00
3eMeH nog 3aKyn (NM3uHr)
- 82.99 - OcTtaHaT 4enoBHM MOMOLLIHU
2545 YCMY>XHU OEejHOCTWN, HECMTOMHATK Ha ApYro 67.470.869,00
MecTo

MoTnuwaHo oAa:

Gabriela Barlakoska

CN=KIBSTrust Issuing Qsig CA G2,
0OID.2.5.4.97=NTRMK-5529581, OU=KIBSTrust
Services, O=KIBS AD Skopje, C=MK
KIBSTrust Issuing Qsig CA G2

M3jaByBaM, noa MmopariHa, MaTepMjanHa 1 KpUBMYHa OAroBOPHOCT, AeKa nogaTtounTe BO roauwiHaTa cMeTka ce TOYHU U BUCTUHUTW.

MopaTtoumnTe oa roguwHaTa CMeTKa ce BO NocTanka Ha 4ocTaByBake, koja ke 3aBpLum co oanyka (ogobpyeane/onbvBare) o cTpaHa Ha
LleHTpanHuot Perucrtap.

https://e-submit.crm.com.mk/aaol/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid=3XtIKSxrRLZB40o0lK184tQ%3d%3d&uid=SvBIHkPzPCBIjRvs3yiTS %2f...
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OBJACHYBAYKU BEJIEHIKHA

1. Ol T HHOOPMAIINU

Hemenrtapuuma “Ycje” AJl - Ckomje (“HpymrtBoTo”) e ocHoBaHO BO PemybOnmka CesepHa
MakenoHuja. co perucTpupano ceaumre Ha boprc Tpajkoscku 6p.94, Cxomje.

OcHoBHata AejHOCT Ha JIpyIITBOTO € MPOM3BOACTBO M TProOBHja CO LEMEHT. yCjeMmal. TOTOB OETOH.
KIMHKEp W JPYTH Tpou3Boau oj neMeHT. OCHOBHAaTa JI€jHOCT HA TMOJpYXKHHIaTa BO byrapuja e
YCIyTH 3a TOIApIIKa Ha Tmpomakbara Bo byrapwja. OcHOBHAaTa aKTHBHOCT Ha JOMallHaTa
NOJPY>KHHUIA € MPOU3BOACTBO HAa MEIHUYKH NPOU3BOAM. JloMamniHaTa MOApYy>KHHUILA € COIICTBEHUK Ha
Onamut JIOOEJI YemuHoBO, 4Mja TJaBHA JEjHOCT € APYTH PYJAPCKH aKTHBHOCTH U HCTPAXKyBamhe
KaMema.

HpywmrBoTto e koHTposnupaHo ox Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. co cemumre Bo Xonanguja. Koj
nocenysa 94.84% on akummre Ha JpymTBoto. Bo 2019 rommHa mojme mo mpoMeHa BO MaTHYHATa
kommanuja Ha [pymroto. On 31 mekemBpu 2019 rogmHa, MaTHyHa KommaHHja Ha [IpymTBOTO €
Titan Cement International S.A. Bbenruja. Ilperxogna matmuHa kommanuja Oeme Titan Cement
Company S.A. I'pryja.

Odurmjanao ox 1 jyau 2013 romuna , llemenrapauma “Ycje” AJ] - Ckomje cTaHa KOTHPAayKoO
JIpymTBO Ha MakemoHckara Gepsa (o omnen 3amopkuresHa kotauja). Co men aa He ce co3aaje
JaKHa CIIMKA Ha Ma3apoT 3a XapTUH OJ1 BPEAHOCT. KOTUPAHUTE JIPYIITBA MMAAT MOCTOjaHO OOBPCKH a
ru 00jaByBaaT CUTE LIEHOBHO YYBCTBHUTEIHU MH(POpMaIuu, HHGpopMauyu noTpeOHH 3a MPOIeHKa Ha
MOMEHTAJHATA COCTOj0a Ha IPYIITRATA.

Bpojot Ha Bpabotenu Ha 31 nekemBpu 2021 roguna e 244 (2020: 243 BpaboTeHn).

DUHAHCUCKUTE U3BeIITau Ha J[pymTBOTO 3a rojuHaTta mTo 3aBpuryBa Ha 31 mekemBpu 2020 roauHa
ce ogobpenu on ctpana Ha OnoopoT Ha aupektropu Ha 24 despyapu 2021 roguna. OBue GUHAHCUCKH
M3BEIITaH ce TpeaMeT Ha ofo0pyBame ox CoOpaHueTo Ha aknnoHepHu Ha [pymTBoTo.

2. OCHOBA 3A IIOAI'OTOBKA HA 'TOAUIINHATA CMETKA

lNogumaaTta cMetka Ha JlpyIITBOTO € MOJATOTBEHA BO COTJIACHOCT CO 3aKOHOT 3a TPrOBCKH JIPYIITBA
(Cnyx0en BecHuk Ha PermryOmuka Maxkenonuja 6poj 28/04 co m3menute 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10.
48/10. 24/11. 166/12. 70/2013. 119/2013. 187/2013. 38/2014. 41/2014. 138/2014. 88/2015 u
192/2015, 6/2016, 30/2016, 61/2016, 64/18, 120/18, u 239/18) U CMETKOBOJACTBEHUTE IPHHIIUITH
(“makemoncku OIICIT”). xkom ce ce BO COrIacHOCT CO HOBHOT [IpaBWIIHMK 3a BOJCHE Ha
CMETKOBOACTBO o0jaBeH Ha 29 mekemBpu 2009 roguna (CinyxOeH BecHUK Ha PemyOnmka Makemonuja
159/09. 164/10 u 107/11) npumennus ox 1 janyapu 2010 rogmna. OBoj [IpaBHIHHMK TH COIOPKH
QXYPHUPAHUTE U COOJIBETHO TpeBefcHUTe MelyHapo HU CTaHAapau 3a (PMHAHCHCKO M3BECTYBAahE T.C.
OCHOBHHOT TEKCT Ha MeryHapoJHHUTe CTaHAapAd 32 (PHHAHCUCKO HM3BECTYBame€ BKIyUyBajKd TH H
IIKT u KTM®MU kako mito ce ob6jaBenu oz crpana Ha MACBH 3axiyuno co 1 janyapu 2009 roauna.

Bo mnepuwomor 3akmyuno co 31 gmekemBpu 2009 roaumHa Bo mnpuMeHa Oea MelyHapoOIHHTE
CMETKOBOJICTBeHH CcTaHIapau oOjaBeHU Bo CiyxOeH BecHHWK Ha PermyOmmka MakeqoHHja Kako IITO
cienu:
) PeBuaupanute meryHapoaHu cMmeTkoBoacTBeHH craHmapau, MCC 1 mo MCC 39 6ea
o0jaBenu Ha 30 nexemBpu 2004 roguHa, MPETXOIHUTE CO BAXXHOCT 0J1 5 HoeMBpu 1999 ronuna.
JlatyMoT Ha cramyBame BO CHJIa Ha CHTE peBUAMpaHH cTaHmapau € 1 janyapu 2005 romuHa.
Merynaponaure cmetkoBoAcTBeHN cTanmapan, MCC 40 w MCC 41 ce o0jaBeHH H cTaIryBaat
BO cuia Ha | janyapu 2005 roauna.
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. Ha 10 despyapu 2005 rogmHa e¢ o0jaBeH MeryHapOIHHOT CTaHAapi 3a (PHHAHCHCKO
u3BectyBame 1. [larara Ha cranyBame Bo cuia e 17 despyapu 2005 ronuHa.

. Ha 29 nexemBpu 2005 roanHa ce o0jaBeHn MelryHapogHHUTE CTaHIAApAM 32 (PUHAHCHCKO
m3BectyBambe, MCOU 2 mo MCDU 7. latymoT Ha cramyBame Bo cmwia ¢ 30 nexkemspu 2005
TOJIMHA.

MC®U 9, MCOU 10, MCOU 11, MCDOU 12, MCDU 13, MCDU 15, MCDPU 16, KTMDU 18,
KTM®U 19, KTM®U 20 u KTM®U 21 He ce BkiryueHu BO [IpaBUIIHUKOT 3a CMETKOBOJICTBO U HE C€
MPUMEHETH O] CTpaHa Ha J[pymTBoToO.

logumaata cmeTka Ha JIpymITBOTO € MOATOTBEHA Bp3 OCHOBAa HA UCTOpPHCKA HabaBHAa BPEIHOCT.
TlomumHaTa cMeTka Ha JpymTBOTO € Ipe3eHTHpana Bo Makenoncku aeHapu (MKJ/I) u cute u3HOCH ce
320KPYKEHH BO HajOIMCKHOT u3HoC BO mijanu (‘000) ocBEeH ako He € MOMHAKY HABECHO.

JpylITBOTO 3aKIIyYHO CO U3BECTYBAYKUOT MEPUOJ UMa eHa cTpaHcka noapyxHuia, TROJAN CEM
EOOD byrapuja Bo 100% corncteHocT Ha JIpyIITBOTO U eHA JoMallHa noApyxHuia, U] Komnanu
Hooen excmopt Kowanu Bo 100% comnctBenoct Ha pymrBotro. W] Kommanu mak uma egHa
MoJIpyXHHUIa BO cBoja meinocHa corctBeHocT, OITAJIUT JJOOEJI c. YemmHoBo - OOiemieBo.
ITonatamy, Ha 28 jymu 2015 romwmna, [[pymTBOTO permcrpupaire HOB MaraiuH Bo ceino OpOBHHK
(6mmzy Oxpum) 3a CTpaTeNIKo MPUCYCTBO Ha CBOMTE MPOU3BOAM BO Jyro3amaaHHUOT €] Ha ApXKaBaTa.
3a uctata uein, ox 03.08.2017 roguna dpymTBOTO MMa perucTpupaHo HOB MarauuH Bo butona. Ha
11.06.2018 roguna e peructpupad HoB Mararud Bo Ctpymuria u Ha 22.07.2021 rogwHa HOB MararimH
Bo OGuemreBo. Maranmuot Bo burona e 3aTBopeH Bo janyapu 2018 roamna. Ha 18 nexemspu 2017
roguHa JpymrTBoTo 10OM JTHUIIEHIA 3a TProBHja CO EIEKTPUYHA EHEpruja co Koja HOCHU OIPEICHU
OJITOBOPHOCTH KOH [Ip>kaBHaTa perynaropHa komucuja. Bo 2019 ronnHa uma camo efHa TpaHCaKIHja
MOBpP3aHa CO TPTrOBHja CO eNEeKTPUYHA €Heprija U MMOHAaTaMy He ce CIyd4rie aKTUBHOCTH TIOBP3aHU CO
JUIIEHLATA.

[Moapy>kHUIaTa ce €BUACHTHPA BO OBHE MOCAMHEYHU (HUHAHCHCKH M3BEIITAW MO HabaBHA BPEIHOCT
HaMaJjeHa 3a OMII0 KakBO 00€3BpEIHYBamkbE HAa BPEIHOCTA.

#

3. 3HAYAJHU CMETKOBOACTBEHU IIOJIMTUKA

a. BuaoxkyBama BO moapy:KHULM

[onpyXHUIM ce cUTE EHTUTETH BO KoM JIpymTBOTO MMa MOK Aa Biajgee co (UHAHCHUCKHTE U
OIICPAaTUBHHUTE IIOJUTUKH, TJIABHO HPONpPATEHa CO COICTBEHOCT Ha IOBEKE O]l €lHa IOJIOBUHA O]
riacaykute mnpasa. [locToemeTo W ePeKTOT O TOTCHIUWjaHUTE TIIacadykh TpaBa KOM IITO BO
MOMEHTOT C€ Ha paclojlaram¢ MM MaK MOXaT Ja Ce KOHBEPTUpaaT Cce 3emMaaT BO NpEABUA NpHU
yTBpIyBame Ianu J[pymrBoTo MMa KOHTpOJa HajJ eHTUTeToT. HabaBHAaTa BPEAHOCT HAa CTEKHATHOT
SHTHUTET Ce yTBP/yBa criope] 00jeKTUBHATA BPEJHOCT Ha JaICHUTE CPEACTBA, N3AAICHUTE KAaUTaTHNA
WHCTPYMEHTH U OOBPCKUTE HACTAHATH WJIM MPETIIOCTABEHH Ha AATyMOT Ha pa3MeHaTa, 3rojieMeHa 3a
TPOLIOIMTE KOM JAUPEKTHO MOXKE Ja Ce NPHIUINAT Ha CTEKHYBameTo. Bo oxnenHuTe (HHAHCHUCKH
u3BemTan Ha JIpymrTBOTO, BIOXKYBama BO IOJPYKHMIATA C€ NPHKa)KaHH MO HabaBHA BPEIHOCT
HamajeHa 3a o00e3BpeqHyBamke Ha BpeIHOCTA. AJIONMpaHHTe €(QEeKTH KOM ja HaJMHHYBaaT
aKyMmyJiupaHata IOOHMBKa Ha NOAPYKHHIATa CE€ CMETaaT Kako MOBpaT Ha BIOXKYBAamETO U Ce
NpU3HABAaT Kako HaMaJyBambe Ha Ha0aBHATa BPEHOCT HA BIIOXKYBAKETO.

0. OnepaTuBHU CerMeHTH

OHepaTI/IBHI/ITe CETMCHTH C€ KOMIIOHCHTH KOU CC aHTaXupaaT BO JACJIOBHOTO pa60Te}be KOH MOXXaT Ja
3apa60TaT Npuxoau MW KOU MNPCAU3BUKYBAaT TPOIIOLKU, KOU OICPATUBHU PE3YJITATU CEC PEAOBHO
CJICACHU O] CTpAaHA HAa PAKOBOJACTBOTO U 3a KOU (I)I/IHaHCI/ICKI/I I/IH(I)OpMaLII/II/I CC OOCTaIlHH.
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PakoBoiCcTBOTO € nuIle WM Tpyla Ha JMIA KOM aJolupaaT pPecypcd M KOW TH IPOIEeHyBaaT
nepdopmancure Ha pymTBoTo.

DyHKIIMUTE Ha PAKOBOJCTBOTO C€ M3BpLIyBaaT oJ cTpaHa Ha bopaotr Ha mupexTopu Ha pymTBoTO.
MHTEpHOTO M3BECTYBAaKkE BO paMKUTE Ha J[pyIITBOTO KOE CE€ MPE3eHTUpa Ha PakOBOICTBOTO € HAa HHUBO
Ha JIpylmITBOTO KaKo e[ieH onepaTuBeH cerMeHT. OMyKuTe JOHECEHU O cTpaHa Ha PakoBoACTBOTO ce
0a3upaHy Ha IPIMEHN U3BEIITaN IPE3CHTHPAHN KaKO €/IeH OIepaTHBEH CETMEHT.

B. Kommaparueu

Co 11671 1a ce OJPIKU TOCISAHOCT CO MPEe3eHTallMjaTa Ha TeKOBHATA TOIMHA, OAPEICHA CTAaBKU MOKEOH
ce mpeknacu(uIUMpaHd 3a cHopenOcHH Iend. MaTepujalHUTe MPOMEHU BO 00€IoJIeHYBamAara,
JIOKOJIKY TH MIMa, C€ JIETaJTHO OIHIIAHHA BO COOJIBETHUTE OEIEeIIKH.

r.HpeBe)IyBa}be Ha CTPAHCKH BAJIYTH

TpaHcakuy BO CTpaHCKa BalyTa ce BOJAT MO WHHUIIMjATHOTO NMPU3HABAHE BO U3BECTYBAYKaTa BalyTa.
CO TIpeTBapame€ Ha HM3HOCOT BO CTPaHCKa BajyTa IO KypCOT MOMEry H3BECTyBaukaTa BalyTa M
CTpaHCKa BalyTa Ha JICHOT HA M3BPIIyBamke HA TPaHCAKIMjaTa. MOHETAPHUTE CTABKU JICHOMUHUPAHU
BO CTpaHCKa BallyTa C€ CBEIyBaaT BO JEHApCKa IPOTHUBBPEAHOCT KOPHCTEJKHU Kypc KOj BaKH Ha
JATYMOT Ha W3BeCTyBame. KypCHUTE pa3JIMKu KOM TPOM3IIEryBaaT OJ  IPETBapameTo Ha
MOHETapPHUTE CTAaBKH 10 KypC KOj C€ pa3iiuKyBa OJi KypCOT 10 KOj THE OWJIe WHUIIM]AJTHO MPUKaXKAHH
BO MEPUOJIOT, C€ MPU3HABAAT KaKO MPUXO]T UK PACX0J BO MEPUOIOT BO KOj Ce MOjaByBaar.

KypceBure kou BakaT Ha AaTyMOT Ha HU3BecTyBame, 31 gekemBpu 2021 u 31 nexemBpu 2020 ce kako
IITO CJIEAYBa:

Kypc: 31 nexempu 2021 31 nexemspu 2020
MK/ MK/

EYP 61,63 61,69

YCJ 54,37 50,24

. HenBH:KHOCTH, TOCTPOjKH W onpemMa
HenBmxHOCTH, OCTPOJKU | ONIPEMa, CE€ CBHICHTUPAAT KaKO IITO CIEIH:

=  3a cpeacrBara HabOaBeHH 10 31 nexemBpm 1998 romwHa, peBanopu3anjaTa HampaBeHa BO
cornacHocT co mperxomaute OIICII, Ha matymot Ha pudakame Ha MCOP ox crpana Ha pymTBOoTO
(1 janyapu 2004 ronuHa) e mpudaTeHa Kako MPETIOCTaBEH TPOIIOK OWejku peBajopu3anujara oerie
OpUOIIKHO eHaKBa Ha TPOIIOKOT 3a amoprtu3anmja crnopen MCOP koperupan 3a mopacToT Ha
MHJIEKCOT Ha [IEHW Ha MHIyCTPUCKUTE MPOU3BOJUTEIH.

=  CpexacrBara HabaBenu o 31 gekemBpu 1998 rommHa ce eBUACHTHpaar 1O HaOaBHA BPEIHOCT
HaMaJeHW 3a aKyMyJHMpaHaTa aMOpTH3aldja W TOCIeIOBaTeHUTE aKyMyJMpaHH 3aryOu mopanu
00e3BpIACHYBabE.

HabaBkute ce eBuaeHTHpaar 1mo HabaBHa BpeqHocT. HabaBHaTa BpeqHOCT mpeTcTaByBa HabaBHa IeHa
o n00aByBauoT 3a€IHO CO CHTE TPOIIONM HACTAHATH IPU CTaBalke BO YIOTpeba HAa HOBaTa
HEJBHKHOCT, TTIOCTPOjKa 1 OIpeMa.

CraBKkuTe Ha HEIBH)KHOCTH, IIOCTPOjKM H OIpeMa KOM ce OTIUINyBaaT MM OTTyyBaar ce
CIMMHUHMpPAaT OJf M3BEIITAjOT 3a (UHAHCHUCKA COCTOjOa, 3aeIHO CO COOABETHATA aKyMyJUpaHa
amoprtuzanuja. [loOMBKHUTE WM 3aryOuTe OF OTYIYBamETO CE€ ONpeleslyBaaT CcO CHOPEoyBame Ha
NPUXOJIOT CO CMETKOBOJACTBEHATA BpEAHOCT. THe ce BKIIydyBaaT BO JJOOWBKaTa WK 3aryoarta.
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[MocnenoBaTeHUTE TPOIIOLYU CE BKIYUYECHH BO CMETKOBOACTBEHATA BPEIHOCT HA CPEJCTBOTO WIIH CE
MPHU3HABAAT KaKo MOCEOHO CPEICTBO. COOABETHO. CaMO KOTa € BEpOjaTHO JIeKa MJIHUTE SKOHOMCKH
KOPHUCTH TOBP3aHU CO MPEAMETOT K& OMAaT M3BeCHH 3a J[pyImITBOTO M TPOIIOKOT MOKE BEPOIOCTOJHO
na ce m3mepu. CUTe OCTaHATH IOMPAaBKH W OAPXKYBame Ce MpU3HaBaaT BO buiaHcoT Ha ycmex 3a
BpeMe Ha (PMHAHCHUCKHOT MEPHOJ BO KOj THE CE HANIPABCHHU.

AMopTu3anjaTa Ha HEABIDKHOCTHTE, IOCTPOJKUTE W ONpeMara € YTBpACHa 3a Ja ce OTIHIIe
Ha0aBHATa BPEIHOCT MJIM IPOICHETaTa BPEIHOCT HA HEABMXKHOCTUTE, TIOCTPOJKUTE U OMpeMara Bp3
OCHOBA Ha IMPaBO-IPONOPIIMOHAIIHA METOIa BO TEKOT Ha MPOILEHETHOT KOPUCEH BEK Ha ymoTpeda Ha
cpencrBata. OCHOBHHUTE aMOPTHU3ALMOHN CTAIKH CE CIECTHHUTE:

3rpamu 2,5-10%
Omnpema 5-25%

3eMjaTa ce eBUACHTHPA BO M3BEIITAjOT 32 (GMHAHCHCKA COCTOj0a 1o HabaBHATa BPEIHOCT HAMaJICHA 3a
UCIIPaBKUTE MOpaau 00E3BpeJHYBamE¢ U HE CE aMOpPTH3Upa, OWJCjKH ce TMPETIOoCTaByBa AeKa MMa
HEOTPAaHUYCH BEK Ha TPacHke, OCBEH 32 PYJHUIUTE KOU CE aMOPTU3UPaaT BP3 OCHOBA Ha CTEIICHOT Ha
ucrpreHoct. McuprneHocta ce eBHACHTUPA KaKo MPOIIEC HA MaTEPUjATHO M3BICKYBAkE, @ CE KOPUCTH
METOJIOT Ha €IMHMIIA Ha MPOU3BOJICTRO.

MetoauTe Ha aMOpTH3alMja, KOPUCHUOT BEK Ha ymoTpeOa M pe3uyanHaTa BPeJHOCT Ha CpelcTBaTa
ce IIPEOLIEHYBaaT Ha CEKOj 1aTyM Ha M3BECTYBAabE.

. BioxyBama BO HeABHKHOCTH

BrnoxyBamara BO HEJJBIDKHOCTH, TJIABHO CE COCTOHM OJI 3€MjHUIIITE, MPOU3BOIHU O0jEKTHU CO JEIIOBHU
KaHIeJapuH U TpajJe:KeH 00jeKT - pecTopaH U KadeKkyBapHHUIIa KON HEMaaT CBOja HAMEHaA, U Ce YyBaaT
3a JIONTOPOYHO W3HAJMyBaWke M HE ce KOpHCTaT on cTpaHa Ha JlpymrBoTo. BnoxyBamara BO
HEJIBUKHOCTH ce BOJaT 1o (ep BPEIHOCT, OJJHOCHO Ma3apHa, Koja I'M Ofjpa3yBa Ma3apHUTE YCIOBU Ha
JEHOT Ha W3BecTyBame. J[OOMBKHTE WM 3aryOMTe KOM MpPOM3JIEryBaaT O MPOMEHHUTE BO ¢ep
BPEIHOCTA Ha BJIOXYBamara BO HEJBH)KHOCTH CE COCTABEH JieNl Ha OWJIAHCOT HA yCIeX BO MEPUOJOT
BO KOj UCTUTE HACTaHyBaaT, BKJIYIYBajKd TH M COOJBETHHUTE MaHOYHH edekTH. IlazapHaTa BpemHOCT
ce OoJlpeyBa Ha OCHOBa Ha MPOIEHKA CIPOBEAEHA OJf HE3aBHCHHU TPOLECHHUTENH KOM TO KOpPHCTAT
METO/OT Ha MPUXOIU U MOJENOT Ha Ma3apHH YCIOBH KaKO OCHOBHHM MOJECIHM Ha TPOLIEHKH KOH Ce
ommito nmpudateHu Bo EBporckaTa mpakca.

BrnoxyBamara BO HEABMIKHOCTH CE JNEMPU3HABAAT KOra Ke OWAaT OTTYICHH WIIM Kora THE TPajHO Ke
OmmaT MOBJICYCHH O] ymoTpeda a WIHa eKOHOMCKa KOPHCT He ce OYeKyBa OJf HHBHATa Mpoaakoda.
Pasznukara momery HETO MPUIIMBUTE OJ MPoAax0a U CMETKOBOJACTBEHATA BPEIHOCT Ha CPEJCTBOTO CE
NpU3HABa BO OWJIAHCOT Ha YCIEX BO MEPHOIOT KOra CPeICTBOTO € JCTPU3HACHO.

[IpeHocoT BO WM 01 BIIOKYBaka BO HEABM)KHOCTH C€ MPaBHM Kora MMa MPOMEHAa BO yrmoTrpedara Ha
CPEICTBOTO. 3a MPEHOC O] BIOXKYBaWke BO HEABIXKHOCT BO CPEIICTBO KOE C€ KOPUCTH OJf CTpaHa Ha
HpymTBoTO, HabaBHATa BPEIHOCT BO IOCJIEAOBAaTEIHATA CBUACHIIM]ja HA CPEICTBOTO € 00jeKTUBHATA
BPEJHOCT Ha TOA CPEICTBO HAa JaTyMOT KOTa € HalpaBeH MPEHOCOT.

JIOKONIKY CpeACTBO KO€ ce KOPUCTH OJ CTpaHa Ha J[pylmITBOTO ce TpeHece BO BIOXKYBama BO
HEJIBUKHOCTH, BpEIHOCTAa HA TOoa CPEICTBO C€ YTBPAyBa BO COMIACHOCT CO MOJNUTHKATa 3a
HEJIBMDKHOCTH, MTOCTPOJKH M OTpeMa JI0 JaTyMOT Kora € HallpaBeH MpeHocoT. JpymrBoTo Tpeda aa ja
TpeTHpa CeKoja pasivKa Ha JAaTyMOT MOMEly CMETKOBOJCTBEHATA BPETHOCT HAa HEJBUKHOCTUTECBO
cornmacHocT co MCC 16 n HuBHaTa 00jeKTHBA BPEIHOCT, Ha UCT HAYWH KaKO M peBajopH3anmjaTa BO
cornmacHoct co MCC 16.
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e. CpencrTBa 3a HCTpaXKyBame U BpeIHYBamhe

W3natormre 3a MCTpaKyBambe M BpeAHYBame (reorpad)cku Bp3aHO 3a KOHIIECHjaTa, J03BOJIaTa WM
omobpeHara pyaapcka JIMIEHIA) Ce KalWTAIW3UpaaT U Ce MPU3HABAaT KAaKO CPEJACTBO JOKOJKY €
OJUTyYEeHO O]l CTpaHa Ha PaKOBOACTBOTO JI€Ka PyIapCKUTE aKTHBHOCTH €KOHOMCKH CE€ ONpaBIaHU U
MOJKE Jla C€ pa3BHjaT 3a KOMEPIIMjaTHO MPOU3BOACTBO. Ha KpajoT Ha MEepHO0T Ha U3BECTYBAkE, OBUEC
TPOIIONM TH BKIy4YyBaaT TpOIIOIUTE 3a CTEKHYBake HA KOHIIECHH 3a JICTATHH TEOJIONIKU
ucTpaxyBama. CUTE IPyTH U3aTOIH 32 HCTPAXKYBALE U BPEIHYBabe Ce MPU3HABAAT KaKO TPOIIOK BO
OMITAHCOT Ha YCIeX BO MOMCHTOT HAa HUBHOTO HACTaHYBAIbE.

A,I[MI/IHI/ICTpaTI/IBHI/ITC U ONUITH TpOoIIOoHnMW IMOBP3aHU CO MHCTpaXyBamaTa U BpCAHYBamaTa CC
IIpU3HaBaaT KaKoO TPOIIOIU BO OMJIaHCOT Ha yCe€x BO MOMCHTOT Ha HUBHOTO HAaCTaHYBambC.

K. DOUHAHCHCKH HHCTPYMECHTH - I/IH]([III/Ija.]'IHO NMPU3HABAILE U MOCJIEA0BATEITHO MEPECIHE

DUHAHCUCKH CPEJICTBA

Hnuyujanno npusnasarve

Crnopen MCC 39, ¢uHaHCHCKHTE cpelcTBa ce Kiacu(puIHpaaT Kako (UHAHCHCKH CPEICTBa II0
00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy NOOMBKaTa WIIM 3ary0aTa, 3aeMH U MoOapyBamba, WHBECTHIHMH KOU CE
qyBaaT [0 JIOCHEBame, (UHAHCHCKH CPEICTBA PACIONOXKIMBU 3a TMpojakda WM JEepUBATHUBU
OTIpe/ieNIeHH KaKO XEMHT HHCTPYMEHTH BO €()EKTHBEH XCIIMHT, COOABETHO. [IpyIITBOTO ja yTBpAYyBa
KiacudukanmjaTa Ha PUHAHCHCKUTE CPEICTBA MPH UHUIMjAITHOTO NPH3HABAE.

duHaHCHCKNTE CpelCTBAa MHUIMJATHO C€ NPHU3HABAAT MO OOjeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT IUTYC IMPEKTHO
MIOBP3aHHUTE TPAHCAKIIMOHU TPOLIOIH, BO CITy4aj KOTra BIIOYKYBamara ce BPeJHYBaar 1o BPEJIHOCT Koja
€ pasnuYHa o]l 00jeKTHBHATA BPEIHOCT NMpeKy MoOmBKa win 3aryba. HaGaBkarta wmm mpomaxbara Ha
(MHAHCUCKHTE CpeAcTBa KOM MOoApa30HpaaT HCIopaka Ha CPeACcTBa BO BPEMEHCKH NIEPUO YTBPICH CO
MpaBHA peryjiaTUBa WIX TMa3apHa croronda (peIoBeH HAUMH Ha Ha0aBKa) ce MPU3HABAAaT HA AATYMOT
Ha TpaHCakIMjaTa T.e. AaTyMOT Ha Koj ApymTBoTO ce 00Bp3yBa a KU WM IPOJaAe CPEACTBO.

DUHAHCUCKHTE CpelacTBa Ha JpylITBOTO BKIydyBaaT Napd M MAapUYHHU CPENCTBA U KPATKOPOUYHHU
JEeTI03UTH, mobapyBama o/ KyllyBadH U OCTaHATH 0OapyBama.

Tlocnedosamennu mepersa

[TocnenoBaTenHnTe Mepema Ha (DMHAHCHCKHUTE CPEICTBA 3aBHCAT OJ HUBHATA KIACHU(HUKAIHja, KaKO
LITO CIEIHN:

DUHAHCUCKY CPEACTBA eBUAEHTUPAHM MO 00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT MPeKy A00MBKA WU 3aryda

DUHAHCUCKH CPEICTBA EBUICHTHpPAHU IO OOjeKTHBHA BPETHOCT NPEKy JHOOMBKA MM 3aryba
BKITy4yBaaT (PMHAHCUCKU CPEJIICTBA PACIIONIONKIIMBY 3a TPryBame M (PMHAHCHUCKU CPEJICTBA yTBPICHH
NIPY MHUIU]aJTHOTO TIPU3HABAKE M0 00jeKTHBHA BPEJHOCT MPEKy TOOUBKa MK 3aryba. DUHAHCHCKUTE
cpeicTBa ce KiacHQUIMpaHH KaKO PACTONOXKIMBH 3a TPryBame JOKOJKY ce HabaBaT co Iiel
nponaxba Bo Onmcka uaHuHa. OBaa Kareropuja TM BKIydyBa (DUHAHCHUCKUTE WHCTPYMEHTH -
JISPUBAaTUBU KOU HE TU KMCIIOJIHYBaaT KPUTEPUYMHUTE 32 YIIOTpeOa BO CMETKOBOJCTBO Ha XEUUHI KaKO
mTo e nepunupano Bo MCC 39. JlpymTBoTo HeMa omnpeesieHo (PMHAHCHUCKH CPEICTBA IO 00jeKTHBHA
BPEIHOCT MPEKy JOOHMBKA MU 3aryoa.



-
&/TlTAN

3aemu u modapyBama

3aemuTe W mobOapyBamaTa Ce HEACPUBATHBHU (MHAHCHUCKHA CPEICTBAa CO (DMKCHU WM YTBPITHBU
IUlakama, KOM He KOTHpaaT Ha aKTUBHHOT mazap. OBuEe (HMHACHCKH CpelCcTBa Ce€ CBEAyBaaT IIo
amopTu3upaHa Ha0aBHa BPEIHOCT CO KOPUCTCHE Ha METOJ Ha e(EeKTHMBHA KaMmaTHa CTarKa.
JloObuBKHMTE W 3aryOWTe ce MpH3HABaaT BO OMIAHCOT HA YyCMEX BO MOMEHTOT KOra 3acMHUTE U
nobapyBamara ce aHyJIMpaar Wi UM ce HaMallyBa BPeJHOCTa TIopajin 00e3BpeIHYBabe, KaKO U IIPEKy
MPOIIECOT Ha aMOPTH3aIlH]a.

Bio:kyBama KoM ce 4yBaaT /10 10CIeBae

HenepuBatnBauTe priHAHCHUCKHU CpeAcTBa co (PUKCHU WM ONpEAEIICHU IJlakama U cO PUKCEH IaTyM
Ha JOCIeBame ce Kiacu(uuupaaT Kako BIOXKyBamkba KOM CE€ 4yBaaT A0 JAOCIEBamE, JOKOJIKY
JpymTBOTO MMa HaMepa M MOXHOCT Ja TH 4YyBa JO JocleBame. [10 MHHUIUjaTHOTO Mepeme,
BJIOXKyBamaTa KOM ce UyBaaT J0 JOCIEBame ce BPeJHyBaaT Mo aMOpTHU3UpaHa HabaBHa BPEIHOCT CO
KOpUCTEHE Ha METoJaTa Ha eeKTHBHA KamaTHa cramka. OBOj METOA KOpPHUCTH e(eKTHBHA KamaTHa
CTaIlKa KOja IPELU3HO T'Y JUCKOHTHPA IIPOLICHETUTE UIHHU apUYHU NPUWINBY HU3 0YEKYBaHHOT BEK Ha
(MHAHCUCKOTO CPEACTBO [0 HETO CMETKOBOJCTBEHATa BPEAHOCT HAa (PUHAHCHCKOTO CPEICTBO.
JobuBkute u 3ary0uTe ce eBUACHTHpAaT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIIeX BO MOMEHTOT KOra BJIOXKyBamara ce
aHy/IMpaaT WIM MM Ce€ HaMalyBa BPEJHOCTa MOpPaau O0E3BpEAHYBame, KaKO W HU3 NPOLECOT Ha
amoprtuzanuja. JIpymrBoTo HeMa BIOXYyBarkba KOM TH 4YyBa JO JIOCIEBAKC BO TOAWHUTE WITO
3aBpuryBaat Ha 31 gexemBpu 2020 roauna u 2019 roguna.

DOUHAHCUCKH CPEACTBA PACHOJIO0KIUBH 32 NPoAakda

duHaHCHCKHU CpeJICTBa PaCHONIOKINBH 32 TIPOAax0a ce HelepUBAaTUBHY (DMHAHCUCKH CPEJICTBA KOU ce
OIIpe/IeNIeHN KaKO PAaCTOJIOXKIMBU 32 MpoAax0a WM HE ce KIacH(pHIMPaHW BO NMPETXOJHUTE TPHU
kateropun. [0 MHHIMjaTHOTO Mepeme, (PUHAHCHCKHUTE CPEICTBA PACIONOXKINBH 3a Mpojaaxda ce
MepaT Mo OOjeKTHBHa BPEAHOCT CO CBHICHTUDPAE HA HEpeaTM3UpaHuTe INOOMBKH WIH 3aryOu
eBHJCHTHPAHU AUPEKTHO BO KAIUTAJOT CE JOJEKA BIOXKYBAKETO € aHyJIUPAHO, KOra KyMyJaTHBHATa
JnoOuBKa MM 3ary0a eBHASHTHpaHAa BO KalMTAJIOT C€ MpU3HaBa BO OWJIAHCOT Ha yCHeX, WIH €
YTBpAEHO 00e3BpenHyBamke, KOra KyMyJaTUBHATa 3ary0a eBUACHTHpaHa BO KAaIHUTANOT ce MPHU3HAaBa
BO OMJIAHCOT Ha YCIIeX.

JpymTBOTO HEMa BJIOXKYBama PaclOJIOKIIMBU 3a Mpojakda BO TOJWHHUTE IITO 3aBplIyBaaT Ha 31
nexkemBpu 2021 roguna u 2020 ronuHa.

JenpuznaBame

OUHAHCUCKUTE CpelncTBa (WM, JOKOJKY € COOJABETHO JAed O (PMHAHCHCKO CPEICTBO WM el OJ
rpyma Ha CIIMYHU (PMHAHCHCKHU CPENICTBA) CE ACTIPU3HABAAT JOKOJIKY:

- MPaBOTO 32 MPHEM Ha MaPUYHU MPUIHBH OJ1 CPEJCTBOTO € UCTCUCHO; WU

- JpymTBOTO TY MMa npedpiIeHO CBOUTE MpaBa 3a MPUEM Ha MAapUYHU MPUIHBH BO IETOCCH
W3HOC 0€3 3HAYajHO OJIOKYBamke Ha TPETO JIMIE TPEKY ,.apamkKMaHM Ha TOCPEOHHWK M Wiu (a)
HpymrtBoTo mMa mpedpraeHo 3HAYUTENEH I OJ CUTE PU3HUIM M KOPHUCTH OJ CPEACTBOTO, WiHu (0)
HdpymTBoTOo Hema mpedpiieHO HHUTY 3aApXKaHO 3HAYUTENEH Aed OA CUTEe PHU3ULKM U KOPUCTU Of
CpPE/CTBOTO, HO ja UMa npedplieHo KOHTpoJIaTa Ha CPEJICTBOTO.

HaMaﬂyBa}be Ha BPEJIHOCTA mopaaun 0663Bpe)1HYBaH)e

JpymTBOTO HAa CEKOj AaTyM Ha HW3BECTYBambe YTBpAyBa Jalll IMOCTOM OOjEeKTHBEH JIOKa3 JeKa
(hMHAHCUCKOTO CPeACTBO WIIM Ipyla Ha (UHAHCHUCKH CpPelICTBa ce 00e3BpEeTHETH.
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OHUHAHCHCKOTO CPENICTBO WM TPyNa Ha (PMHAHCHCKH CPEICTBA CE CMeTa 3a 00e3BPEIHETO aK0, U CaMo
aKo, MIOCTOU O0jEKTUBEH JIOKAa3 32 HAMAIyBamke Ha BPEAHOCTA MOPai 00€3BPEIHYBAamHE KaKO Pe3yTar
Ha eJleH WM TOBeKe HAacTaHW KOW HACTaHyBaaT [0 HHUIUjaTHOTO MpPU3HABambe Ha CPEICTBOTO
(,,HacTaH Ha 3ary0a’) M TOj HAaCTaH 3a 3ary0a MMa BJIMjaHUE Ha MPOICHETUTE UIHU NMAPUYHHU TPUITHBH
Ha (PMHAHCHCKOTO CPEJCTBO WJIM Ha rpyra Ha (JMHAHCHCKH CPEJICTBA KOM MOXE CO CUTYPHOCT Jia Ce
nporeHar. J[oka30T 3a 00e3Bpe/HYyBamEe MOXKE @ BKIyYyBa HHIMKATOPU JeKa MOJDKHHUIIUTE MU
rpyna Ha JOJDKHHUIIM C€ COOYYyBaaT CO 3HAYHMTENHH (HHAHCHCKU TPOOJIEMH, HEHCIIOIHYBambe Ha
00BpCKHUTE 3a MCIUIaTa Ha KamMaTa WiId BpaKame Ha IVIaBHHUIIATa, BEPOjaTHOCTA Jieka Ke 00jaBar creuaj
Wi apyra (UHAHCUCKA peopraHu3ailyja W Kaje INTO MOCTOjaT BHUJUIMBHA WHAWKAIMHM 32 MEPJIUBO
HaMaJyBamke Ha MPOICHETUTEe WIHU MapHYHH TEKOBH, KaKO INTO ce MPOMEHH BO obiacta Ha
€KOHOMCKHTE YCIIOBH KOH JIOBEIyBaar JI0 HeycIIeX.

3aryba mopamum oOe3BpeOHYBame BO OJHOC Ha (DUHAHCUCKUTE CpPEICTBA BPEOHYBAaHH II0
aMOPTH3AIOHEH TPOIIOK Ce€ IpecMeTyBaaT Kako pas3lHuKa IOMery HHBHaTa CMETKOBOJCTBEHA
BPEIHOCT U CeramiHaTa BpPEAHOCT Ha IMPOLIEHETUTE WIAHM NapUYHU MPUIMBU IUCKOHTHpaHa IO
OpHUrHHajJHA e(eKTHBHA KaMaTHA CTaIlKa.

IToequaeunnTe 3HAYNTENHU (UHAHCUCKH CpPEICTBA CE€ TECTHUpAaaT 3a HaMallyBalke Ha BpEAHOCTA
nopaau 00e3BpeIHyBamke noeanHedHo. OctaHaTuTe (PMHAHCHCKH CPEJICTBA CE MPOILIEHYBAaT 3aeHO BO
TPyIH KOW UMaaT CIIMYHHU KapaKTEPUCTHUKH BO BPCKA CO KPEAUTHUOT PHU3HK.

Cure 3aryOu mopaau o0e3BpelHyBame Ce MpU3HABaaT BO OWJIAHCOT Ha ycmex. 3arybarta mopaau
00e3BpeIHyBambe MOXKE Jla Ce aHyJupa MOKOJKY MOXe OOjeKTHMBHO Ja Ce MOBP3€ CO HACTAHOT IO
MIPU3HABAKETO Ha 3arydara mopaau o0e3BpeaHyBame. 3a (PHHAHCUCKUTE CPEICTBA KOU CE BpeaHyBaaT
10 aMOpPTU3UpaHa HabaBHA BPETHOCT, aHYJIMPAKHETO CE MIPU3HABA BO JIOOMBKATa WM 3ary0ara.

DUHAHCHCKH 00BPCKH

Huuyujanno npuznasarve

Crnopen MCC 39, ¢unaHcuckute 00BpckH ce KiacuuIupaar Kako (QHHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH IO
00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT TPEKy AOOMBKa HJIM 3ary0a, Kako 3aeMU U T03ajMHUIM WM KaKO JepHUBATHBU
KOM CIYyXaT KaKO XCUWHI HHCTPYMEHTH CO e(EeKTHBEH XC[MHT, COOJABETHO. JIpyIiTBOTO ja
ompenenyBa kiacudukamyjaTa Ha (QUHAHCHCKUTE OOBPCKH TIPH WHUIIAJATHOTO TIPHU3HABAILE.
®duHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKM HWHHIMjATHO CE MpHU3HABaaT MO OOjeKTUBHA BPEAHOCT, IUIYC TUPEKTHO
MOBP3aHMUTE TPOIIOIM Ha TPAHCAKIIH]jaTa JOKOJKY Ce KIACH(PHUIUPaaT KaKO 3aCMHU ¥ MO3ajMHUIIH.

OuHaHcHcKUTE OOBpCKM Ha JIpymITBOTO BKIydyBaaT OOBpPCKM clipeMa JO0aByBauuTe W JPYTH
00BpCKHU.

Iocneoosamenno meperve

MepemeTo Ha GUHAHCUCKHUTE OOBPCKH 3aBUCH OJ1 HUBHATA KJIACH(HUKAIMja KAKO IITO CIIEIH:
DUHAHCUCKY 00BPCKU eBHACHTHPAHU 10 00jeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT NMPeKy 100MBKA WUJIH 3aryda
OuHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKH EBUICHTHUPAHH 110 OOjeKTHMBHA BPEIHOCT TPeKy IoOWBKa WM 3aryoda

BKIIy4yBaaT (PMHAHCHUCKH OOBPCKU PACIIOJIOXKIIMBH 32 TPTYBamke U (GUHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH OPENICHH I10
00jeKTHBHA BPEAHOCT MPEeKy JOOMBKaA WK 3ary0a Npy WHULKjATHOTO MPHU3HABAE.
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OuHaHCHCKUTE OOBPCKU ce KIIAaCH(PUIUpaaT KaKo PACIIONIOKIMBY 32 TPryBambe JOKOJIKY ce Ha0aBeHU
co men mpoxaxba Bo Onmucka maHuHa. OBaa KaTeropwja BKIy4dyBa AEPHBATUBHH (DUHAHCHUCKU
MHCTPYMEHTH KOU HE TH HCIIOJHYBAaaT CMETKOBOJCTBEHHTE YCIIOBH 3a XCHHI OINpPEIETICHH CIIOpeN
MCC 39. [lo6uBkuTe M 3aryOuTe 07 OOBPCKHUTE KOM CE 4UyBaaT 3a TPryBame CE IpPU3HABAaaT BO
OMJIAHCOT Ha yCreX.

HpymTBoTO HeMa oapeneHO (UHAHCHUCKH OOBPCKH IO 00jeKTHMBHA BPETHOCT IPEKy MOOWBKA HITH
3aryoa.

3aemu M no3ajMHULH

[To MHUIMjATHOTO TIpH3HABaKkE, KAMATOHOCHHUTE 3a€MH U M033jMHUIM ITOCIEIOBATEIHO Ce MepaTr HU3
IpoIecOT Ha HUBHA aMOPTH3alfja CO KOPUCTEHE Ha MeToX Ha e(eKTHBHAa KaMaTHA CTarKa.
JobOuBkuTE W 3ary0uTe ce MpU3HABaaT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIeX Kora OOBPCKUTE ce aHyJIHpaaT, Kako U
HH3 MPOLIECOT HAa HUBHA aMOPTH3aLHja.

Je-npu3HaBame

duHancuckara O6BpCKa CC JIc-IIprM3HaBa Kora 3aJJ0JDKCHUETO 3a 06BpCKaTa € NMMOAMUPECHO, TIOHUIIITCHO
WJIK NIpeCTaHyBa J1a BaXKU.

Kora mocroeuka ¢uHaHcHcka 0OBpCcKa € 3aMeHeTa CO Jpyra OJ HCT 3aeMojJaBaTell Mo 3HAYUTEIHO
HOpa3JIMYHU YCIOBH, WM MAaK YCJIOBUTE Ha IMOCTOCYKAaTa OOBPCKA 3HAYUTEIHO CE MPOMEHETH, TaKBa
pa3MeHa WM M3MEHA Ce TPETHUpa Kako Je-MPU3HABAkhEe HA OpUTHMHAITHATA OOBPCKA M MPHU3HABAKC Ha
HOBaTa 00BpCKa, a pa3inKaTa Ha COOJIBETHUTE CMETKOBOJICTBEHU M3HOCH CE MPHU3HABA BO OHIAHCOT Ha
ycIex.

Hernpame Ha (UHAHCHCKUTE HHCTPYMEHTH

DUHAHCUCKUTE CpeacTtBa n (I)I/IHaHCI/ICKI/ITe O6BpCKI/I CC HETHUpAAT U HCTO U3HOCOT € MPE3CHTUPAH BO
KOHCOJIMAUPAHUOT I/ISBCH_ITajOT 3a (bHHaHCI/ICKaTa COCTOj6a, aKO U CaMO aKO, IMOCTOU MPUMCHIIMBO
3aKOHCKO ITpaBO 3a HCTUPAKEC HAa €EBUACHTUPAHUTE U3HOCH M ITOCTOM HaMEpa Aa C€ IMopaMHH Ha HETO
OCHOBAa, WJIM Ja C€ IprU3HaaT CpeaAcTBaTa UK Aa CC IopaMHarT 06BpCKI/ITe HCTOBPEMEHO.

3.  3ajauxm

3anuxuTe ce BpeAHyBaaT CIOpeA MNOHUCKAaTa BpPEAHOCT oA HabaBHaTa M HETO peaju3alroHaTa
BpenHoct. HabaBHaTa BpeqHOCT ce yTBpAyBa CIOpell METONOT Ha MPOCEUHH LieHu. LleHara Ha yuHeHe
Ha TOTOBUTE NPOHU3BOIY WU IPOMU3BOACTBOTO BO TEK BKIydyBa CYPOBHHH, ITUPEKTHa pabOTHa cuia,
OCTaHATH JWPEKTHU TPOLIOLM W MOBP3aHM MPOHM3BOJACTBEHH PEXUCKU TPOLIOLH, UCKIY4yBajKH TH
NPOJAKHUTE M AAMUHHCTPAaTUBHHUTE Tpoimoud. Hero peanusaunoHaTa BpEeOHOCT € HpoLEHEeTaTa
OpoJaXHa I[I€HAa BO PENOBHUOT TEK Ha PabOTEHmETO, HaMalieHa 3a INPEeIBUACHUTE TPOLIOLH 3a
JIOBpIIIYBal€ W MPEABUACHHUTE TPOILOIM 3a Aa c€ W3BpUIM mponaxOata. CUTHHOT MHBEHTap ce
ornumysa 100% npu craBame Bo ynoTpeoda.

s. Ilapu u mapu4HM cpeacTBa

[lapure m mapuyHHTE CpeACTBA BKJIydyBaaT TOTOBHHA BO OJyiarajHa, MapuU4HU CpeAcTBa BO OaHKH U
JETIO3UTH CO POK Ha JOCIIEBABE O TPU MECELU WM IIOMAJIKY.

H. AKIMOHEPCKH KANMTAJ

OOu4HM aKIuH ce KIacuPUIMpanyd BO KaruTal.
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j- JloJropouen miaH 3a CTUMYJHpPal€, 32CHOBAH HA aAKI[UH

KopuctuTe 3acHOBaHM Ha aknuu ce 00e30emyBaaT Ha WICHOBHTE Ha BHCOKOTO PaKOBOJCTBO IPEKY
IIEMH Ha aKIuH Ha ['pymnanyjaTta KOM MOKPHUBAaT HEKOJIKY MOJpYXHUIUM. Bo MomeHTOB, I'pymaiujata
M UMa ClIeHMBE IeMu: 1) miuaHoBM 3a omiuu 3a crnoxenyBame (2014 u 2017 romuna) u 2)
JIONITOPOYEH TUIaH 32 CTUMYIUpamke BoBeaeH Bo 2020 ronnHa, mTO ce 0JHECYBa Ha Harpaau BO BHI Ha
aKIINH.

TpaHcakiija 3a Mmakame Bp3 OCHOBA Ha akIuM Ha ['pymarnujaTta e kinacuuiupana oJf riieHa ToUKa
Ha CEKOe APYIITBO IITO M3BECTYBa, HAMECTO CO JaBame CIMHCTBEHA o/penda 3a KiIacu(uKanyja ImTo
€ TMPUMEHJIMBA 3a CUTEe ApylTBa Bo ['pynanujata. J[pymiTBoTO y4ecTByBa BO JOJTOPOYHHOT IUIaH 32
cTuMmynupame 3a 2020 roguHa, Koj € KiI1acupHUIUpaH Kako TOTOBHHA BO (PMHAHCHCKUTE M3BEILTaW Ha
I'pynanmjata, HO € KiacHpUIHMpaH Kako KamuTal BO TNoceOHHTE (UHAHCHCKM W3BEIITal Ha
HpymrBoTo, Ouznejku pymTBoTO HeMa O0Bpcka Aa T TMoaMUpyBa Harpaaute. CleACTBEHO, ja
npu3HaBa O0jeKTHBHATa BPEIHOCT Ha HarpajuTe Kako TPOIIOK 3a KOPHCTH Ha BpabOTEHHUTE BO
OMIIAHCOT Ha YCIEX, CO COOJIBETHO 3T0JIEMYyBambe Ha KanuTajioT Ha [pymTBoTo.

BxynHHOT M3HOC mITO Tpeba Ja MpU3Hae Kako TPOIIOK CE YTBPJyBa CO ylaTyBame Ha 00jeKTHBHATA
BPEIHOCT Ha JOJACIICHUTE HAarpaay, MITO Ce 3aCHOBA Ha IIEHATa Ha aKIMHUTE Ha MajKkaTa KOMalHHja Ha
IATYMOT Ha J0JellyBame. BKyITHHOT TPOIIOK ce MpHu3HaBa BO TEKOT Ha MEPHOAOT Ha JIOJETyBambe,
HITO € MEepUOoJOT BO KOj Tpeba Ja ce 3aJ0BoJiaT HaBEJCHUTE yCIOBHU 3a yciyra. Ha kpajoT Ha cekoj
nepuo, JpymrTBoTo r'M peBUAMpa CBOUTE MPOICHKH 3a OpOjoT Ha HArpaau IITO C€ OYeKyBa Ja TH
JlaaT Bp3 OCHOBAa HAa HABEJCHUTE YCIOBM 32 [aBamke Ha IpaBaTa W crankara Ha omsemame. Ce
MpHU3HABA BJIMjaHWETO HA PEBU3MjaTa HAa OPUTHHAIHUTE MPOIEHKH, JOKOJIKY TH UMa, BO OMIIAHCOT Ha
yCIEeX, CO COOJIBETHO MPHUJIAT0IyBakhE HAa KAITUTAJIOT.

K. Jlanonm

Jlanox na oobuska

I[aHOKOT Ha ,Z[OGI/IBKEI 3a NMEPUOAOT CE€ COCTOU O TEKOBCH M OMJIOXKEH JTAaHOK. I[aHOKOT C€ IIpu3HaBa Co
I[O6I/IBKaTa nim 3ary6aTa, OCBCH 3a ACJI0T KOj CC OAHCCYBa Ha CTaBKU IPHUKAXKaHW BO OCTaHATU
CCOHq)aTHI/I npuxoau Uik JUPCKTHO BO KAIIMTAJIOT. Bo TOj cnyqaj, AaHOKOT C€ Ipu3HaBa BO OCTaHATH
CeOH(l)aTHI/I Opuxoau Wi JAUPCKTHO BO KAIIUTAJIOT, COOABETHO.

Texoesen /lanox na 0obuska

TeKkOBHUOT JAaHOK Ha JOOWBKA € MPECMETaH BP3 OCHOBA HA JAHOYHHTE 3aKOHU YCBOCHH TP WITH IO
JMATYMOT Ha W3BEINTAjOT 3a (PMHAHCHCKaTa COCTOj0a, BO 3eMjHTE Kaje ITO JpyImTBOTO W HETOBHTE
MOJPYKHUIK paboTaT U TeHepupaaT OJaHOWIMB MPHUXOJ]. PakoBOICTBOTO MEPHOAWYHO TH IMPOICHYBa
3a3¢MCHUTE MO3MIUK BO OJHOC HA JAHOYHH TOBPATH, 3e€MajKM TW MPEABH[ JICIOBUTE O JaHOYHATA
peryJaThBa KoM IITO ce MOJIONKHU Ha TONKyBame. Kako pe3ynrar Ha UCTUTE, KaJle IIITO € COOJBETHO, C&
YTBpIyBaar pe3epBallii Bp3 OCHOBA Ha U3HOCHTE KOM CE OYEKyBaaT Ja OMJIAT IUIaTeHW HA JTAHOYHHTE
BJIACTH.

Oonoorcen 0anok Ha 0obusKa

Onm0xeHHOT AaHOK Ha JOOMBKA ce MpH3HaBa Ha MPUBPEMEHHUTE Pa3IUKH KOM MPOU3JIEryBaaTr moMery
JIAHOYHATA OCHOBHIIA HA CpENCTBaTa U OOBPCKUTE W HUBHHTE HETO CETallHU BPEIHOCTH BO
KOHCOJMANpaHuTe (PHMHAHCHUCKY W3BemTan. MeryToa, 0OBPCKUTE 3a OJTOKEHUOT JTaHOK Ha TOOWBKA HE
CC MNPHU3HACHHU aKO IIpOU3JICTyBaaT O I/IHI/IHI/IjaﬂHOTO IMpu3HaBalk€ Ha TyABWII; OMJIOKCH JaHOK Ha
JIOOMBKA CMETKOBOJICTBEHO HE CE MPUKAXYBA, JOKOJKY MPOU3NIETYBaaT O] MHUIIMjATHO MPU3HABAhC HA
CpPEeINCTBO WM OOBpPCKAa BO TpaHCaKIMja HamBop OO OW3HMC KOMOHWHANHMja KOja BO BpPEMETO Ha
TpaHCaKIfjaTa He BiIMjae HUTY Ha CMETKOBOJICTBEHATa, HUTY Ha OJJAHOUJIMBATA JJOOWBKA WK 3ary0a.
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O10’KeHHOT JIAaHOK Ha JTOOMBKA Ce YTBPAYBa KOPUCTEJKU NAHOYHM CTamNKH (M 3aKOHH) KOU IITO Ouie
JOHECEHH 0, WM MOCIIEI0BATETHO JOHECEHH 110 IaTyMOT Ha M3/1aBame Ha M3BEIITAjOT 32 (PMHAHCHCKA
cocTojba 1 ce oUeKyBa Ja ce yrmoTpedar Kora IMOBP3aHOTO CPEACTBO MIIM OOBPCKA HA OMJIOKEH JaHOK Ha
JIOOMBKA Ke ce MOIMHUPEHH.

Oy10)KeHH JTAHOYHU CPEJICTBA Ce TPU3HABAAT CAMO JI0 HUBOTO JI0 KOE € BEpOjaTHO JeKa MHU JaHOYHU
JIOOWBKHM ke OWIaT pacIioIOKIMBH, BO OJHOC Ha KOW, NMPHUBPEMCHUTE PAa3IMKH ke MOXE 1a Ommar
uckopucteHd. OJIOKEHUTE AHOYHH CPEICTBa M OOBPCKH C€ HETHpaaT Kora 3a Toa WMa MpaBHO
NPUMEHIIMBO TIPaBO 332 HETHPAaWmE HAa TEKOBHH JAHOYHU CPEJCTBA BO OMHOC HA TEKOBHH JaHOYHHU
OOBpPCKH M KOTa OJUIOKCHWUTE NAHOYHU CpPEJICTBA W OOBPCKU CE OJHECYBaaT Ha JaHOK Ha JOOWBKA
CripeéMa MCT JAHOYCH PETYyJIaTOp 3a UCTUOT JAHOYCH CHTUTCT WJIM Pa3IMUYHU JaHOYHU CHTUTCTU Kaae
¥MMa WHTEHIM]ja Ja Ce MOMUpPAT calijiaTa Ha HETO OCHOBA.

Ja. Kopuctu 3a BpaboTenure
Ilensuu

ﬂpy].HTBOTO, BO HOPMAJIHUOT TCK Ha pa60T€H:CTO, BpHIX yIlJIaTa Ha MPUJAOHECUTC Ha Bpa6OTeHI/ITC 3a
MEeH31u, 31paBCTBO, Bpa6OTYBaH,C " NICPCOHAJICH JAaHOK Ha JO0XOJ KOH CC€ NPECMETAHU CO IPUMEHA Ha
3aKOHCKHUTEC CTaIlKh KOH C€ BAXKCUKH BO 3€Mj aTa BO TCKOT Ha roaguHara Ha 6p}ITO IIaTUTCE. ﬂp}/LHTBOTO
T BpLIX OBUC YIUIATU BO BJIAJUHUTEC 3APABCTBCHU U IICH3UCKHU q)OHZ[OBI/I. TpOH.IOKOT 3a OBHUC YyILIaTHU
CC MMpUKaXxXyBa BO OMIAHCOT HA ycnex BO UCTUOT NEpHUo BO KOj € MMPUKa’)XaH U MMOBP3aHUOT TPOIIOK 3a
IJIaTUTC.

ﬂpy].HTBOTO HC pa6OTI/I criopen OMI0 KakBa Apyra IMNEeH3MCKa MeMa WIM IJIaH 3a HaJOMECTOUH O
IMEH3MOHHMPAKE U MMOpaau TOA HEMAa HUKAKBU JONOJIHUTCIIHA 06BpCKI/I II0 OBUC€ OCHOBH.

Haoomecmoyu 3a npecmarnok nHa pabomer 00HOC U HAOOMeCTOYYU 00 NEH3UU

Hanomecronure 3a npectaHok Ha pabOTeH OAHOC Ha BPaOOTEHHOT Ke MpecTaHe Mpeja HOPMAIHUOT POK
3a MCH3MOHUpAame WK Kora BpabOTEeHHOT ke mpudaTH IT0OpOBOIHO Aa 3aMHHE BO 3aMEHa 3a OBOj
HaJOMecTOK. J[pyIITBOTO Npu3HaBa HaJOMECTOK 3a MPECTAaHOK Ha pabOTEeH OJHOC BO CIIy4aj KOTa uMa
OJUTyKa 3a MPEeCTaHOK Ha pabOTHUOT OJJHOC Ha OAPEACHU BPaOOTEHU 0e3 MOKHOCT 3a MOBIIEKYBambe Ha
OJUTyKaTa WJIM KOTa MOCTOM JOOPOBOJIHO MpPHUjaBYBamke O/ BPaOOTEHUTE 3a MPECTaHOK HA HUBHUOT
paboteH ogHOC.

Crniopel IOTIUILAHUOT KOJIEKTUBEH IOTOBOp, /JpymTBOoTO € 00Bp3aHa Aa MCIUIATH OTHPEMHUHU BO
M3HOC KOj € €OHAKOB Ha IIEeCT MPOCEYHH PEemyOJMYKH IJIaTH M ToMery €JHa W TPU IMPOCEUHH
penyOnuuKky miaTi Ja OuaaT UCIUIaTeHH Kako jyOusiejHH Harpaau. bpojoT Ha mpoceyHuTe permyOnnuku
iaTu 3a jyOunejHuTe Harpagd OIroBapa Ha BKYNHHOT Opoj Ha TOAMHM Ha CilIyx0a On cTpaHa Ha
BpaOOTEHHUTE KaKO LITO € MPE3CHTUPAHO BO Tabemara MoJoIry:

BxynHo 0poj Ha roqMHu cayx0a bpoj Ha nuatn
10
20
30
35 (oxeHn)
40 (maxmn)

W W W W =

JedbuHupanuTe KOPUCTH CE MIPECMETYyBaaT FOIUIITHO O] CTpaHa Ha HE3aBUCHU aKTyapHy CO MPUMEHA Ha
KpeJWTHATa METOJIa 3a MpoeKkThpaHa enuHuia. CoriacHO MOJENOT, BEpOjaTHOCTA JeKa MapUYHUOT
OJUTUB Ke Ce peanu3upa. ¢ U3BEACHA CO KOPUCTEHE HA TPU JCKPEMEHTH M TOA: CMPT. HHBATUAUTET U
MIPEKUH Ha pabOTEeH OHOC.
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Tabnuara Ha BepojaTHOCT € KOHCTPYUpaHa Co MOMOII Ha KOPUCTEHE MPETIOCTaBKH 3a: BEPOjaTHOCTA
3a CMPT Ha Bpa0OTEHHOT JO JaTyMOT Ha KOj Tpeba &a ce IEH3MOHHpAa, BEpOjaTHOCTA JcKa
BpaOOTEHNOT MPeIBPEMEHO Ke ce MEH3NOHHpPa KaKo MOCIIENIIa Ha HHBAMANTET M BEpOjaTHOCTA JIeKa
BpaOOTEHUOT ke TO MpeKuHe paboTHHMOT ogHOC Bo KommaHujaTa mpen JHaTyMOT Ha NEH3UOHHpAmhe.
CeramHata BpeIHOCT Ha OOBpcKara 3a JeUHHpPAHH KOPUCTH C€ YTBPJYBa CO JUCKOHTHUPAHmE Ha
MPOIEHETUTE HJIHU IMAapUYHU OJUIMBH CO KOPHCTEH€ Ha E€CKOHTHATa CTalka O]l NMPUHOCHTE Ha
NIp’)KaBHUTE OOBP3HUITK M3MafeHH Bo Makenonuja Bo 2021 roguHa u kiracuumupany o pOYHOCT.

Haoomecmoyu 3a cmunenouu na deya Ha pabomenu

ITounysajku ox 31 gexemBpu 2009 roamHa, BO aKTyapckara MpecMeTKa € BKIydeHa U MpecMeTKaTa Ha
HA/JIOMECTOIINTE 3a CTUIICHANN KOU r'u 06e3benyBa JpymTBoTO Ha Jieriata Ha BpaOOTEHHUTE KOU ce Ha
PEAOBHU JIOJUIUIOMCKH M TOCIICAUILIOMCKH CTYJIMU, KAKO W Ha JellaTa Ha MOYMHATHTE BPaOOTCHU
JIOJIeKa Ce CPEeTHOIIKOIIIH.

ﬂOl’lOﬂHumeJZHu Kopucmu npu neH3uorHuparbe

[MounyBajku ox 31 nexemBpu 2013 roamHa, akTyapckaTa IpecMeTKa Oellle MOTOHeTa CO MpecMeTKa
Ha CeralmiHara BPEJHOCT Ha MJHUTE KOPCUTH 3a HOBO BOBEJIEHATa JOITOPOYHA KOPHUCT 3a OApeneHa
KaTeropuja Ha BpaOOTEHH - JOMOJHUTEIHN KOPUCTH NP MEeH3MOHUpame. [IpecmeTkaTa e HampaBeHa
Bp3 OCHOBAa Ha MPOCEYHU IapaMeTpy Ha CIIOMEHaTaTa MOIyJaluja U BKYITHO OYEKYBaHHOT M3HOC 3a
UCIIIaTa, IOCTaBeH oJ] CTpaHa Ha J[pyImTBoTo.

AKTyapckuTe MOOWBKM W 3aryOM KOW TIPOM3IIETyBaaT Kako pe3yiTaT Ha HCKYCHH TIPOLEHKH |
MPOMEHH BO aKTyapCKUTE MPETIIOCTABKHU C€ MPU3HABAAT KaKO MPUXOAU WM TPOIIOIU BO MEPUOIOT
KOra UCTUTE HACTaHAaJIE.

Jb. PesepBauuu

PesepBupamara ce mpu3HaBaaT W IpecMeTyBaaT Kora JIpyIITBOTO HMMa CeramiHa 3aKOHCKA WU
JIOTOBOpEHa 00BpCKa Kako pe3yNTaT Ha MHHATH HACTaHH, M KOTA € BEPOjaTHO JieKa ke Ouie moTpedeH
OJIIMB Ha CPEZCTBA 3a Ja ce MOJMHUPH 00BPCKaTa; M KOra MOXe J1a OHje HalpaBeHa peaHa MpoIeHKa Ha
u3HocoT. PesepBanuure Ha J[pymITBOTO ce COCTOjaT OA pe3epBallM 3a OTIPEMHUHH, jyOWIIejHH
Harpajay, CTHICHIMU M PEBUTAIM3alMja HAa pyJHUAIMTE. PesepBanmure He ce NMpU3HABAaT 3a MIHU
OTICPAaTHBHHU 3aryOH.

OnaMy Kaje IITO MOCTOjaT TojieM Opoj Ha CIWYHU OOBPCKH, BepojaTHOCTAa JieKa Ke Ouze moTpedeH
OJUTHB Ha CPEJICTBA 3a Ja Ce MOJMUPAT OOBPCKUTE, CE OpeIyBa CO 3eMarmhe BO PE/IBU/I Ha KiacaTa Ha
OOBpCKHTE KaKo e/iHa enuHa. PesepBanuy ce mpu3HaBaaT IypH U KOra BepojaTHOCTA AeKa OJUINB Ha
CpeacTBa ke Ouze MoTpeOHO € MHOTY Maja, a ce OJHEeCYBa Ha OWJIO Koja CTaBKa BKJIy4eHa BO MCTaTa
KJ1aca Ha OOBPCKH.

PesepBanmurte ce BpeHyBaaT [0 CeTallHaTa BPSIHOCT HA OYEKYBAaHHUTE M3JIATOIM KO ce TIOTPEOHU 11a
HACTaHAT CO IeN Ja ce MOJMHUpPU OOBpcKara co ymorpeda Ha pre-taX cTamka Koja TH OTCIHKYBa
TEKOBHO TIa3apHUTE MPOIEHKH Ha BpPEMEHCKaTa BPEIHOCT Ha MapuTe W TOBP3aHUTE crenupuaHu
pU3ULM Ha JNaJeHUTEe OOBPCKH. 3rojeMyBameTO Ha pe3epBAIlMHTE KaKO PE3yiTaT Ha BPEMEHCKHTE
pacrtojaHuja ce mpuU3HaBaaT Kako TPOLIOH MO KaMaTH.

M. IlpuzHaBame HA PUXOJUTE

[IpuxomoT € M3HOCOT Ha HAJIOMECTOKOT INTO Ce OYeKyBa Jia ce J00He BO 3aMeHa 3a MPEHOC Ha
BETCHUTE CTOKH WJIM YCIYyTH Ha KIHCHT, CO MCKIYYOK Ha M3HOCHUTE COOpPaHW BO UME Ha TPETH JIMIA
(maHOK Ha momameHa BPETHOCT, NPYTH JAHOIM Ha MPOMET WTH.). BapujaOmiHHTe pa3MHUCIIyBama ce
BKJIyUYEHHU BO IICHAaTa Ha TpaHCaKIdjaTa U THE CE MPOIEHYBAaaT CO KOPUCTCHE WIM Ha METOJIOT Ha
OUYCKYBaHa BPETHOCT MM HA METOJIOT HA HajBEPOjaTHUOT H3HOC.
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[Mpuxoaute ce mpu3HaBaar Kora (MM Kako) 0OBpCKaTa 3a U3BPLIYBAE € UCTIOIHETA CO MPEHECYBAbEe
Ha KOHTpOJIaTa Ha BETEHOTO A00pO WM yCiIyra Ha KIHeHTOT. KineHToT 1o0uBa KOHTpoa Ha 100po
WIN YCIIyTa ako MOXE Ja I'0 HAaCcOYM KOPUCTEHETO M Ja I'M JoOHe CYIITMHCKH CUTE IPEOCTaHATH
NpUIOOMBKM 07 Toa MoOpo mwin ycinyra. KoHTpomnara ce mpeHecyBa co TEKOT Ha BPEMETO HIIM BO
OIpelcH MOMEHT BO BpemeTo. CrleqHuBe Cnenu(UYHU KpPUTEPHYMH HCTO Taka Tpeba na Oumpar
3a70BOJICHH NPl MPUXOAOT Aa Ouie Mpu3Har:

IIpooasicboa na cmoxku

[Mpuxoaute ox mpojakda Ha CTOKH Ce MPU3HABAaT KOra KOHTPOJATa Ha CTOKATa ce MpeHecyBa Ha
KIIMEHTOT, OOWYHO TpU HCIIOpaKaTa W HEMa HEUCIOJHETa OOBpPCKa INTO MOXKE NIa BIIMjae Ha
npudakameTo Ha MPOHM3BOAMTE OJ CTpaHAa HAa KyIyBadoT. [JaBHU mpom3Bogu Ha JlpymrTBoTo ce
I[EMEHT, KJIMHKEP, TOTOBU CMECH, JIETEUKa IETeT U IPYTH [IEMEHTHH ITPOU3BO/IH.

Jlasarwe na ycnyeu

[Ipuxoaure mTO MPOM3NEryBaaT OJ YCIYTUTE CE MPU3HABAAT BO MPECMETKOBHUOT MEPHOJ BO KOj Ce
W3BPILIEHA YCIYTHTE M C€ MepaT CO KOPUCTEHE¢ Ha W3JIC3HW WM BJIE3HH METOJAU, BO 3aBUCHOCT O]
MpYpo/IaTa Ha aieHaTa yciyra.

H06ap}7BaH>CTO CC Ipu3HaBa KoOra IIOCTOH 663yCJ'IOBHO IIpaBO Ha HAAOMCCTOK 3a O6BpCKI/ITe 3a
H3BpIIYBak€ HA KIIMCHTOT KOU CE€ 3aJ0BOJIHU.

J1oroBOpHOTO CpeACTBO ce MpU3HaBa Kora OOBpCKaTa 3a U3BPIIYBake KOH KIUEHTOT € UCIIOMHETa Mpe
KIMEHTUTE Ja IUIaTaT WId Tpea IUIakameTo Ja Jocliee, OOMYHO KOora CTOKHTE WM YCIYTHTE Ce
MpeHecyBaar Ha KJIMEHTOT npen JpymTBoTo uma mpaBo Ha (akrtypa.

JoroBopHa 00BpcKa ce MpHU3HaBa KOTa IMOCTOM OOBpPCKa 3a MPEHOC Ha CTOKH WJIM YCITYTH Ha KIHEHT 3a
xou JlpymTBoTo HOOMIIO HaZOMECT OJ KIMEHTOT (MPEeAIUIaTH) WIIM MOCTOM Oe3yCJOBHO MpPaBoO Ja ce
Jno0re HaJIOMECTOK Ipe KOMIIaHWjaTa Jia mpeHece JoOpo uiM yciyra ( omIoxkeH npuxon). JloroopHara
00BpCKa ce JAenpu3HaBa KOora BeTYBambETO € HCIONHETO, a TIPUXOANUTE Ce eBHIACHTHPAAT BO OWJIAHCOT Ha
ycrex.

Tlpuxoou 00 HaemHuHa
[lpuxomure on mNpUXOXUTE OJf HAEMHUHM KOW TIPOM3NEryBaaT oOJ OICPaTUBHUTE HAEMH, Ce
€BHUICHTUPAAT Ha MPABOJIMHHUCKA OCHOBA BO TEKOT HA yCIIOBUTE HA HAEMOT.

H. Haemn

HaemuTe co ko 3HauaeH Jen off pU3UKOT ¥ HArPaJWTE Of COTICTBEHOCTA CE 3aJpKaHM O]l CTpaHa Ha
HAaeMOJ[aBad0T ce KIacu(uIupa Kako omnepaTuBeH HaeM. llmakamara HampaBeHH IO OCHOB Ha
OTIEpaTHBHUOT HaeM (HETO oA OWIO KakBW TOTTHKHYBama OJ CTpaHa HAa HAEeMOJaBaTesloT) ce
MpHU3HaBaaT BO OMIIAHCOT Ha yCIleX Ha MPAaBOJMHUCKA OCHOBA BO TEKOT Ha MEPHOAOT Ha HAEMOT.

. Pacnpenenta Ha JUBMIEHIU

Pacnpenenbara Ha nuBUAEHIUTE HAa aKUMOHepUTe Ha J[pyHITBOTO ce IpU3HABa Kako OOBpCKa BO
(hMHAHCUCKHUTE U3BELITAaN BO MEPUOJOT BO KOj c€ 0JOOpeHH TUBHICHIMTE O/ CTpaHa Ha aKIMOHEPUTE
Ha JlpymTBoTO.

o. Hacranu nmociae AAaTyMOT Ha U3BECTYBAaILE

Hacranure mocnme maTymMoT Ha W3BecTyBame, KOM 00e30emyBaaT e€BHJCHIMja 3a cocTojbara Koja
IIOCTOM Ha JaTyMOT Ha M3BECTYBAE, CE TPETHPAAT KaKO KOPEKTUBHM HACTAHH BO OBHE (PMHAHCHCKU
m3Bemtan. OHME KOM Ce€ HMHOMKATHBHU Ha COCTOj0aTra Koja NpoM3JieryBa IOcCle OaTyMOT Ha
U3BECTYBakhE MMaaT TPETMaH Ha HEKOPEKTUBHH HACTAHMU.
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4. KOPUCTEHM ITPOLIEHKHA

JpylITBOTO MpaBu MPOLIEHKH U MPETIOCTABKU KOM CE OJHECYyBaaT Ha UIAHUHATa. Pe3yntupauxure
CMETKOBOJICTBEHH ITIPOIIEHKH, 10 Je(PUHHIIMja MHOTY PETKO C€ HISHTHIHHU CO aKTyeITHUTE Pe3yNTaTH.
[IpolieHKkUTEe ¥ TPETHIOCTABKUTE KOW BJIMjaaT 3HAYUTEIHO HA MPEIU3BUKYBAEC MATCPH]jaTHU
KOPEKIIMH J0 CETAlIHUTE BPEIHOCTH HA CPEJCTBATa U OOBPCKUTE BO PAMKUTE Ha UJHATa (UHACHCKA
roJIMHA C€ MPE3CHTUPAHU MOJOIY.

Pesepsayuja 3a pesumanuzayuja na pyonuyume

JpymTBara mTo BpIIAT eKCIIoaTallja HA MAUHEPAIHU CYpPOBHHHU OJI PYAHUIMTE MOTPEOHO € UCTHTE
Ha KpajoT O HMUBHUOT BEK Ha EKCIUIOaTaldja Ja I'M BpaTaT BO NPBOOMTHA COCTOj0a, OAHOCHO BO
OHAaKBa KaKBU INTO OWJe Ha MOYETOKOT Ipel Ja OMIaT eKCIUIOATHPaHH, INTO € BO COTJACHOCT CO
3aKOHCKAaTa peryjaTHBa OJHOCHO CO 3aKOHOT 3a €KOJIOTHja MPUMEHIINB BO 3e€MjaTa BO KOja JpylITBaTa
pabotaTt (a ce BpaTH 3€MjHIITETO BO MPOBOOMTHA COCTOjOa Mocie TPH TOAWHH OTKAKO Ke ce 3aTBOpHU
PYAHUKOT M OTKAaKO Ke 3aBpILIH HEroBara eKCIUIOaTanuja), ¥ Toa 10 HUBO KOE € BO 3aKOHCKHTE PaMKH
U JI0 HUBO KO€ € BO COTJIACHOCT CO IOJIMTHKATa W IpakKcaTa Koja ce BOAM 32 3alITHTA HA KMBOTHATa
CpenuHa.

PesepBanmjara 3a peBuTaNM3alUMja Ha PyAHUINTE ja OJpa3yBa CeranrHaTa BPeIHOCT Ha OYCKYBaHHTE
WJIHU TPOLIOIHM 3a PEKYJITHBU3aIMja KOU CE OUYEKyBa /la HACTAaHAT 3a OHUE JENOBH O PYIHHULUTE KOU
OWJIe eKCIUIoaTHpaHy co JAaTyMOT Ha U3BECTyBame. Pe3epBanmjaTa npeTcTaByBa ceraiiHa BpeJHOCT Ha
OYeKYBaHU HIHM OJJIMBM HA TMapu KOM Ce OuYeKyBa JeKa Ke HacTaHaT 3a pEeBHUTAIM3alMja Ha
pyaauiure. OBa BKIIydyBa M OJpeAyBame Ha BPEAHOCTA HA OCHOBA Ha MPOEKTOT 3a PEBUTAIN3ALIM]a,
JUCKOHTHUTE CTallKi U O4YEKyBaHM MH(IanMCKU cTanku. PesepBanuure ce mpeoleHyBaaT Ha CEKoj
M3BECTYBAUKH JaTyM M C€ KOpEerHpa co el Ja ja OApa3u ceramrHara BpeIHOCT Ha MIHUTE TPOLIOIH
NoTpeOHH 3a J1a ce UCTIOIHN 00BpCKara.

CeramrHara BpeHOCT Ha OYEKYBAaHHMTE TPOIIOLM 3a PECTABPHUPAmE (TOA € OPUTHHAIHATA MPOLICHKA
Kako W IMPOMEHUTE BO CMETKOBOACTBEHHTE IMPOLICHKH) Ce MpU3HaBa BO H3BEINTAjOT 3a ceodarHa
JOOMBKa OCBEH aKO HE CE IMOBP3aHM CO OCHOBHMTE CPEJCTBAa KOM CE HAOraaT M Ce ITOBP3aHH CO
PYIHHULUTE, TIPU HUBHOTO NMPBUYHO MPH3HABAE BO KOj CIIy4aj, TPOIIOLHUTE C€ KAIUTAIU3UpPAAT U
aMOpPTU3UPaaT BO TEKOT HAa HUBHHOT BEK Ha ymoTpeoda.

Cekoja mpomMeHa BO HETO CeraimrHaTa BpEeAHOCT Ha MCIpPaBKaTa 3a PEBHTANM3allMja HA PYIHUIIATE BO
TEKOT Ha BPEMEHCKOTO pACTOjaHHMEe C€ MpU3HaBa Kako (MHACHUCKH TPOLIONM BO H3BEIITAjOT 3a
ceondarHa 100UBKa.

Kopucmu 3a spabomenume

CeraniHata BpeTHOCT Ha OOBpCKaTa 3a MEH3UOHUPAE 3aBUCH O]l rojeM Opoj Ha (HakTopH KO ce
oJpeayBaaT Ha TOAWITHA OCHOBAa CO ymoTpeba Ha TojeM Opoj Ha TPETIOCTaBKHA. YTOTpeOCHUTE
MPETIOCTABKY BO OJIPEIIyBAHETO HA HETO e(DEeKTOT (TPOIIOK WIIH ITPUXO]T) 3a TICH3UOHUPAhE BKIYyUyBa
JIUCKOHTHH CTamnKd. BWJIO KakBM MPOMEHH BO OBHE MPETIOCTABKM Ke Ce OJpa3aT Ha ceramrHara
BpPEIHOCT Ha OOBPCKATa 3a MIEH3NOHHUPALE U IPYTUTE OeHEDHUITH 32 BpaOOTECHUTE.

JpymTBOTO KOPHCTH MPETHOCTaBeHa T'OJMIIHA JAWCKOHTHA CTamka. Toa € KaMaTHa cTamka Koja Ou
Tpebano ma ce ynoTpebyBa co LeN Ja ja Opa3u CeramrHata BPEZHOCT Ha MPETHOCTABEHUTE UIHU
HapUYHU OJUIMBHM KOU C€ OUYEeKyBa Ja HacCTaHAT CO IIeJ Ja ce MoAMUpaT oOBpckuTe 3a neduHupaHuTe
Kopuctu. Bo oapenyBameTo Ha COOABETHA JUCKOHTHA CTamka. J{pymTBOTO ja ynotpedyBa AUCKOHTHA
cranka Ha Hapogna banka Ha PemyOnuka MakenoHuja BO OTCYCTBO Ha Ha3ap Ha BHCOKOKBAJIMTEHH
KOPHOPAaTUBHU OOBP3HMLIU WM JIPXXAaBHU OOBP3HUIM KOM C€ JAEHOMUHHMPAHH BO BaJyTa BO KoOja
OeHepunuuTe Ke OMIAT UCIDIATEHH. M KOW MMaaT YCJIOBH 3a JIOCTIeBabe MPHOJIMKHN Ha YCIOBUTE Ha
MOBP3aHM OOBPCKHU 32 MEH3UOHUPABE.
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OcraHaTuTe KIy4HU IIPETIOCTABKM 3a IIPECMETKAa Ha OOBpPCKAaTa 3a INCHCUOHUPAE BO €lleH el Ce
3aCHMBAaT Ha TEKOBHUTE Ma3apHU yCIIOBH.

Objexmuena epeonocm

[Mapu4HUTE CpeACTBA U MAPUYHUTE CKBUBAICHTH. MOOAPYBambaTa Ol KYIMyBaylTe U IPYTHTE TEKOBHU
(hMHAHCUCKM CpEJICTBA TJIABHO MMaaT KpaTKOPOYHA POYHOCT. HoMWHamHaTa BpEIHOCT HamaleHa 3a
NPOIICHETUTE 3aryOH TOpaJy OLITETYBambe Ha CpEACTBATa M OOBPCKUTE CO POK Ha JIOCIICBAGE
MIOMAJIKy Off €/IHA TOJIMHA ¢ MPHUONMKHA Ha HUBHATA 00jeKTHBHA BpeaHOCT. DUHAHCHCKHUTE OOBPCKU
BKJIydeHH BO Kareropujara. OOBpCKH crmpeMa J00aByBaud M OCTaHATH OOBPCKH TJIABHO HMaaT
KpaTKOpO4YHa pOYHOCT. Hopaz[H OBaa IMMpuYrvHa, HUBHATa CMETKOBOACTBCHA BPCAHOCT Ha AAaTyMOT Ha
U3BECTyBamkhe € MPUOMIKHA HAa HHUBHAara oOjekTMBHA BpeaHocT. OOjeKTHMBHAaTa BPEIHOCT Ha
JIOJITOPOYHUTE (PMHAHCHCKHA OOBPCKH C€ yTBPAYBa CO KOPUCTCHC HA TEXHUKA HAa BPEIHYBAHmE HA
JAUCKOHTHUPAHU MMapU4YHU TCKOBU.

Onpedenysarve Ha oOjekmueHume 8peOHOCmu

logem Opoj Ha CMETKOBOACTBEHH IIOJIMTHKH U O00€OJIeHyBaka Oapaar omnpejelyBambe Ha
00jeKTHBHATa BPEJHOCT. KaKo 3a (PMHAHCUCKUTE W He()MHAHCHCKHUTE CPEJCTBAa Taka U 3a OOBPCKUTE.
O0jeKTHUBHHUTE BPEIHOCTH C€ OMpeeIyBaar 3a Mepemke W/ UK 32 00€JI0/IeHyBAaYKH eI Ha OCHOBA Ha
moBeke wmertomu. OHaMy Kajle INTO € BO3MOXHO, IOHATAMOIIHH WH(OpPMAIlMM BO JEJIOT Ha
MPETIOCTABKUTE 3EMEHU MpPH OJpEAyBakbe Ha OO0jeKTUBHATa BPEIHOCT C€ OOEJO0JCHYBaaT BO
3a0eNenKnuTe TTOBP3aHN CO KOHKPETHUTE CPECTBA HITH OOBPCKH.

5. NPOMEHA HA CMETKOBOJACTBEHU ITIOJIMTUKU U KOPEKIIUU HA I'PELLIKHN

CMETKOBOJICTBEHUTE MOJUTUKM Ha I'pynaunujata ce OpUMEHyBaaT oOJl MEPHOA OO0 IEPHOA Ha
KOH3UCTEHTHa OCHOBAa. CMETKOBOACTBEHHUTE IOJUTUKU CE€ MEHYBaaT JOKOJKY TOa € YCIOBEHO CO
M3MEHA WK IoHecyBamwe Ha HoBM MCOU.

KopuceH Bek Ha cpencrBara

KopucHrot Bek Ha cpezcTBara ce yTBpAyBa Bp3 OCHOBA Ha MHUHATO MCKYCTBO CO CIMYHH CPE/ICTBA,
KaKO M WJAHUOT TEXHOJIOLIKH Pa3B0j U MPOMEHU Ha EKOHOMCKHTE M MHIycTpuckute daxtopu. [lokpaj
TOA, KaKO OCHOBEH BOJAWY C€ KOPUCTAT CMETKOBOACTBCHHMTE IOJIMTHKH 32 aMOPTH3ALUOHU CTaIlKU
IPONUIIAHYU OJ] CTpaHa Ha JaHouHara peryiaruBa. CooIBETHOCTA Ha IPOLIEHETUOT KOPUCEH BEK Ce
OLIEHYBa TOJUIIHO, WJIM KOTa TIOCTOjaT MHAMKALIMY 33 3HAYUTEITHH IPOMEHH Ha MPOLICHKHTE.

[Mopamu 3HAYUTETHOTO YYECTBO Ha CpEJACTBaTAa KOW CE€ aMOPTHU3UpaaT BO BKYIHUTE CpPEICTBA.
BIMjaHHETO HAa CBCHTYallHM IPOMEHHM BO OBHE IMPETIIOCTABKU MOXe Ja OWAe MaTepHujaiHO 3a
(uHaHCHCKATa MO3WIMja U PE3YNTAaTOT OJf aKTUBHOCTUTE. JIOKONKY TPOIIOKOT 3a JAempelyjanuja ce
Hamaun/ 3rojemu 3a 1% oBa ke pe3yirupa co MpoMeHa BO TOAMIITHUOT TPOIIOK 33 aMOPTH3alrja BO
u3Hoc ox npubmwkau 2.054 unjaau nenapu (2020: 1.809 wnjaau neHapu).

IloTeHIMjaTHO OINTETYBak¢ HA HEJIBMIKHOCTHTE, IOCTPOJKUTE WM OIpeMaTa W HEMATepUjaTHHUTE
CpeacCTBa

JIpyImTBOTO ja MpoIlieHyBa MOTpedaTa o/ OMITETYBakhE Ha HEABMIKHOCTHUTE, MOCTPOJKUTE U ONIpeMara u
HeMaTepHjaTHUTE CPEICTBA CEKOTalll KOra MOCTOW NMPUYMHA JIeKa CMETKOBOJICTBEHATA BPETHOCT MOXKE
3HAYUTEIHO Jla ja HaJMHUHYBa HAJOMECTIMBATa BPEIHOCT M KOra OIITETYBaWKHETO € IPEIBUICHO.
HanomecTiimBaTa BpeAHOCT ce YTBPAyBa CO MOMOII HA MPECMETKH Ha YmoTpeOHAaTa BPEIHOCT, MPHU
IITO C€ KOPHUCTAT IMIHUPOK 00€M Ha MPOIIEHKHU U (PaKkTOpH KOW BIHjaaT Bp3 Hea.
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[Mokpaj Toa, JpymrTBOTO TM 3€Ma BO NpPEABH] WIHWUTE MPUXOJH M TPOLIOIH, MaKpPOCKOHOMCKHTE
WH/IMKAIIMY, TEXHOJIOIIKATa 3aCTAPEHOCT, IPEKUH Ha aKTUBHOCTUTE U JPYTH MPOMEHU HA (aKTOPUTE
KOM MOJKaT J1a TOBEeJaT 0 OIITeTyBame. JJoKoIKy ce maeHTH(HKyBa OIMTEeTyBamke CO KaJKyJanujaTa
Ha yrmorpeOHAaTa BPEJHOCT, MCTO Taka ce YTBpIyBa pa3iukaTa Mery OO0jeKTMBHATa BPEIHOCT H
TpOIIOLUTE 3a Mpojax0da, co IeN Ja ce IMpecMeTa TOYHHOT M3HOC Ha OluTeTyBame. bunejku oBaa
nmpecMeTka € Cy0jeKTHBHA, M3HOCOT Ha TOTEHIMjalIHOTO OINTETYBAaEke MOXE 3HAYUTEIHO Ja Cce
pa3uKyBa OJ PE3YNTATUTE Ol OBUE KAJIKYJIALMH.

Hcnpaska Ha BpeiHOCTa Ha MoOapyBamaTa 01 KYIYBAYUTE M OCTAHATH 11o0apyBama

Kankynanujara 3a ucrnpaBka Ha CIIOPHU mobapyBarma Ce MpPECMETyBa BP3 OCHOBA Ha MPOICHETUTE
3ary0u 01 HeCIIOCOOHOCTA Ha KYIyBaYHTE JIa TH UCIUIATAT OapaHUTE U3HOCH.

Pezeppaituu

PesepBanmnte reHepanHo ce CyOjeKTHBHH, IOCEOHO BO ciy4aj Ha CYICKH CIOpOBH. JpymTBOTO ja
NpOLIEHYBa MOXKHOCTA 33 HEraTUBEH HACTaH, KaKO pe3yJTaT HA MUHATH HACTaHU M JOKOJIKY Taa
M3HECyBa Haj IelleceT NpOLEHTH, [IpymTBOTO BO LIEJOCT ja NpHKaxKyBa oOBpckaTa. JpymrBoTo
BOOOMYAEHO M3BpIIyBa pa3yMHa IMpPOIEHKAa, HO MOpPaJAd BUCOKOTO HHUBO Ha HECUTYPHOCT, BO HEKOH
Cllydad eBalyalyjaTa MOXKHO € Ja ce Pa3JIuKyBa Ol KpajHHOT e(heKT Ha CYACKHUOT CIIOP.

6. YIIPABYBAIBE CO PU3UK

OcHoBHHTE (PUHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH Ha JlpyIITBOTO I'M COYMHYBaaT OOBPCKM clipeMa 100aByBayuTe U
ocraHatd 0OBpckH. JpymITBOTO pacrmojiara co pa3HOBHIHM (DMHAHCHUCKM CPEICTBA KaKO LITO Ce:
nobapyBama Ol KyIyBauWTe, MapH M MapuUYHH CPEICTBA M KPATKOPOUHM 3a€MH U ICTO3UTH KOU
NpOM3JIETyBaaT AUPEKTHO 0 paboTewmeTo Ha JpyIITBOTO.

I[pyIIITBOTO BO CBOCTO pa60TeH,e ce U3JI0)KCHHU Ha IIOBEKe (1)I/IH3,HCI/ICKPI PU3HULIHN. I'naBHUTE pu3unu ce:
PHU3UK Ha JIMKBUAHOCT, ICBU3CH PU3UK U KPCAUTCH PU3HK. praByBaH»eTO (¢{0) CeKOj Ol OBUC pU3HLHA CC
OJBMBa BO COIIACHOCT CO ITIOJIMTUKHUTC O,I[O6p6HPI (021§ O,I[60p0T Ha AOHUPCKTOpHU KOj BOCIHO € H
OATOBOPCH 34 pCBUANPALC HA UCTUTC.

a) llazapen pusux

[MazapHuoT pusuk ce AepuHUpa Kako ,,pH3UK oJ (IIyKTyalrja Ha Ta3apHaTa BPETHOCT WIIM HIHHUTE
NapuUYHU TEKOBU Ha (PMHAHCHCKUTE MHCTPYMEHTH Kako pe3ysiTaT Ha MPOMEHa Ha Ma3apHHUTE LEHH,, U
BKJIy4yBa KaMaTeH PU3WK, BAyTEH PU3UK U IPYTU EHOBHH PH3HLM. HajroneMuoT aen ox npuxoanTe
Ha J[pyIITBOTO c€ OCTBapeHU OF AOMAIICH Ma3ap BO MaKEJOHCKH JEHAPH, a IPEOCTAaHATHOT A€l Ha
cTpaHcku nasap Bo EVP.

HajronemuoT aen ox Tpomonute Ha JIpyHITBOTO ce OCTBapeHH Oja HaOaBKM Ha JOMAIIHUOT U
CTPaHCKHOT Mazap.

PakoBOATCBOTO BepyBa Jieka T TIpe3eMa CUTE HEOIXOIHN MEPKH 3a TIOIPIITKA Ha OJPKIUBOCT M PacT
Ha OM3HMCOT Ha KOMIIAHH]jaTa BO ceramrHuTe oKoiaHocTH. Cemnak, WAHNTE (IIyKTyaIlMyd Ha 1a3apoT He
MOJKE JIa Ce MPEABUAAT CO TOUHOCT U MPEIM3HOCT.

6) Kamamen pusux
IIpuxoanuTe W ONMEPATUBHUTE TAPHUYHKM TEKOBH Ha J[pyIITBOTO Ce BO rojieMa Mepa HE3aBHCHH O

IMpoOMEHAaTa Ha IMMa3apHUTEC KaMaTHU CTallKH.

[IpomMeHa Ha KaMaTHHTE CTalKH M KaMaTHUTE MaprdHH MOXKaT Ja BiMjaaT Bp3 (UHAHCHUCKHTE
TPOILIOLY ¥ MOBPATOT HA (UHAHCUCKUTE MHBECTHIINH.
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[IpomMeHnTEe Ha Ma3apHUTE KAaMaTHH CTAIIKW BIMjaaT Ha MPUXOJUTE OJ KaMaTH Ha OPOYEHH ACTIO3UTH
B0 Oanku. Ha 31 gexemBpu 2021 rogmna, pymTBOTO HEMMa OpOYEHHU AENO3UTH Bo Oankute (2020:
415.000 mimjagm nenapm). [lopagu Toa. 1% mopact Ha KamMaTHaTa CTalKa Ha MMa3apoT OW MPEeTU3BUKAIIO
(ceteris paribus) kamaTara jaa ce 3rojieMu co npuOmKHO 4.150 Wijaau AeHapu Ha TOJTUIIHO HUBO 3a
2020 roguna, 1oeKa CIMYHO HaMallyBame OU MPeIn3BUKaI0 HCTO HaMalyBamkhe Ha KaMaTara.

8) /lesuzen puzux

Uznoxenocra Ha J[pyImTBOTO Ha EBU3EH PU3MK € MHHUMAIHA CO OIJIeA Ha (akoT jJeKa HajrTOJeMHOT
JIeNn O JOTOBOPUTE TIOBP3aHU CO MEryHApOIHUTE TpaHcakiuu (TpomaxoOure W HabaBKUTE) ce
HomuHUpanu Bo EYPO, uujmto kypc Oeme crabunien Bo TekoT Ha menata 2021 roguna. Mcto Taka,
JIOTOBOPHTE 32 IpoAakOa Ha TOMAIIHUOT Na3ap ce HoMuHupanu Bo EYPO.

3a moTpeOHMTe Ha aHANIM3a HA YYBCTBUTENHOCT OF JACBU3HHOT PHU3MK. PaKOBOACTBOTO KOPUCTH
npeTnocTaBka o 1% 3roemMyBame Ha AeBU3HHOT Kypc Ha EYP, mTo ce cMmeTa 3a pasyMHO €O OrJies Ha
crabuHaTa JomarHa BamyTa Bo ogHoc Ha EYP Bo TexkoT Ha m3mmHatuTe roauau. Ha 31 mexemBpu
2021 romuna, moxonky EYP 6u 6uno 1% (2020: 1%) mocmabo wimm mocuiHO Bo cropenda co MK/,
JOOMBKaTa 1Mocjie 0OaHOUYyBake BO HETO OmiaHcoT Om Ouna 2.698 wijanu nenapu (2020: 2.289 wijanu
JICHApH ) TIOBHCOKA MITH TIOHKCKA. COOJIBETHO.

2) Pusux na auxeuoHocm

praBYBaH)eTO CO PpHU3UKOT Ha JIMKBHIHOCT Hozlpa361/1pa pacnojiarakb€ CO AOBOJIHU KOJIMYECTBA Ha
TOTOBHHA, KAKO 1 MOXXHOCT 3a (1)I/IHaHCI/IpaH>e IMPEKY KOPUCTCHC Ha JOTOBOPHU KPCAUTHU apaHXMaHU.

0) Kpeoumen puszux

JpymTBOTO HEMaaT 3Ha4yajHAa KOHIEHTpallMja Ha KPEeOUTEH PU3UK. J[pyIITBOTO MMa BOCIIOCTABEHO
TakBa MOJHMTUKA KOja IITO MPEABUAYBa MpoJiakOa Ha CBOWTE IMPOU3BOJAU HAa KIHMEHTH CO COOJBETHA
KpenuTHa mcropuja. Mcto taka, JIpymiTBOTO MMa BOCHOCTaBEHO TaKBa IMOJHUTHKA KOja MPEIBUAYBa
JTUMHUTHpakbe Ha U3HOCOT Ha KPEAWTHA M3JIOKEHOCT Ha MoequHeuHuTe KineHTu. [locebHo, 3a na ce
HaMaJid 0BOj pu3uK JlpymTBoTO Oapa 00e30eayBama Kako ITO ¢e: OAHKAPCKU TapaHIMK U JACTIO3UTH.
Ha 31 nmexemBpu 2021 roanHa He MOCTOjaT OTBOPEHU COMHHTEIIHU 3HAYajHU KPEIUTHU PU3HIN KOU
BeKe He ce MOKPUEHHU CO pe3epBaliija 3a COMHHTEIIHH 1o0apyBama.

Bo Bpcka cO KpPEeOIUTHHMOT PHU3HMK KOJIITO MPOHM3JIEryBa O JpyTuTe (DUHAHCHUCKH CPENCTBa Ha
JpymTBOTO, KOM C€ COCTOjaT O Mapd W IapUYHH CPEJICTBA. U KPATKOPOYHHU ModapyBama 3a
M03ajMUIla, MaKCUMallHaTa M3JIOKEHOCT Ha JIpyImITBOTO Ha KPEAWTEH PU3WK MOpajH HeIUIakamke Ha
JIOTOBOpHATa CTpaHa € eJHaKBa Ha CMETKOBOJCTBEHAaTa BpEIHOCT Ha OBHe WHCTpyMmMeHTH. Ha 31
nexemBpu 2021 roxvHa, TapUYHUATE CPEACTBA M MAPUYHUTE €KBHUBAJEHTH Ha JlpyIITBOTO ce 4yBaaT
KaKo KpaTKOPOYHH JETIO3UTH ¥ TEKOBHU CMETKH BO BUCOKO OLIEHETH (PMHAHCUCKN MHCTUTYLIMH.

YHpaBYBaH)e CO KaImuTaJa0T

[IpumapHaTa 11€71 Ha YIOpPaBYBameTO CO KamUTAIOT Ha JIpymITBOTO € Ja ce 00e30eau M OIpiKyBa
CTaOWJICH KPEJAWTEH PEJTUHT W COOJBETHH IOKa3aTelM Ha KaIUTaJOT CO I Ja C€ IOJIPXKH
paboTemeTo U a e MAaKCUMH3UPA BPETHOCTA HA aKIIMOHEPHTE.

JpymITBOTO ympaByBa CO CBOjaTa CTPYKTypa Ha KalMTal M NPaBU KOPEKIMH Ha UCTHOT. KOM CE BO
COTJIACHOCT CO TPOEMEHUTE Ha EKOHOMCKUTE (haKkTOpH. 3a Ja ja OApKyBa M Ja ja Koperupa
CTpPYKTypaTa Ha KamuTaioT. J[pymTBOTO MOXE Ja ja KOperupa IWBHJACHIAATAa HCIUIaTeHa Ha
aKIMOHEPHUTE, J1a BpaTH KaluTal Ha aKIMOHEPUTE WM TaK Ja U31aJ€ TOTIOTHUTEITHI HOBH aKITUH, BP3
OCHOBa Ha TPETXOJHA OJTyKa Ha aKIHMOHEpHTEe. BO TEKOT HA TOAWMHWTE IITO 3aBpinyBaar Ha 31
nekemBpu 2021 rommaa m 31 nexemBpu 2020 rogmHa He Oca HaAmpaBEeHHU IMPOMEHH BO IICIIHTE.
MOJINTUKUTE WK TpoIiecuTe Ha J[pymTBoTO.
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7. HEMATEPWJAITHU CPEACTBA

Ha6aBHa BpegHoCT

Canpo Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
3ronemyBatse

Hamanysarbe

Canpo Ha 31 Jekemspu 2021
WUcnpaBka Ha BpegHOCTa
Canpo Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
AmopTunsauuja

HamanyBsatbe

Canpo Ha 31 [ekemspyu 2021

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
Hocm Ha 31 lekemepu 2021

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
Hocm Ha 1 Janyapu 2021

Ha6aBHa BpegHoCT

Canpo Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020
3ronemyBatse

Hamanysarbe

Canpo Ha 31 Jekemepu 2020
WcnpaBka Ha BpegHOCTa
Canpo Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020
AmopTunsauuja

Hamanysatbe

Canpo Ha 31 Jekemepu 2020

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
Hocm Ha 31 [Jekemepu 2020

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
Hocm Ha 1 Janyapu 2020

CpeacTBa
MateHTn n OcTaHatu BO
Nyaeun  CodrBep BkynHo
nULeHUU CpeacTBa NOATOTOBK
a

17.845.460 29.833.599 47.668.059
- 5.718.887 - 5.718.887
(16.625.060) - - (16.625.060)
1.220.400 35.541.486 36.761.886
13.613.600 16.117.830 29.731.430
- 5.422.690 - 5.422.690
(13.613.600) - - (13.613.600)
- 21.540.520 21.540.520
15.221.366 15.221.366
17.936.629 17.936.629
17.845.460 - 17.845.460
- 36.167.329 36.167.329
- (6.344.730) 6.344.730
17.845.460 29.822.599 47.668.059
13.613.600 - 13.613.600
- 16.117.830 16.117.830
13.613.600 16.117.830 29.731.430
4.231.860 13.704.769 17.936.629
4.231.860 4.231.860
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8. MATEPWJANHW CPEOCTBA

HabaBHa BpegHoCT

Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
3ronemyBatbe

Hamanysame

Canpo Ha 31 Jexemspu 2021

WcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa

Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
AmopTu3aumja

Hamanysate

Cango Ha 31 lekemspu 2021

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa epedHocm Ha
31 fexemspu 2021

Hemo cmemkoeodcmeeHa epedHocm Ha
1 Janyapu 2021

HabaBHa BpegHoCT

Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2020
3ronemysatse

Hamanysawe

Canpo Ha 31 [exemspu 2020
WcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2020
AmopTu3aumja

Hamanysate

Cango Ha 31 lekemspu 2020

Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa epedHocm Ha
31 fekemspu 2020

Hemo cmemkoeodcmeeHa epedHocm Ha
1 Janyapu 2020

pagexHu

NHBecTnum

3emjuwire . Onpema BKYIMHO
0bjekTn BO TeK

1.045.518.235 2.627.271.576 4.980.283.744 175.634.464 8.828.708.019
- 2574121 198.396.673 355.591.949  556.562.743
- (6.708.353) (12.710.226) (206.689.681) (226.108.260)
1.045.518.235 2.623.137.344 5.165.970.191 324.536.732 9.159.162.502
153.958.095 2.108.386.466 4.075.719.283 - 6.338.063.844
25.510.115 20.229.734  154.278.867 200.018.716
- (4.683.314) (12.538.522) - (17.221.836)
179.468.210 2.123.932.886 4.217.459.628 - 6.520.860.724
866.050.025  499.204.458 948.510.563 324.536.732  2.638.301.778
891.560.140  518.885.110 904.564.461 175.634.464  2.490.644.175
1.030.573.144  2.580.200.133 4.796.831.128  232.878.168 8.640.482.573
14.945.091 48.255.873  201.497.210 308.602.555  573.300.729
- (1.184.430) (18.044.594) (365.846.259) (385.075.283)
1.045.518.235 2.627.271.576 4.980.283.744 175.634.464 8.828.708.019
136.819.847 2.090.058.332 3.951.583.614 - 6.178.461.793
17.138.248 18.328.134  128.116.029 163.582.411
- (3.980.360) - (3.980.360)
153.958.095 2.108.386.466 4.075.719.283 - 6.338.063.844
891.560.140  518.885.110 904.564.461 175.634.464  2.490.644.175
893.753.297  490.141.801 845.247.514 232.878.168 2.462.020.780

18



Z TITAN

=4
9 BUONOLLKKU CPEACTBA
HepoBpLuenn MoBeke- CpepctBa
2021 3eMjoaencku OcHosHo  O6pTHo roauLLIHK BO BKYMNHO
cTago cTago
npousBoam HacagM  noaroToBKa

Cocrojba Ha 1 JaHyapu 2021 - - - - -
3ronemyBatbe kako pe3yntar Ha

HabaBKm - - - - -
HamanyBatbe kako pesynTar Ha

npoaaxon - - - - -
OxHeaHn 3eMjoAEenck1 Npoun3Boam

NPEHECEHN BO 3annxu - - - - -
lMpomeHa Ha BpeaHoCTa Ha

BuonoLkuTe cpeacTea - - - - -
Tpowoun Ha amopTusauuja Ha

fuonowkuTe cpeacTsa - - - - -

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 Jekemepu 2021 - - - - -
HemexogHu cpedcmea
TexosHu cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2021 - - - - -
2020

Cocrojba Ha 1 Janyapu 2020 - - - - -
3ronemyBatbe kako pesyntar Ha

HabaBKm - - - - -
HamanyBate kako pesynTar Ha

npoaaxom - - - - -
OxHeaHn 3eMjoAenck1 Npon3Boam

NPEHECEHN BO 3annXu - - - - -
lMpomeHa Ha BpeaHoCTa Ha

BuonoLwkuTe cpeacTaa - - - - -
Tpowoun Ha amopTusauuja Ha

BuonowkuTe cpeacTsa - - - - -

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 fekemepu 2020 - - - - -
HemekosHu cpedcmea
TekosHuU cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2020 - - - - -
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10. 4OJITOPOYHN ®PUHAHCUCKN CPEICTBA

BrioxyBatba BO KOHBEPTUOMIHI 0OBP3HULIM

BkynHo:

Bpoj Ha KOHBEPTMOUNHM 06BP3HULIL:

[MpaBa kou rm HocaT KOHBEPTUBUIHIUTE 0BBP3HNLIN:

11. NOBAPYBAHA O[] KYMYBAYU

MobGapyBata og kynyeaun Bo 3emjata
MobapyBata 0f Kynyeaun BO CTPAHCTBO
3acTapeHu, COMHUTENHW 1 cNopHU NobapyBarba
BpenHocHo ycornacysate Ha nobapysata
BkynHo:

12. MAPUYHU CPEACTBA

[MapuyHn cpeacTBa Ha AEHAPCKN CMETKM
MapuyHn cpeacTBa Bo feHapcka bnarajHa
[leBu3Ha cmeTka

[eBu3Ha bnarajHa

BkynHo:

TekoBHa roauHa

TekoBHa roavHa

173.040.313
168.231.875
3.433.530
(3.433.530)
341.272.188

TekoBHa roguHa
186.024.727

168.621.318

354.646.045
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I'IpeTxo.qHa roguHa

I'IpeTonHa roguHa
181.253.613
155.864.256

4.268.554
(4.268.554)
337.117.869

MpeTxoaHa rogvHa
611.923.347

50.847.643

662.770.990
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13. OCHOBHA I'MTABHUHA

PopoBu Ha akumn  Bo concTBeHOCT Ha Cocrojoa
2021 01.01.2021 % sronem. Haman. 31.12.2021 %
Ouanykmn nnua 90.263.305 5,16 - 8,33% 82.639.769 4,73
lMpaBHu nnua 1.657.466.444 94,84 0,45% 1.665.089.980 95,27
OBuYHM aKum
OTKyneHn concTBEHU
aKuum - -
MpuoputeThn akumm OO - -
BkynHo 1.747.729.749 100 - 1.747.729.749 100
2020 01.01.2020 % sronem. Haman. 31.12.2020 %
Ouanykmn nnua 90.263.305 5,16 - 90.263.305 5,16
MpaBHK LA 1.657.466.444 94,84 1.657.466.444 94,84
OBu4HM akumm
OTKyneHn concTBEHU
aKLmm . )
MproputeTHn akumm OO - -
BkynHo 1.747.729.749 100 - 1.747.729.749 100

14. OJITOPOYHU OBBPCKU

00BpCKM CO POK Ha JocTacyBatbe Hag 5 roguHu:

Bwg Ha obBpcka:

OBBpcku cnpema noBp3aHu ApyLUTBa
ObBpcku koH pobaByBauy

OGBpCKM crpema NoBp3aHM APYLLITBA MO OCHOB HA 3aeMM

OBBpckK N0 OCHOB Ha KpeauTy
OBBpckn N0 OCHOB Ha 3aeMu
OcTaHatu fonropo4Hm 06BpCKL:
BkynHo:

21

Bwng Ha 0be3benyBatbe:

TekoBHa roauHa

MpeTxoaHa roauHa
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15. KPATKOPO4YHN O6BPCKWU CMPEMA IOBABYBAYU

TekoBHa roauHa I'IpeTonHa roguHa

[lobaByBaun BO 3emjaTa 562.141.826 348.981.015
[lobaByBaun BO CTPAHCTBO 629.263.687 490.639.339
[lobaByBaun 3a HehakTypupaHn CTOKM 13.676.633 19.177.389
BkynHo: 1.205.073.146 858.797.743

16. KPATKOPO4YHU OBBPCKW MO 3AEMU U KPEAUTH

TekoBHa rogmHa MpeTxoaHa roanHa
KpaTkopouHu 0BBpCKkM NO 3aemMu W KpeauTh cnpema
noBP3aHu ApyLUTBa
KpaTKopo4Hu KpeauTy BO 3emMjaTa
KpaTkopoyHu KpeanTi BO CTPAHCTBO
BkynHo:
17. NPUXOOW Oof NPOOAXBA
TekoBHa roguHa MpeTxoaHa roauHa
Mpuxoaw og npoaaxba Bo 3emjata 3.255.336.113 3.216.170.133
Mpuxoam of npogaxba BO CTPaHCTBO 1.890.382.242 1.602.839.136
BkynHo: 5.145.718.355 4.819.009.269
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= CEMENTARNICA USIE
18 OCTAHATM nPUxoau

[puxoan o4 HaEMHUHK

[Mpuxoau of HannaTeHu oTnuUWaHW nobapyBara
Mpuxoav O4 ApXKaBHU NOLAPLIKN

BkynHo:

19. OCTAHATU PACXOAMU

TpaHCnopTHY ycnyru

TpoLuoun 3a caemu

HaemHuHa

[HeBHWLM 3a cnyxDeHu naTyBakba U NaTHU TPOLIOLW

TpOLLOLM 3a YNIEHOBM HA OPraHoT Ha yrpaByBakse,
HAZ30PHUOT OABOP M 3a YNIEHOBUTE Ha OCTaHaTUTE
opramv

TpoLuouy 3a NpoMoLyja, NponaraHga 1 pexknama
[pemum 3a ocurypysare

BaHkapckun ycrnyru 1 Tpowoum 3a nnateH npomet
TpoLouu 3a peeusnja

TpoLoum 3a 0CTaHaTH UHTENEKTYanHM ycnyru
BpeaHocHo ycornacysare Ha kpaTkopoyHu nobapysatsa
3arybu o oTyfyBatbe Ha HETEKOBHM CpeacTBa
OctaHaty pacxoau

BKynHO OCTaHaTH onepaTuBHU pacxonu

20. TPAHCAKLIMK CO NOBP3AHU AIPYLLUTBA

NoGapyBatba No OCHOB Ha KYNONPOAAXHN OAHOCH
OBBpPCKY MO OCHOB Ha KyNnonpoaaxHK 0aHOCH
Mpuxoau of npogaxba Ha roToBM NPOKU3BOAK
Mpuxoau oA npoaaxkbea Ha CTOKM

e/
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TeKoBHa roguHa

31.947.450

31.947.450

TekoBHa roguHa

207.287.685

8.009.142
3.338.899

3.593.997
13.214.251
1.619.354
2.538.193
11.639.441
399.729
130.157
28.275.033
280.045.881

TeKkoBHa roguHa

149.509.227
166.214.576
546.321.086
414.440.539

MpeTxoaHa rognHa

23.649.975

23.649.975

I'IpeTxom-la rogunHa

206.830.772

7.802.079
2.707.360

1.463.896
11.156.022
1.413.180
2.467.783
16.583.997
977.681
12.140
28.988.805
280.403.715

ﬂpeTxonHa rognHa

136.515.088
203.075.586
637.338.901
250.310.297





